


NOTES:

1.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A
PROGXY TO ATTEND ANE VOTE ON POLL ON HIS/HER BEHALF AND THE
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. Pursuand Ip section 1035
of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can act a8 a proxy on behalt of not more than
tifty members holding in aggregate, not more than ten percent of the total share capital
of Companty. The instruemnent of’ Proxy, in order to be effective, should be deposited at
the registered office of the Company, duly completed and signed, not later than 4 lours
{Sunday is included in computation of 4 hours) before the commencement of the
meeting. A proxy torm is antexed to this report. Proxies submicted on behalf of limited
companies, societies, ete., must be supported by an appropriate resolution/suthority, as
applicabie.

Corporate members intending to scnd their awthorized represenlative to attend the
meeting are requested lo send their certified copy of the board reseintion authorizing
their representative to attend and vote on their behalf.

Members arc requested fo sign at the place provided on the attendance slip and handover
the same at the entmnce of the mesting.

All documents reforred to in the accompanying notice of the annual genersl miesting and
the explanatory Statement shall be open for inspection without any fee at the registercd
oftice of the Company during normal business howrs (2:00 am to 5:00 pm) on all working
days, except Saturday, up to and inchuding the date of the annual general meeting of the
Company.

The register of director’s and their shareholding, regisier af contracts with the relaed
party and contracts with bodies corporales in which directors are interested and register
of proxies would be available for inspection by the members at the meeting.
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CIN - Lg3030DL2010PTCI 98141
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ATTENDANCE SL1P
(T BE SIGNED AND HANDED OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING
HALL)

I'We herehy record myour presence at the 9t Anpual General Meeting of the above named
Company held Monday, the 12 day of August, 2019 at 10:00 A M. at Ground Floor 124, 94
Meghdook, Nehru Place, Wew Delhi-t 10 019,

MAME(S) OF THE MEMBERI( S}
REGISTERED FOLIO NO

+ DPID

CLIENT ID

NO. OF SHARES

Narne of Proxy (in black letters)
(To be filled ia, if the Proxy altends jostead of the Members)

S Member's/Prosy’s
Signature




FORM NO. MGT - 11
PROXY FORM
Pursuant to section 105(6} of the Companies Act, 2003 and rule 19(3) of the Companies {Mansgemncnt
and Admimsiration) Rulcs, 2014

CIN ; URA0IODLZ010PTC 198 141
MName of the Company @ Zomeato Media Private Limited
Registered Office : Ground Floor, 124, 94 Meghdoot, Nchru Place, New [3elhi
- 1TNg
Mame of the member {5)
Repiutered address
E- mail id
Folio no / Client 1T
PR

1.

$ad

I/ We, being the member (s) of ... shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint:

MName:

Adddresa:

E-mail id:

BEEIIALLITE L L, ey e e ivers ianr s vera irasisnns s amm i et raen ot failing him/her.

Name:

Address:

E-mail id:

BIgnallne ..o e e e or failing himher,

MNarne:

Address:

E-mail ad:

Tt L TP or failing him/her,

a3 my’out proxy {o attend and vote (on a poll) for mefus and on mw'our bebalf at the annual general
meeting af the company to be held on Monday, the 12" day of August, 2019 at 10:00 AM, at the
registered office of the Company at Ground Fleor, 124, 94 Mcghdect, Nehru Place, New Delhi-
110619 and at any adiournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

5. No. Description of resplutions For Against

Ordinary Businesy

1. | Adoption of accounts:

(8) the audited financial statements of the Company for
the financial yvear ended March 31, 2019, together
with the reports of the board of dirsctors and auditors
therzon; and

{b)the audited consolidated financial siatenents of the
Company for the financial vear ended March 31,
2019, together with the reports of the auditors

'; thercon.

2. To consider and approve the re-appointuent of statutory |

auditors of the Company for a pericd of one year ie from | ! !

conchision of this annual general mecting until the | R




JI conclusion of the 10" annual general meeting.

—

Signed thison ..o

Signamre of member

MNotes:

Signanre of Proxy holder {s)

Aftix
Revenue

Stamp |

The Proxy focm must be deposited ot the registered office of the Company nol less than 48

hours betore the time fixed for holding the aforesaid meeting,

Please affix Rs. 1.00 revenue stamp on this form and the member should sign across the stamp.










































Anneiure-2
Form No. ADC-2

{Parsuant to cleuse () of yub-section (3) of section 134 of the Actf and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
{ Aceounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of coniracts/arrangements entered inte by the company with rclated parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaclions under third proviso thereto

L. Details of contracts or arrangements or (ransaclions not at arm’s tength basis: N.A
{a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: N.A

() Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: N.A

() Duration of the contracts / armangements/transactions: N.A

{d) Salicn terms of the comracts or arrangements or tranzactions inchiding the value, if any; N.A

{2) Justification for emtering into such contracts or arrangeinents or iransaclions; NoA

(1) Datefs) of approval by the Bpard: N.A
() Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A

(t) Daic on which the special resohition was passed in gencral meeting as required under first proviso to section 188 N.A










| Zomato Media WLL loim Venture | 25-May-2019

Zomato Internet Subsidiary | 25-May-2019
ITizmetleri Ticaret
Anonim Sirketi
B. Invesiment

Zomato Mediz Portugal , Portugal Subsidiary | 25-May-2019 . . 32.26
Unipessoal, Tda
Zomato Ireland Limited Ireband Subsidiary | 25-May-2019 . . 323.62

Zomato Midia Brasil Ltda Brazil Subsidiary | 25-May-2019 . . 4.02

Zomato Chile Spa Chile Subsidiary | 25-May-2019 . . 0.49

Carthero Technologies India Subsidiary | 25-May-2019 . . 499 98 Tnvestment in subsidiarics
Private Limiled .

Fomato Internet Private Tndia Subsidiary | 25-May-2019 . . 230.00
Limited
Zomato Tatertainment Tndia Subsidiary | 235-May-2019 . . 30.00
Privale Limited
TongueSiun Food Tndig Subsidiary | 25-May-2019 _ . 332.30%
Nelwork Privale Limited
Loyal Tospital ity Private Tndia Assnciate | 25-May-2019 _ . 330 fnvestment in associates
Limited

C. L-oan to subsidiary

TongueStun Food Tndig Subsidiary | 25-May-2019 . . 271.30% Inter corporate debi**
MNelwork Private Limited

*Inter corporate loan amounting to INR 16630 Mn. converted to investmenl
** Balance amount of iINR 105 Mn. was repaid
D. Other supptlies by the Company (o relaled parties:

Carthera Lechnologies India Bubsidiary | 23-May-2010 . . 1,085.9]1 | Bervice fee charged towards
Private Limited rumming onboarding centers
across India for Carthero
Technologies Private Limited
TonguaSmn Fond Subsidiary | 25-May-2019 . . Professional fee charged by
Networl Privaie Limited the Company against recovery
ol olfice space and staff
cost for personng
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S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2019;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to

the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

g’

N
S DV










S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts

©

(viii)

(ix)

)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods
& service tax, sales tax, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other
material statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of
income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, goods
and service tax and cess which have not been deposited, on account of any dispute.

The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowing dues in respect of a
financial institution or bank or to government or dues to debenture holders during the
year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer / further public offer
/ debt instruments and term loans hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable
to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and
fair view of the financial statements and according to the information and
explanations given by the management, we report that no material fraud by the
company or no material fraud on the company by the officers and employees of the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act is not applicable to the
company and hence reporting under clause 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not
commented upon.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The
provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the company and accordingly reporting
under clause 3(xiii) insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to
the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has complied with provisions of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of the private placement of shares during the year. According to the
information and explanations given by the management, we report that the amounts
raised, have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised. The
company has not made any preferential allotment of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him as referred to in segtian, 192 of Companies Act, 2013.




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section
45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
Chartered Accountants

er Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership Number: 094941

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: 25-05-2019






S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership Number: 94941
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: 25-05-2019










Zomato Media Private Limited
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019
CIN : U93030DL2610PTC198141

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

(¥ Mn.) & Mn.)
A) Operating activities
Loss before tax (5,705.27) (784.93)
Adjustment to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows
Liabilities written back (5.29) (0.67)
Excess provision written back (3.58) (13.89)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 95.27 114.94
Amortization of intangible assets 4.81 10.15
Provision for doubtful debts 52.85 51.06
Provision for doubtful Advances 491 491
Allowance for credit loss on trade receivable written back - (2.01)
Unrealised Gain on Investment at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (208.00) (67.27)
Bad debts written off 0.63 7.88
Gain on sale of current investments (339.45) (27.85)
Gain on sale of Non current nvestment (47.34) -
Provision for diminution in value of investment in subsidiary company 449.04 67.00
Income on assignment of Contracts (8,880.94) -
Share Based Payment Expense 630.70 43.71
Loss/(profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) (0.45) (1.41)
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (4.60) 0.10
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations L1 13.43
Interest expense - 0.03
Interest income (134.07) (61.67)
Operating Loss before Working Capital Changes (14,111.89) (646.49)
Movements in working capital :
(Increase) in trade receivables (489.62) (108.39)
Decrease/ (Increase) in financial assets (3,078.36) 21.81
(Increase) in other assets (3,413.59) (257.59)
Decrease/ (Increase) Increase in Loans (41.42) 11.01
Increase/(Decrease) in Other financial liabilities 1,097.05 -
Increase in provisions 61.49 10.36
Increase in Other Liabilities 777.42 135.58
Increase in trade payables 2,610.53 25143
Cash used in operations (16,588.39) (582.28)
Income taxes paid (81.68) (34.40)
Net cash used in operating activities (A) (16,670.07) (616.68)
B) Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant & equipment (including capital work in progress and capital advances) (397.69) (48.80)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 0.42 223
Investment in bank deposits (with maturity more than three months) (457.82) (1,612.01)
Purchase of Intangible Assets including Intangible Assets under Development ©0.21) 3.74)
Maturity of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 3 months) 1,283.27 1,096.34
Proceeds on sale of financial assets - Liquid mutual fund units 25318.82 2,216.41
Payment to acquire financial assets - Liquid mutual fund units (37,917.25) (9,976.00)
Investment in subsidiaries and associates (1,814.87) (204.30)
Sale of Investment ' 138.00 -
Investment in Non current investment (67.98) (5.00)
Payment towards acquisition of business (167.82) (479.43)
Interest received 134.07 61.67
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (B) (13,949.06) (8,952.63)
C) Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of share capital 22,644.86 9,699.59
Transaction cost on issue of shares (22.64) (9.70)
Income on assignment of Contracts 8,880.94 -
Interest paid - (0.03)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities (C) 31,503.16 9,689.86
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 884.03 120.55
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 391.02 270.47
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (refer Note 8) 1,275.05 391.02
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2.2

Zomato Media Private Limited
Notes to standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
CIN: U93030DL2010PTC198141

Corporate Information

Zomato Media Private Limited (‘the Company’ or ‘Zomato’), including branches, primarily operates as an internet
portal providing multitude of information, including but not limited to details of menus, contacts, discount offers,
quality of service and food w.r.t restaurants and caterers and other service providers, online ordering of food from
select restaurants, to be availed by users of the website in making informed decisions about their dining options and
related facilities and by restaurants, hotels and other caterers to advertise themselves to the target audience in India
and abroad.

The company is domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India.
The registered office of the company is located at GF — 12A, 94, Meghdoot, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019.

The standalone financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 25
May 2019.

Basis of preparation of financial statements and Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS), under the
historical cost convention on the accrual basis except certain financial instrument which are measured at fair values,
the provisions of the companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) (to the extent notified). The Ind AS are prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with rule 3 of the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment
rules issued thereafter.

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all amounts disclosed in the financial statements and
notes have been rounded off to the nearest Million (as per the requirement of Schedule M), unless otherwise stated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Change in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards

The Company applied Ind AS 115 for the first time. Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first
time in March 2019, but do not have an impact on the financial statements of the Company. The Company has not
early adopted any standards or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Company has adopted the Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” with effect from April 1, 2018
as notified on March 28, 2018 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. The new revenue standard supersede all previous revenue recognition requirements under Ind AS. This
new standard requires revenue to be recognized when promised goods or services are transferred to customers in
amounts that reflect the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Adoption of the new rules has affected the timing of revenue recognition for certain transactions of the
Company. Ind AS 115 permits two possible methods of transition:

- Retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 [Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors] with the option to elect certain practical expedients as defined within
Ind AS 115 (the full retrospective method); or




Zomato Media Private Limited
Notes to standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
CIN: U93030DL2010PTC198141

- Retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying Ind AS 115 recognized at the date of initial
application (April 1, 2018) and providing certain additional disclosures as defined in Ind AS 115 (the modified
retrospective method).

The Company has applied the modified retrospective approach on transition to Ind AS 115.

Amendment to Ind AS 38 Intangible asset acquired free of charge

The amendment clarifies that in some cases, an intangible asset may be acquired free of charge, or for nominal
consideration, by way of a government grant. In accordance with Ind AS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and
Disclosure of Government Assistance, an entity may choose to recognise both the intangible asset and the grant
initially at fair value. If an entity chooses not to recognise the asset initially at fair value, the entity recognises the asset
initially at a nominal amount plus any expenditure that is directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended
use. The amendment also clarifies that revaluation model can be applied for asset which is received as government
grant and measured at nominal value. These amendments do not have any impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Considerations

The appendix clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) on the de-recognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to
advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, then the entity must determine the date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance
consideration. This Interpretation does not have any impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Amendments to Ind AS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits against
which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which
taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount,

Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on initial application of the amendments, the
change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may be recognised in opening retained earnings (or in
another component of equity, as appropriate), without allocating the change between opening retained earnings and
other components of equity. Entities applying this relief must disclose that fact.

These amendments do not have any impact on the Company as the Company has no deductible temporary differences
or assets that are in the scope of the amendments.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind
AS requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting
period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions,
uncertainty about these

Assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets or liabilities in future periods.




Zomato Media Private Limited
Notes to standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
CIN: U93030DL2010PTC198141

ii. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An
asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

eoop

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

a. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

b. Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

¢. Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

iii. Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees. For each foreign branch the Company
determines the functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency, which is the currency of their countries of domicile.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency spot rates at the date the
transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the company uses an average rate if the
average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with
the exception of the following: '

a. Exchange differences arising on monetary items that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment in a
foreign operation are recognised in profit or loss in the separate financial statements of the reporting entity or the
individual financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate. In the financial statements that include
the foreign operation and the reporting entity (e.g., financial statements when the foreign operation is a branch),
such exchange differences are recognised initially in OCI. These exchange differences are reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

b. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in
OCI.
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Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Foreign branches

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Indian Rupees at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated at exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. For practical reasons, the company uses an average rate to translate
income and expense items, if the average rate approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in OCIL. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

iv. Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

a. Level I — quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

b. Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

c. Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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The Company’s finance team determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement,
such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value. The team comprises of the
Chief Financial Officer, Director Finance and Finance Controller.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. Involvement of external valuers
is decided on the basis of nature of transaction and complexity involved. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the finance team analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the team
verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation
to contracts and other relevant documents. A change in fair value of assets and liabilities is also compared with
relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

v.  Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any

Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment. When significant parts of plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them

Separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is
recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation on all property plant and equipment are provided on a straight line method based on the estimated
useful life of the asset, which is as follows:

Property, plant and equipment Useful lives as per Schedule II | Useful lives estimated by
management
Air Conditioner 5 years 3 years
Electrical Equipment’s 5 years 3 years
Furniture & Fittings 10 years 3 years
Computers 3 years 2 years
Motor Vehicles 8 years 8 years
Telephone Instruments 5 years 2 years

Leasehold Improvements are amortised over 4 years or life based on lease period, whichever is lower. Based on
the expected useful lives of these assets, the Company has considered below mentioned useful lives for different
classes of assets:

*  The useful lives of electrical equipment’s, furniture and fittings, computers, air conditioners and telephone
instruments are estimated as 3,3,2,3 and 2 respectively. These lives are lower than those indicated in
schedule II to Companies Act 2013,
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*  Improvements to leasehold buildings not owned by the Company are amortized over the lease period or
estimated useful life of such improvements, whichever is lower.

The management has estimated the useful lives and residual values of all property, plant and equipment and
adopted useful lives based on management’s assessment of their respective economic useful lives. The residual
values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Depreciation on the assets purchased during the year is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of purchase of
the assets. Individual assets costing less than INR 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life
being 2 years and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an Intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless
such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Revenue from contract with customer

The Company generates revenue from advertisings, subscriptions, online ordering transactions and other services.
Revenue is recognized to depict the transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers upon the
satisfaction of performance obligation under the contract in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the:
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Consideration includes goods or services
contributed by the customer, as non cash consideration, over which Company has control.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from
contracts with customers are provided in Note 20. ,
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Where performance obligation is satisfied over time, company recognizes revenue using input/ output method
based on performance completion till reporting date. Where performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time,
company recognizes revenue when customer obtains control of promised goods and services in the contract.

Revenue is recognized net of any taxes collected from customers, which are remitted to governmental authorities.

Advertisement revenue

Advertising revenue is derived principally from the sale of online advertisements based on “clicks” (which are
generated each time users on our platforms click through our advertisements to an advertiser’s desi gnated website)
delivered to advertisers. Company uses the output method and recognize advertising revenue on the basis of
number of clicks.

Subscription revenue
Revenues from subscription contracts are recognized over the subscription period in accordance with terms of
agreement entered into with customer.

Online Ordering
Revenues from Online Ordering are recognized in the form of commission income upon fulfilment of
performance obligation in accordance with the terms of agreement entered into with customers.

Incentives

The company provides various types of incentives to transacting users including credits and direct payment
discounts to promote the traffic on its site. The major accounting policy for incentives is described as follows:

Delivery services

Since the company identified the transacting users as one of its’ customers for delivery services when the company
is responsible for the delivery services, the incentives offered to transacting users are considered as payment to
customers and recorded as reduction of revenue on a transaction by transaction basis. The amount in excess of
the revenue earned from the transacting users is recorded as Advertisement and sales promotion expenses.

When incentives are provided to transacting users where the company is not responsible for delivery, the
transacting users are not considered customers of the company, and such incentives are recorded as Advertisement
and sales promotion expenses.

Interest

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method. Interest income is included under the head
“other income” in the statement of profit and loss.

Contract balances
Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the customer (which consist
of unbilled revenue). If the Company performs by transferring services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional.
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Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial
assets in financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before
the Company transfers services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract.

ix.  Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund social security is a defined contribution scheme. The Company
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund/social security. The Company
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme/ social security scheme as an expense, when an
employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the
balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a
liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution
due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the
pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

In case of other foreign branches, contributions are made as per the respective country laws and regulations. The
same is charged to statement of profit and loss on accrual basis. There is no obligation beyond the Company’s
contribution.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India and Middle East.
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

a. The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
b. The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability. The Company recognises
the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

a.  Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements; and
b. Net interest expense

The Company also operates a leave encashment plan. The company treats accumulated leave, which is expected
to be utilized within the next 12 months, as short-term employee benefit. The company measures the expected
cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has
accumulated at the reporting date.
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Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable
income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting advance
tax paid and income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where the relevant tax paying units
intends to settle the asset and liability on a net basis.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

a. When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss,

b. Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

a. When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss,

b. Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets
are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Share based payment

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled
transactions). :

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an
appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period
represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is
recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award
and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service
conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are
treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the
terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for
any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or
by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit
or loss.

Segment reporting
Identification of segments

The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the geographical
locations of the customers, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that serves different markets.
The ‘Others’ segment includes those segments, which are not separately reportable as per Ind AS 108.

Allocation of common costs

Commeon allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each segment to
the total common costs.
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Unallocated items

Unallocated items include general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any business
segment.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding duri ng the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions and Contingent liabilities
1) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision
is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

i) Contingent Liability

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one are more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Institute, or is a present obligation that arises from past event but is not recognised because
either it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent liabilities are
disclosed and not recognised.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Trade
receivables are initially measured at transaction price. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades)
are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two categories:

1. Financial assets carried at amortised cost
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2. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost
A “financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and .

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance
income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial assets instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in
the P&L.

Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 at fair value, other than
investments in equity instruments in subsidiaries, joint venture, which are carried at cost.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets)
is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

i. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii. The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement;
and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the asset, the company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be
required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:
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i. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance
ii. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18

The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.
The application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original
EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

i.  All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options)
over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument
ii. Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to

the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the
expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

In case any balance is disputed by the customer then it will be reviewed separately for creating the provision and
amount up to 100% of the balance may be provided on the basis of nature of dispute. Any disputed balance
which is considered separately will be excluded from the normal ageing bucket for making the provision.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in
the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The
balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

i. Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables: ECL is presented as an
allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance
reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial instruments on the
basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.
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The company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

1. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS
109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/
loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
The company has designated all financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss (except for loans and
borrowings).

ii. Loans and borrowings - After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit
and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative
host contract — with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a
standalone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be
required by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price,
commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable,
provided in the case of a nonfinancial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the
cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through
profit or loss.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the company does
not separate embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to
the entire hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those
of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or
loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments.
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Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

XVi. Impairment of non-financial assets

The company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
(CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the

asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated
by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond
periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the company extrapolates cash flow projections in the
budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In
any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or
country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at 31 March and when circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs)
to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

xvii. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
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xviii. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts (if any) as they are considered an integral part of the
company’s cash management.

Xix. Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby loss for the period is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments
and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.
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5

Financial assets - Investments (Non-current)
Investments at Cost

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Investment in Subsidiaries

Zomato Media Portugal, Unipessoal LDA

Zomato Midia Brasil, Ltda

Zomato New Zealand Media Private Limited

Zomato Ireland Limited

PT Zomato Media Indonesia

Zomato Media (Private) Limited

Zomato Chile SpA

Zomato Middle East FZ - LLC

Zomato Internet Private Limited

Carthero Technologies Private Limited

Zomato Entertainment Private Limited

TongueStun Food Network Private Limited

Investment in Subsidiaries

Private Limited**

Investment in joint ventures

X Mn.} (X Mn.)
Inv t in Unquoted equity instr (fully paid)
183.99 132.07
2,020,000 (31 March 2018:1,620,000) equity shares of Euro 1 each in Zomato Media Portugal, Unipessoal LDA *
2397 19.94
961,980 (31 March 2018:749,999) equity shares of BRL 1 each in Zomato Midia Brasil, Ltda
{At cost less provision for other than temporary diminution in value Z 23.97 Mn. (31 March 2018: 219.94 Mn.))
236.67 231.27
4.650.000 (31 March 2018: 4.650,000,) equity shares of NZD 1 each in Zomato NZ Media Private Limited *
(At cost less provision for other than temporary diminution in value ¥ 37.54 Mn. (31 March 2018: 237.54 Mn.))
8,201.41 7,859.83
107,791,111 (31 March 2018:103,791,111) equity shares of Euro | each in Zomato Ireland Limited *
(At cost less provision for other than temporary diminution in value 26,358.38 Mn. (31 March 2018: 26,243 85 Mn.))
79.15 839
1,223,145 (31 March 2018:1,223,145 equity shares of IDR 11,647 each in PT Zomato Media Indonesia *
335 334
7.00,000 (31 March 2018:700,000) equity shares of LKR 10 each in Zomato Media (Private) Limited
(At cost less provision for other than temporary diminution in value 23.35 Mn. (3| March 2018: % 3.35 Mn))
55.72 .22
106,456 (31 March 2018:105,537) equity shares of CLP 5,000 each in Zomato Chile SpA
(At cost less provision for other than temporary diminution in value 2 55.72 Mn. (31 March 2018: 2 55.2 Mn.))
25819 23539
13,000 (31 March 2018:13,000) equity shares of AED 1,000 each in Zomato Middle East FZ - LLC
24371 o.10
4,040,363 (31 March 2018: 10,000) equity shares of INR 10 each in Zomato Internet Private Limited
2611.70 1,822.97
69,581 (31 March 2018:54,279) equity shares of INR 10 each in Carthero Technologies Private Limited#
30.00 -
19,038 (31 March 2018:NIL) equity shares of INR 10 each in Zomato Entertainment Private Limited
167.82 )
2,361 (31 March 2018:NIL) equity shares of INR 10 each in TongueStun Food Network Private Limited
12,095.68 10,438.51
Investment in Unquoted preference instruments (fully paid)
4,720 (31 March 2018: Nil) Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of 210 each fully paid in Tonguestun Food Network 951.01 -
951.01 -
Zomato Media WLL (98 (31 March 2018 : 98) equity share of QAR 1,000 each fully paid in Zomato Media WLL) 1.63 1.63
1.63 1.63
Investment in Optionally Convertible Debentures
67,984 (31 March 2018: Nil) Optionally Convertible Debentures of 21000 each fully paid in Vicinia Retail Private Limited 67.98 -

67.98
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5 Fi ial assets - Inv {Non-current) {Contd.) 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Investments at Cost (X Mn.} (X Mn.)
Investment in Preference Instruments
NIL (31 March 2018: 5,417) 0.00001% of Compulsority Convertible Preference Shares of 220 each fully paid in Grab A Grub
Services Private Limited - 90.66

2,553 (31 March 2018: 2,553) 0.01% of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of 210 each fully paid in Vicinia Retail
Private Limited 4.81 4.81

8,01,370 (31 March 2018:Nil) Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in Loyal Hospitality

Private Limited (At cost less provision for other than temporary diminution in value 2 330.00 Mn.) 330.00 -
334.81

Iny in Equity Instr t ~

10 (31 March 2018: Nif) Equity Shares of 210 each fully paid in Loyal Hospitality Private Limited (At cost less provision for

other than temporary diminution in value X 0.00 Mn.)*# 0.00 -

100 (31 March 2018: 100) Equity Shares of 210 each fully paid in Vicinia Retail Private Limited 0.19 0.19

0.19 0.19

Total of Non Current Investments 13,451.30 10,535.81
— e

Provision for impairment in value of investment 6,808.94 6.359.90

6,642.36 4,175.91
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 6,642.36 4,175.91
Aggregate provision for impairment in value of investments 6.808.94 6.359.90

# includes shares issued for consideration other than cash

* includes cost of stock options allocated to subsidiary companies for stock options given to employees of subsidiary companies

*# Investment value less than ¥ 10,000

** On Ist November 2018, the company entered into acquisition agreement for purchase of 100% shares of Tonguestun Food Network Private Limited (TFNPL), a non-listed company based in India. As at
March 31, 2019, the company had acquired 36.30 % of shareholding in TFNPL, however the company established control over TFNPL and has therefore concluded TFNPL to be its' subsidiary. Factors
considered for establishing control over TFNPL are;

- Control established through 100% control of the board upon st completion date being 22 November 2018

- Control over the operations of the company

- Presence of call option giving the Group present access to returns associated with ownership interest in the shares

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
6__ Financial assets - Investments (current) No. of Units {X Mn.) No. of Units (X Mn.

Investments at fair value through Profit & Loss
Quoted Mutual funds
Axis Liquid Fund - Direct - Growth 17.00,572 3.526.18 10,44.789 2.013.86
Aditya Birla Sun Life Floating Rate Fund- Long Term- Growth- Direct Plan - - 2578733 55527
Invesco India Ligquid Fund-Direct Plan Growth - - 14774 35.34
SBI-Magnum Insta Cash Fund-Direct Plan Growth - - 7.895 30.34
ICIC! Pru Liguid Fund - Direct Growth 1.71.27.418 4,734.30 - -
Franklin India Ultra Short Bond Fund Super Institutional Plan- Direct - Growth Plan - - 4445374 107.31
ICICI Prudential Flexible Income - Direct Plan Growth - - 16.57.257 55531
Kotak Low Duration Fund - Direct - Growth - - 2.53.695 555.79
Kotak Floater Short Term - Direct Plan Growth - - 7.06.048 2.013.62
Indiabulls Ultra Short Term Fund - Direct Plan Growth - USG1 - - 1.733 3.00
Aditya Birla Sun life Cash Plus-Direct Plan - Growth Direct Plan - - 98.736 27.58
Reliance Medium Term Fund- Direct Plan Growth Plan- Growth Option - - 1.49.37.493 555.71
Aditva Birla Sun Life Floating Rate Fund Short Term Plan- Growth- Direct Plan 1.54.69.284 4.647.53 75.15.574 1.743.50
HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct Growth 8.44.162 3,105.07 - -
Kotak Liquid Fund - Direct Growth 7.05.369 2,669.35 - -
SBI Liquid Fund - Direct Growth 9,08.320 2.660.08 - -

21,342.51 8,196.63
Aggregate amount of quoted investments (¥ Mn.) 21.342.51 8.196.63

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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7

Trade receivables

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Trade receivables
Total trade receivables

Break-up of trade receivables

Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good

Trade Receivables-credit impaired

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade Receivables-credit impaired

Total Trade receivables

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 90 days.

X Mn.) X Mn.)
626.63 190.49
626.63 190.49

31 March 2019
(X Mn.)

626.63
112.46
739.09

(112.46)
(112.46)
626.63

31 March 2018
—  (XMmn)

190.49
73.13
263.62

— (313

(73.13)
190.49

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies
respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

8 _Cash & cash equivalents

Balances with banks:
~ On current accounts

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

— Deposits with original maturity of less than three months
-- Restricted Cash held in separate accounts*

Cash on hand

X Mn.) (X Mn.)
1,124.23 390.58
150.00 -
0.82 0.44
1,275.05 391.02

* As per the directives of Reserve Bank of India, the Company operates all online payments received from customers through a Nodal account. Balance lying in such account is 2 170.14 Mn. (31 March 2018:
2 85.37 Mn.) and amount due to merchants is 2 694.98 Mn (31 March 2018: 2 86.72 Mn.) as at 31 March 2019, which is available for use by the Company is disclosed as "Restricted Cash held in separate
accounts” and balance as at Mar 31, 2019 which is payable has been disclosed under other current liability ' Money held in trust' in the financial statements.

At 31 March 2019, the Company had available ¥ 45.00 Mn. (31 March 2018; Z 45.00 Mn.) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

(X Mn.) (Z Mn.)
Balances with hanks:
— On current accounts 1.124.23 390.58
~ Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 150.00 -
-- Restricted Cash held in separate accounts - -
Cash on hand 0.82 0.44
1,275.03 391.02

9

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Other bank balances (X Mn.) (T Mn.)
Balances with hanks:
- Deposits with original maturity of more than three months 250.00 1.075.46
- Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months 58.11 451.62
— Margin money deposits 0.94 0.97
309.05 1.528.05
Amount disclosed as "Other financial asset" (59.05) (452.59)
250.00 1.075.46
Breakup of above-
Non-current 0.48 452.59
Current 249.52 1.075.46
Total 250.00 1.528.05

(This space hay been intentionally left blank)




Zomato Media Private Limited
Notes to standal fi ial stat ts for the year ended 31 March 2019
CIN : U93030DL2010PTC198141

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

10 Leans & Mn.) R Mn)
Unsecured, considered good
Loans and advances to related parties 41.62 0.20

41.62 0.20

Breakup of above-
Nen-current
Unsecured, considered good
Loans and advances to related parties - -
Total non-current Loans - -
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Loans and advances to related parties (Refer Note 32) 4]1.62 0.20
Total current Loans 41.62 0.20

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

* Margin money deposit includes pledged with municipal authorities of Z Nil ( 31 March 2018: Z 0.09 Mn.) and de

2018: % 0.88 Mn).

(This space has heen intentionally left blank)

11 Other financial assets (X Mn.) & Mn.)
Margin money deposits* 0.94 0.97
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months 58.11 451.62
Interest accrued on fixed deposit with banks 4.75 1181
Amount receivable on assignment of contract 3.426.52
Security deposits 126.36 78.56
Advances recoverable in cash or kind 9.22 3.54
Accrued Income 0.49 1.34

3,626.39 548.03
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful balances)
Unsecured, considered good - -
Doubtful - -
Total other financial asset 3.626.39 548.03
Breakup of above-
Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
Margin money deposits 0.94 0.97
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months 0.48 450.09
Interest accrued on fixed deposit 0.03 3.09
Security deposits 70.16 48.19
Total non-current financial assets 71.61 502.34
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months 57.63 1.53
Interest acerued on fixed deposits 4.72 872
Security deposit 56.20 3037
Amount receivable on assignment of contract 3.426.52 -
Advances recoverable in cash or kind 9.22 3.54
Accrued Income 0.49 1.54
Total current financial assets 3.554.78 45.70

posit with bank for visa guarantee charges in Dubai amounting to Z 0.94 Mn. (31 March
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31 March 2019 31 March 2018

11 _ Other financial assets (Contd.) X Mn.) (X Mn.)
Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost
Non-current
Investments (Refer Note 5) 6.569.38 4.170.91
Margin money deposits (Refer Note 11) 0.94 0.97
Security deposits {Refer Note 11) 70.16 48.19
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months (Refer Note 11) 0.48 450.09
Interest accrued on fixed deposit (Refer Note 1 1) 0.03 3.09
Total non-current financial assets carried at amortised cost 6.640.99 4,673.25
Current
Security deposit {Refer Note 11) 56.20 30.37
Trade receivables (Refer Note 7) 626.63 190.49
Cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 8) 1.275.05 391.02
Other bank balances (Refer Note 9) 250.00 1,075.46
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months (Refer Note 11) 57.63 1.53
Loans and advances to related parties (Refer Note 10) 41.62 .20
Advances recoverable in cash or kind (Refer Note 11) 922 3.54
Interest accrued on fixed deposits (Refer Note 11) 4.72 8.72
Amount receivable on assignment of contract (Refer Note 11) 3.426.52 -
Accrued Income (Refer Note 11) 0.49 1.54
Total current financial assets carried at amortised cost 5.748.07 1,702.87
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost 12,389.066 6376.12

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

12 Current tax assets X Mn.) X Mn.)
Advance tax / Tax deducted at source 161.17 84.40
84.40

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

# represents money lying with Payment gateway

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

13 Prepayments and other assets X Mn.) (X Mn)
Staff Imprest 1N 2.48
Advances to supplier 2.737.94 36.86
Prepaid expenses 103.71 24.46
Capital advances 1.85 1.05
Money held in trust 37333 276.73
Other advances 27.33 0.07
Balance with statutory/zovernment authorities 577.81 76.49

3,833.08 418.14
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful balances)
Unsecured, considered good - -
Doubtful (9.06) (8.51)
Total Prepayments 3.824.02 409.63
Breakup of above-
Non-Current
Prepaid expenses 29.87 3.52
Capital advances 1.85 1.05
Total non-current 31.72 4.57
Current
Staff Imprest 1111 2.48
Less:- Allowance for doubtful imprest (0.73) 1038 (0.73) 1.75
Advances to supplier . 2,737.94 36.86
Less:- Allowance for doubtful advances (8.33) 2.729.61 (1.78) 29.08
Prepaid expenses 73.84 20.94
Other advances 27.33 0.07
Money held in trust # 702.80 327.41
Less : liabilities asainst money held in trust (329.47) 37333 (50.68) 276.73
Balance with statutorv/zovernment authorities 571.81 76.49
Total current 3.792.30 405.06



Zomato Media Private Limited
Notes to standal financial st:
CIN : U93030DL2010PTC198141

for the year ended 31 March 2019

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

14 Share capital

Authorised Share Capital

(X Mn.) (X Mn.)
600.000 (31 March 2018: 600.000) equity shares of 1 each 0.60 0.60
188,587 (31 March 2018: 188,587) 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of 210 each - Class A,B,Cand D 1.89 1.89
930,551,391 (31st March 2018: 930,551,391) 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of 2 1 each - Class E 930.55 930.55
190,653,540 (3 1st March 2018: 190,653,540) 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Z 2 each - Class F 381.31 381.31
10,885 (31 March 2018: 10,885) 0.00000015% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of 26,700 each - Class G 72.93 72.93
83,425 (31 March 2018: 83,425) 0.00000015% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of 6,700 each - Class H 558.95 558.95

1,16,350 (31 March 2018: Nil) 0.00000015% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of 36,700 each - Class I

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
337,694 (31 March 2018: 337,694) equity shares of ¥ I each

Less: 41.766 (31 March 2018 : 41,766) Shares held by ESOP Trust as at the year end of % 1 each *

Instruments entirely equity in nature

78,791 (31 March 2018: 78,791) 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of 210 each - Class A

16,396 (31 March 2018: 16,396) 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of 210 each - Class B

13,664 (31 March 2018:13,664) 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of 210 each - Class C

28,460 (31 March 2018: 28,460) 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of 210 each - Class D
729,192,849 (31 March 2018: 729,192,849) 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Z 1 each - Class E
190,653,540 (31 March 2018: 190,653,540) 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of 2 2 each - Class F

10,885 (31 March 2018: 10,885) 0.00000015% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of 26700 each - Class (€
83,425 (31 March 2018: 83,425) 0.00000015% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of 26700 each - Class H
1,03.500 (31 March 2018: NIL) 0.00000015% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of 26700 each - Class [

779.55

2,725.78

0.34
0.04

—_— 030

0.79
0.17
0.13
0.28
729.19
381.31
72.93
558.95
693.45

2,437.20

1,946.23

0.34
0.04
— 030

0.79
0.17
0.13
0.28
729.19
381.31
72.93
558.95

1,743.75

* Includes 27,089 shares transferred by Deepinder Goyal to the trust on October 25, 2014 without cash consideration and 14,677 shares purchased @ Rs. | from Zomato Media Private Limited. The shares are

Iying in the custody of the trustee.

** In previous year Zomato Media Private Limited (ZMPL) had acquired Carthero Technologies Private limited (CTPL) by way of swap share i.e. 10,885 CCCPS of ZMPL issued in lieu of 36,808 CCPS and

2,798 equity share of CTPL for non-cash consideration.

a) Reconciliation of the shares Jing at the b and at the end of the reporting year
Equity shares
) 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

No. (X Mn,) No. (T Mn.)
At the beginning of the year 3,37,694 0.34 3,07.616 031
Issued during the year /CCCPS/CCPS converted to Equity Shares - - 30,078 0.03
Outstanding at the end of the year 3,37,694 0.34 3,37,694 0.34
Less: Shares held by ESOP Trust as at the year end 41,766 0.04 41,766 0.04
Outstanding at the end of the year 2,95,928 0.30 2,95,928 0.30

(This space has been intentionally left hlank)
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Instr entirely equity in nature (CCCPS- Class A,B,C,D.G.H &)
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
No. (T Mn.) No. (T Mn,)
At the beginning of the year- Class A 78,791 0.79 78,791 0.79
At the beginning of the year- Class B 16,396 0.16 32,791 0.33
At the beginning of the year- Class C 13,664 0.14 27,327 027
At the beginning of the year- Class D 28,460 0.28 28,460 0.28
At the beginning of the year- Class G ‘ 10,885 72.93 10,885 72.93
At the beginning of the year- Class H 83,425 558.95 83,425 55895
Converted to Equity during the year - Class B - - (16,395) 0.16)
Converted to Equity during the year - Class C - - {13,663) (0.14)
Issued during the year- Class 1 1,03,500 693.45 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 2,31,621 633,25 2,31,621 633.25
Instr ts entirely equity in nature (CCPS- Class E&F)
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
No. & Mn.) No. X Mn.)

At the beginning of the year- Class E 72,91,92,849 729.19 93,05,51,391 930.55
At the beginning of the year- Class F 19,06,53,540 381.31 19,06,53,540 381.31
Converted to Equity during the year - Class E - - {20,13,58,542) (201.36)
Outstanding at the end of the year 91,98,46,389 1,110.50 91,98,46,389 1,110.50

b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 2 1 per share. Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholder.

¢) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCCPS- Class A

(1) During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company issued 78,791 CCCPS-Class A, of X10 each fully paid-up at a premium of 326,970 per share. CCCPS carry cumulative dividend @ 0.0001% p.a. The
company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The preferential dividend is cumulative and shall accrue from year to year whether paid or not paid. All accrued dividends shall be paid in full (together
with dividends accrued from prior years) prior to and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon shares of any other class or series in the same financial year, In addition to and after payment of
the preference dividend, each CCCPS would be entitled to participate pari-passu in any cash or non-cash dividend paid to the holders of share of any other class (including ordinary share) or series on a pro-
rata as if converted basis. Subject to the applicable laws, the CCCPS holder shall be entitled to receive notice of and vote on all matters that are submitted to the vote of the shareholders of the company
(including the ordinary shares). Each CCCPS shall entitle the holder to the number of votes equal to the number of whole or fractional ordinary shares into which such CCCPS could then be converted.

(i) Each holder of CCCPS are entitled to convert the CCCPS into ordinary shares at any time at the option of the holder of the CCCPS or subject to the compliance of applicable laws each CCCPS
automatically be converted into ordinary share, at the conversion price then in effect, npon the eartier of (i) one day prior to the expiry of 20 years from the allotment or (ii) in connection with a listing (or any
listing of shares), prior to the filing of prospectus (or equivalent document by whatever name called) by the Company to the competent authority or such later date as may be applicable under applicable laws.
(iti) In the event of the liquidation of the company, total proceeds from the such liquidation, shall be distributed first to the holders of CCCPS, until the holders have received the minimum return.

(iv) The company will issue ordinary share pursuant to the conversion of any CCCPS shall be that number obtained by dividing the total amount actually paid by the holder of CCCPS by the applicable
conversion price at the time in effect for such CCCPS which will be as per provision of clause 75 of Article of Association. No fractional share shall be issued upon conversion of CCCPS and number of
ordinary share to be issued shall be rounded to the nearest whole share.

d) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCCPS- Class B

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company issued 32,791 CCCPS- Class B, of 10 each fully paid-up at a premium of 397,703 per share. CCCPS carry cumulative dividend @ 0.0001% p.a. The
company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The preferential dividend is cumulative and shall accrue from vear to year whether paid or not paid. All accrued dividends shall be paid in full (together
with dividends accrued from prior years) prior to and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon shares of any other class o series in the same financial year. In addition to and after payment of
the preference dividend, each CCCPS would be entitled to participate pari-passu in any cash or non-cash dividend paid to the holders of share of any other class (including ordinary share) or series on a pro-
rata as if converted basis. Subject to the applicable laws, the CCCPS holder shall be entitled to receive notice of and vote on all matters that are submitted to the vote of the shareholders of the company
(including the ordinary shares). Each CCCPS shall entitle the holder to the number of votes equal to the number of whole or fractional ordinary shares into which such CCCPS could then be converted.

(ii) Each holder of CCCPS are entitled to convert the CCCPS into ordinary shares at any time at the option of the holder of the CCCPS or subject to the compliance of applicable laws each CCCPS
automatically be converted into ordinary share, at the conversion price then in effect, upon the earlier of (i) one day prior to the expiry of 20 years from the allotment or (i) in connection with a listing (or any
listing of shares), prior to the filing of prospectus (or equivalent document by whatever name called) by the Company to the competent authority or such later date as may be applicable under applicable laws.
(iii) In the event of the tiquidation of the company, total proceeds from the such liquidation, shall be distributed first to the holders of CCCPS, until the holders have received the minimum return.

(iv) The company will issue ordinary share pursuant to the conversion of any CCCPS shall be that number obtained by dividing the total amount actually paid by the holder of CCCPS by the applicable
conversion price at the time in effect for such CCCPS which will be as per provision of clause 76 of Article of Association. No fractional share shall be issued upon conversion of CCCPS and number of
ordinary share to be issued shall be rounded to the nearest whole share.

(This spuce has been intentionally lefi blank)
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e) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCCPS- Class C

(1) During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company issued 27,327 CCCPS- Class C, of 10 each fully paid-up at a premium of 113,729 per share. CCCPS carry cumulative dividend @ 0.0001% p.a. The
company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The preferential dividend is cumulative and shall accrue from year to year whether paid or not paid. All accrued dividends shall be paid in full (together
with dividends accrued from prior years) prior to and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon shares of any other class or series in the same financial year.

(i1) Each holder of CCCPS are entitled to convert the CCCPS into equity shares at any time at the option of the holder of the CCCPS subject to the compliance of applicable laws each CCCPS automatically
be converted into equity share, at the conversion price then in effect, upon the earlier of (i) one day prior to the expiry of 20 years from the allotment or (ii) in connection with a listing (or any listing of shares),
prior to the filing of prospectus (or equivalent document by whatever name called) by the Company to the competent authority or such later date as may be applicable under applicable laws. Each CCCPS shall
be converted into Ordinary Shares at the conversion price determined as per detailed terms and conditions of CCCPS.

(iii) The conversion price of each CCCPS to be updated at the time of closing and shall be subject to adjustments from time to time as provided herein, including as provided for furtherance of the Articles.
Any adjustments of the conversion prices applicable fonin time to time, shall be documented by the Board and notify to the holders of CCCPS.

f) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCCPS- Class D

(1) During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company issued 28,460 CCCPS- Class D, of 210 each fully paid-up at a premium of 21,36,386 per share. CCCPS carry cumulative dividend @ 0.0001% p.a.
The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The Preferential Dividend is cumulative and shall accrue from year to year whether or not paid, and accrued dividends shall be paid in full (together
with dividends accrued from prior years) pari passu with the preferential dividend on the CCCPS but prior and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon Shares of any other class or series in
the same fiscal year.

(ii) In addition to and after payment of the Preferential Dividend, each CCCPS would be entitled to participate pari passu in any cash or non-cash dividends paid to the holders of shares of any other class
(including Ordinary Shares) or series on a pro rata, on a Fully Diluted Basis.

(iii) No dividend or distribution shall be paid on any Share of any class or series of the Company if and to the extent that as a consequence of such dividend or distribution any CCCPS would be entitled to a
dividend hereunder greater than the maximum amount permitted to be paid in respect of CCCPS of an Indian company held by a non-resident under applicable Laws (including without limitation, the Foreign
Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue of Security by a Person Resident Outside India), Regulations, 2000).

(iv) The holders of the CCCPS shalil be entitled to vote on all matters that are submitted to the vote of the Shareholders of the Company (including the holders of Ordinary Shares). Subscribers of the CCCPS
will be able to exercise voting rights on the Class D CCCPS as if the same were converted into Ordinary Shares. Each CCCPS shall entitle the holder to the number of votes equal to the number of whole or
fractional Ordinary Shares into which such CCCPS could then be converted.

g) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCPS- Class E

(1) During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company issued 930,551,391 Class E CCPS of 2! each as bonus shares credited as fully paid-up to the eligible preference shareholders whose name appear in
the Register of Members/Beneficial Owners position of the Company on 31 March 2017 in the proportion of 1 : 6699 i.e. 6699 new shares have been issued for every 1 share of the Company held as on 30
March 2017.

(ii) Class E CCPS carry preferential dividend @ 0.0001% p.a. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The Preferential Dividend is non-cumulative and dividends shall be paid pari passu
with the preferential dividend on the other existing preference shares of all classes, but prior and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon the Ordinary Shares in the same fiscal year.

(i) Class E CCPS would not be entitled to participate in any cash or non-cash dividends paid to the holders of shares of any other class (including Ordinary Shares) or series.

(iv) No dividend or distribution shall be paid on any Share of any class or seties of the Company if and to the extent that as a consequence of such dividend or distribution any Class E CCPS would be entitied
fo a dividend hereunder greater than the maximum amount permitted to be paid in respect of CCPS of an Indian company held by a non-resident under applicable Laws (including without limitation, the
Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue of Security by a Person Resident Outside India), Regulations, 2000).

(v) The holders of the Class E CCPS shall not be entitled to any voting rights.

(vi) Class E CCPS shall only be transferable alony with the existing Class A CCCPS, Class B CCCPS and Class C CCCPS in proportion of bonus issuance of CCPS Class E.

{vii) Class E CCPS will not be transferable on standalone basis.

(viii) Class E-CCPS shall not be entitled to any liquidation preference.

(ix) Class E-CCPS shall be converted to Ordinary Shares in the ratio of 1:0.0000001 (10,000,000 Class E CCPS to convert into 1 Ordinary Share) in the following events; 1) upon the earlier of conversion of
0.0001% CCCPS, Class B-CCCPS, or Class C- CCCPS in proportion of such conversion; or 2) 1 day prior to expiry of 20 years from the date of all , or 3) cc of liquidation proceedings of
the Company, or 4) Dissolution or winding up of the affairs, business or asset of the Company.

h} Ferms of conversion/redemption of CCPS- Class F

(1) During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company issued 190,653,540 Class F CCPS, of 22 each as bonus shares credited as fully paid-up to the eligible preference shareholders whose name appear in
the Register of Members/Beneficial Owners position of the Company on 31 March 2017 in the proportion of 1 : 6699 i.e. 6699 new shares have been issued for every | share of the Company held as on 30
March 2017.

(i) Class F - CCPS carry preferential dividend @ 0.0001% p.a. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The Preferential Dividend is non-cumulative and dividends shall be paid pari passu
with the preferential dividend on the Class D - CCCPS, but prior and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon Ordinary Shares in the same fiscal year.

(iif) Class F CCPS shall not be entitled to participate in any cash or non-cash dividends paid to the holders of shares of any other class (including Ordinary Shares) or series.

(iv) No dividend or distribution shall be paid on any Share of any class or series of the Company if and to the extent that as a consequence of such dividend or distribution any Class F CCPS would be entitled
to a dividend hereunder yreater than the maximum amount permitted to be paid in respect of CCPS of an Indian company held by a non-resident under applicable Laws (including without limitation, the
Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue of Security by a Person Resident Outside India), Regulations, 2000).

(This space hay been intentionally left blank)
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h) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCPS- Class F

(v) The holders of the Class F - CCPS shall not be entitled to any voting rights.

(vi) Class F - CCPS shall only be transferable along with the existing Class D CCCPS in proportion of bonus issuance of Class F CCPS.

(vii) These shares will not be transferable on standalone basis.

(viti) Class F-CCPS shall not be entitled to any liquidation preference.

(ix) Class F-CCPS shall be converted to Ordinary Shares in the ratio of 1:0.0000001 (10,000,000 Class F CCPS to convert into | Ordinary Share) in the following events; 1) upon the earlier of conversion of
0.0001% CCCPS, Class B-CCCPS, or Class C- CCCPS in proportion of such conversion; or 2) 1 day prior to expiry of 20 years from the date of allotment; or 3) commencement of liquidation proceedings of
the Company, or 4) Dissolution or winding up of the affairs, business or asset of the Company.

i) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCCPS- Class G

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company issued 10,885 CCCPS- Class G, of 26700 each fully paid-up at a premium of 2112,181 per share. CCCPS carry cumulative dividend @ 0.00000015%
p-a. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The preferential dividend is cumulative and shall accrue from year to year whether paid or not paid. All accrued dividends shall be paid in full
(together with dividends accrued from prior years) pari passu with the preferential dividend on CCCPS and CCCPS but prior and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon shares of any other
class or series in the same fiscal year. In addition to and after payment of the preference dividend, each CCCPS would be entitled to participate pari-passu in any cash or non-cash dividend paid to the holders
of share of any other class (including ordinary share) or series on a pro-rata as if fully diluted basis. Subject to the applicable laws, the CCCPS holder shall be entitled to receive notice of and vote on all
matters that are submitted to the vote of the shareholders of the company (including the ordinary shares). Each CCCPS shall entitle the holder to the number of votes equal to the number of whole or fractional
ordinary shares into which such CCCPS could then be converted.

(ii) Each holder of CCCPS are entitled to convert the CCCPS into ordinary shares at any time at the option of the holder of the CCCPS or subject to the compliance of applicable laws each CCCPS
automatically be converted into ordinary share, at the conversion ratio then in effect, upon the earlier of (i) one day prior to the expiry of 20 years from the all or (i) in tion with a listing (or any
listing of shares), prior to the filing of prospectus (or equivalent document by whatever name called) by the Company with the competent authority or such later date as may be permitted under applicable laws.
(iti) In the event of the liquidation of the company, total proceeds from the such liquidation, shall be distributed to the holders in the manner provided in Articles of Association of the Company and
Shareholders Agreement.

(i) The company will issue ordinary share pursuant to the conversion of any CCCPS shall be that number obtained by multiplying the total number of CCCPS held by the holder of CCCPS with the applicable
conversion ratio at the time in effect for such CCCPS which will be as per provision of clause 81 of Article of Association. No fractional share shall be issued upon conversion of CCCPS and number of
ordinary share to be issued shall be rounded to the nearest whole share,

) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCCPS- Class H

(1) During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company issued 83,425 CCCPS- Class H, of 36700 each fully paid-up at a premium of 109,567.19 (rounded off) per share. CCCPS carry cumulative dividend
@ 0.00000015% p.a. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The preferential dividend is cumulative and shall accrue from year to year whether paid or not paid. All accrued dividends
shall be paid in full (together with dividends accrued from prior years) pari passu with the preferential dividend on CCCPS and CCCPS but prior and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon
shares of any other class or series in the same fiscal year. In addition to and after payment of the preference dividend, each CCCPS would be entitled to participate pari-passu in any cash or non-cash dividend
paid to the holders of share of any other class (including ordinary share) or series on a pro-rata on a fully diluted basis. Subject to the applicable laws, the CCCPS holder shall be entitied to receive notice of
and vote on all matters that are submitted to the vote of the shareholders of the company (including the ordinary shares). Each CCCPS shall entitle the holder to the number of votes equal to the number of
whole or fractional ordinary shares into which such CCCPS could then be converted,

(i1) Each holder of CCCPS are entitled to convert the CCCPS into ordinary shares at any time at the option of the holder of the CCCPS or subject to the compliance of applicable laws each CCCPS
automatically be converted into ordinary share, at the conversion ratio then in effect, upon the earlier of (1) one day prior to the expiry of 20 years from the allotment or (ii) in connection with a listing (or any
listing of shares), prior to the filing of prospectus (or equivalent document by whatever name called) by the Company with the competent authority or such later date as may be permitted under applicable laws.
(iii) In the event of the liquidation of the company, total proceeds from the such liquidation, shall be distributed to the holders in the manner provided in Articles of Association of the Company and
Shareholders Agreement dated February 01, 2018.

(iv) The company will issue ordinary share pursuant to the conversion of any CCCPS shall be that number obtained by multiplying the total number of CCCPS held by the holder of CCCPS with the applicable
conversion ratio at the time in effect for such CCCPS which will be as per provision of clause 82 of Article of Association. No fractional share shall be issued upon conversion of CCCPS and number of
ordinary share to be issued shall be rounded to the nearest whole share.

k) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCCPS- Class 1

(1) During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company issued 1,03,500 CCCPS- Class I, of 36700 each fully paid-up at a premium of 212,090.93 (rounded off) per share. CCCPS carry cumulative dividend
@ 0.00000015% p.a. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The preferential dividend is cumulative and shall accrue from year to year whether paid or not paid. All accrued dividends
shall be paid in full (together with dividends accrued from prior years) pari passu with the preferential dividend on CCCPS and CCCPS but prior and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon
shares of any other class or series in the same fiscal year. In addition to and after payment of the preference dividend, each CCCPS would be entitled to participate pari-passu in any cash or non-cash dividend
paid to the holders of share of any other class (including ordinary share) or series on a pro-rata on a fully diluted basis. Subject to the applicable laws, the CCCPS holder shall be entitled to receive notice of
and vote on all matters that are submitted to the vote of the shareholders of the company (including the ordinary shares). Each CCCPS shall entitle the holder to the number of votes equal to the number of
whole or fractional ordinary shares into which such CCCPS could then be converted.

(1) Each holder of CCCPS are entitled to convert the CCCPS into ordinary shares at any time at the option of the holder of the CCCPS or subject to the compliance of applicable laws each CCCPS
automatically be converted into ordinary share, at the conversion ratio then in effect, upon the earlier of (i) one day prior to the expiry of 20 years from the allotment or (ii) in connection with a listing (or any
listing of shares), prior to the filing of prospectus (or equivalent document by whatever name called) by the Company with the competent authority or such later date as may be permitted under applicable laws.
(iii) In the event of the liquidation of the company, total proceeds from the such liquidation, shall be distributed to the holders in the manner provided in Articles of Association of the Company and
Shareholders Agreement dated October 12, 2018

(iv) The company will issue ordinary share pursuant to the conversion of any CCCPS shall be that number obtained by multiplying the total number of CCCPS held by the holder of CCCPS with the applicable
conversion ratio at the time in effect for such CCCPS which will be as per provision of clause 83 of Article of Association. No fractional share shall be issued upon conversion of CCCPS and number of
ordinary share to be issued shall be rounded to the nearest whole share.
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1) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Equity shares of ¥ 1 each fully paid

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Name of Shareholder No. % of Holding Na. % of Holding

Info Edge (India) Limited 1,64,451 48.70% 1,64,451 48.70%
Mr. Deepinder Goyal, Director 61,245 18.14% 61,245 18.14%
Mr. Pankaj Chaddah, Director 13,916 4.12% 20,416 6.05%
Foodiebay Employees ESOP Trust 41,766 12.37% 41,766 12.37%
Alipay Singapore Holding Pte Ltd 32,629 9.66% - 0.00%
Naukri Internet Services Limited 728 0.22% 33,357 9.88%

Instruments entirely equity in nature
CCCPS of 210 each fully paid- Class A

Name of Shareholder

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Ne. % of Holding No. % of Holding
Info Edge (India) Limited 21,225 26.94% 21,225 26.94%
SCI Growth Investments 11 57,566 73.06% 57,566 73.06%

CCCPS of 210 each fully paid- Class B

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Name of Shareholder Ne. % of Holding Ne. % of Holding
Sequoia Capital India Growth Investment Holding T 4,099 25.00% 4,099 25.00%
VY Investments Mauritius Limited 12,297 75.00% 12,297 75.00%

CCCPS of 210 each fully paid- Class C

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Name of Shareholder No. % of Holding No. % of Holding
Sequoia Capital India Growth Investment Holding [ 9,291 68.00% 9,291 68.00%
VY Investments Mauritius Limited 3,826 28.00% 3,826 28.00%

CCCPS of 10 each fully paid- Class D

Name of Shareholder

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

No. % of Holding Ne. % of Holding
VY Investments Mauritius Limited 5,732 20.14% 5,732 20.14%
Dunearn Investments (Mauritius) Pte Ltd. 22,728 79.86% 22,728 79.86%

CCPS of %1 each fully paid- Class E

Name of Shareholder

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

No. % of Holding No. % of Holding
SCI Growth Investments II 38,56,34.634 52.89% 38,56,34,634 52.89%
Info Edee (India) Limited 14,21,86,275 19.50% 14,21.86,275 19.50%
VY Investments Mauritius Limited 10,80,07,977 14.81% 10,80,07,977 14.81%
Sequoia Capital India Growth Investment Holdings 1 8,96,99.610 12.30% 8,96,99,610 12.30%

CCPS of %2 each fully paid- Class F

Name of Shareholder

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

No. % of Holding No. % of Holding
Dunearn Investments (Mauritius) Pte Ltd. 15,22,54.872 79.86% 15,22,54,872 79.86%
VY Investments Mauritius Limited 3,83,98,668 20.14% 3,83,98,668 20.14%

CCCPS 0f %6,700 each fully paid- Class G

Name of Sharehelder

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

No. % of Holding No. % of Holding
Nexus Ventures I Ltd. 6,347 58.31% 6,347 58.31%
Sequoia Capital India Investments IV 2,154 19.79% 2,154 19.79%
Blume Ventures Fund II (Mauritius) 1,160 10.66% 1,160 10.66%

CCCPS 0f 26,700 each fully paid- Class H

Name of Shareholder

31 March 2019
No. % of Holding

31 March 2018
No. % of Holding

Alipay Singapore Holding Pte. Ltd.

CCCPS of 6,700 each fully paid- Class I

83,425 100.00%

83,425 100.00%

Name of Shareholder

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

No. %o of Holdin No. % of Holding
Antfin Singapore Holding Pte. Ltd. 70,350 67.97% - -
Glade Brook Private Investors XVII LP 13,000 12.56% - -
Delivery Hero SE 16,000 15.46% - -

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders re

beneficial ownership of shares.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

garding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and
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for the year ended 31 March 2019

14 Share capital (Contd.}

m) In the period of five years inmediately preceding March 31, 2019:

a) The Company had allotted 93,05,51,391 fully paid-up shares of face value 21/~ each and 19,06,53,540 fully paid shares of face value 32/- each during the year ended March 31, 2017 to existing CCCPS

holders, pursuant to bonus issue approved by the board of directors.

b) The Company had allotted 10,885 fully paid up shares of face value ¥6700/- each during the year ended March 31, 2018 pursuant to acquisition of Carthero Technologies Private limited (CTPL) by way of

swap share i.e. 10,885 CCCPS of the company issued lieu of 36,808 CCPS and 2,798 equity share of CTPL for non-cash consideration

n) Shared reserved for issue under options
For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option (ESOP) plan of the company, please refer note 30

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

15 (a) Other equity (X Mn.} X Mn.)
Capital reserve
Balance as per the last financial statements 26.10 26.10
Add: Transfer during the year - -
26.10 26,10
Securities Premium
Balance as per the last financial statements 22.393.65 11,839.99
Add: premium on issue of Class G CCCPS - 1.221.09
Add: premium on issue of Class H CCCPS - 9.140.64
Add: premium on conversion of Class E bonus shares into equity shares - 201.36
Add: premium on conversion of Class B & C CCCPS into equity shares - 027
Add: premium on issue of Class I CCCPS 21.951.41 -
Less: Transaction cost on issuance of CCCPS (22.64) {9.70)
44,322.42 22.393.65
Employee Stock Options Outstanding
Balance as per the Jast financial statements 724.34 586.12
Add: Employee stock option expense 630.70 437
Add: Employee stock option expense allocated to subsidiary companies 368.96 9451
1,724.00 724.34
Retained earnings
Balance as per last financial statements (10.705.54) (9.920.71)
Add: Loss durins the vear (5.705.27) (784.93)
Add: Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (4.60) 0.10
Net deficit in the statement of profit and loss {16,415.41) {10,705.54)
Items of Other Comprehensive Income
Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translational Difference Account (12.26) 8.85
(12.26) 8.85
Total 29.644.85 12.447.40

15 {b) Nature and purpose of reserves :

Capital Reserve
The Company recognizes profit or loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments to capital reserve

Securities premium

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013.

Foreign currency translation reserve

Exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign operations are recognised in other comprehensive income as described in accounting policy and accumulated in a separate reserve within equity. The

cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss when the net investment is disposed-off.

Share based payment reserve
The share options based payment reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under Employee stock option plan.

(This space has heen intentionally left blank)
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16 Trade payables X Mn.) X Mn.
Trade pavables (refer note 35 for details of dues to micro and small enterprises) 2978.12 54581
978. 545.81
Breakup of above-
Non-current - 2532
Current 2,878.12 520.49
Total YT s

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 0-60 days terms.
For explanations on the Company’s credit risk management processes, refer to note 33,

19 Other non-current Liabilities

Uneamed Revenue
Total

31 March 2019
(X Mn.)

31 March 2018
(X Mn.)

489.60

489.60

17 Provision for emplovee benefits

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Provisions for gratuity (Refer Note 29)
Provisions for compensated absences

Total

Breakup of above:
Neon-current
Provisions for gratuity

Provisions for compensated absences

Total

Current
Provisions for gratuity

Provisions for compensated absences

Total

Movement in above balances:

As at 31 March 2017

Arising during the year

Utilised

Remeasurement gains/(losses) on liability

As at 31 March 2018

Arising during the year

Utilised

Remeasurement gains/(losses) on Liability

As at 31 March 2019

X Mn.) (X Mn.)
86.92 66.00
45.40 841

132.32 74.41
76.55 5574
32.85 1.36

109.40 57.10
10.37 10.26
12,55 7.05
22.92 17,31

Gratuity Compensated absences

68.62 9.30
6.16 0.57
(8.68) (1.46)
0.10) -
66.00 8.41
3273 38.02
(16.41) (1.03)
4.60 -
86.92 45.40

18 Other financial liabilities

Capital creditors

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Deferred Compensation on acquisition of subsidiary

Breakup of above:
Current
Capital creditors

Deferred Compensation on acquisition of subsidiary

Total

X Mn.) (¥ Mn.}
21.81 0.89
586.53 -
608.34 0.89
21.81 0.89
586.53 -
608.34 0.89

19 Other current liabilities

Unearned revenue

Advances from customners

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Money held in trust (payable to merchants)
Less: asset ayainst moneyv held in trust (payable to merchants)

Statutory dues

Provident fund payable

Employee state insurance payable

Professional tax payable

Tax deducted at source payable

Equalisation levy payable

Others

(This spuce has been intentionally left hlunk)

694.98
(170.14)

(X Mn) @ Mn)_
790.81 241.76
157.07 39.07

86.72
524.84 (85.37) 1.35
14.97 6.99
0.05 0.09
0.48 0.10
180.14 2132
- 323
436 0.15
314.06

1,672.72
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31 March 2019 31 March 2018
20. Revenue from operations (X Mn.) (X Mn.)
Sale of services 11,308.16 3.664.50
Royalty income 120.39 45.80
Other operating revenue
Income from provision of platform and food delivery services 162.86 -
11,591.41 3,710.30

Impact of application of Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 on Revenue from Contracts with Customers, using the modified retrospective approach. The standard is applied
retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed as at the date of initial application and comparative information is not restated in the statement
of profit and loss. The adoption of the standard did not have any material impact on the recognition and measurement of revenue and related items in the
financial statements/results.

Timing of rendering of services

March 31, 2019

Revenue from Services Royalty Income Others Total
Services rendered at a point in time 8,441.60 120.39 162.86 8,724.85
Services rendered over time 2,866.56 - - 2.866.56
Total Revenue from Contract with customers 11,308.16 120.39 162.86 11,591.41

Contract Balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contracts assets, and contract liabilities from contracts with customers.

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Trade Receivables (Unconditional right to consideration) 626.63 190.49
Contract assets (Refer note 1 below) 0.49 1.54
Contract liabilities (Refer note 2 below) 1,437.48 522.60
Notes:

1. The contract assets primarily relate to the Company’s rights to consideration for work completed but not billed at the reporting date. The contract
assets are transferred to the receivables when the rights become unconditional.

2. Contract liability relates to payments received in advance of performance and deferred sales revenue against which amount has been received from
customer but services are yet to be rendered on the reporting date either in full or in parts. Contract liabilities are recognized evenly over the period of
service, being performance obligation of the Company. .

The allowance for doubtful accounts as of March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 and changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts during the financial
year, were as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Opening Balance 73.13 27.53
Add: Bad Debt expenses 58.85 49.12
Less: write offs, net of recoveries (19.52) (3.52)
Closing Balance 112.46 73.13

Contract liabilities consist of deferred revenue. which is recorded when the company has received consideration in advance of transferring the
performance obligations under the contract to the customer.

Changes in deferred revenue during the years ended March 31. 2019 and March 31, 2018 were as follows

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Opening Balance 241.76 127.96
Add: Revenue deferred 1.280.41 241.76
Less: Revenue recognized 235.59 118.47
Less: Cumulative catch-up adjustments to revenue due to a contract modification or foreign

exchange difference 6.18 9.49

Closing Balance 1,280.41 241.76
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20. Revenue from operations (Contd.)
The following table shows the estimated revenue from deferred revenue included in our contract liability balances expected to be recognized in future

period:

Particulars

31 March 2019

To be recognised in Financial Year 2019-20 790.81
To be recognised in Financial Year 2020-21 237.56
To be recognised in Financial Year 2021-22 and after 252.04
Closing Balance 1,280.41
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
21. Other income (¥ Mn.) ' (Z Mn.)
Interest income on
-Bank deposits 117.87 55.18
-Income tax refund - 0.01
-Others 16.20 6.49
Net gain on sale of current investments 339.45 27.85
Gain on sale of Non current nvestment 4734 -
Fair value gain on Investment at fair value through profit and loss 208.00 67.27
Liabilities written back 5.29 0.67
Excess provision written back 3.58 13.89
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (Net) 0.45 1.41
Income from cross charge to affiliates 1,174.11 -
Others 1.00 1.48
1,913.29 174.25

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

22. Employee benefits expense X Mn.) (¥ Mn.)
Salaries, wages and bonus 3,206.38 1,783.08
Contribution to provident fund and other funds * 80.70 43.58
Share Based Payment Expense (Refer Note 30) 630.70 43.71
Gratuity expenses (Refer Note - 29) 34.77 18.92
Staff welfare expenses 136.41 59.85

4,088.96 1,949.14

* Defined contribution plan

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

23. Finance costs (¥ Mn.) (X Mn.)

Interest

- Bank Charges 10.01 6.72

- to others - 0.03

Others

-Payment Gateway Charges 573.62 233.90

-Other Charges 1.13 0.65

584.76 241.30

31 March 2019 °

31 March 2018

24. Depreciation and amortization expense (X Mn.) (X Mn.)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 95.27 114.94
Amortization of intangible assets 4.81 10.15

100.08 125.09
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31 March 2019

31 March 2018

25. Other Expenses X Mn.) (T Mn.)
Power & fuel 25.44 21.53
Rent 338.57 22324
Rates and taxes 20.76 20.76
Repairs and maintenance 72.30 48.51
Advertisement and sales promotion 12.136.16 800.06
Travelling and conveyance 389.82 123.91
Server and communication cost 417.53 196.35
IT Support Services 472.76 149.67
Recruitment cost 72.35 7.93
Insurance 3.89 1.69
Commission and brokerage 4.09 1.45
Printing and stationary 0.78 7.53
Security expense 42.81 7.72
Legal and professional fee 559.50 187.08
Fees and subscriptions 0.03 0.12
Payment to auditors (refer detail below) 6.64 5.82
Bad debts written off 20.15 11.40
Less: Bad Debts against opening provision (19.52) 0.63 (3.52) 7.88
Postage and Courier Cost 12.17 5.62
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 57.76 53.96
Fixed Assets Written Off - 0.01
Outsourced support cost 11.657.22 394 .41
Foreign exchange loss (net) 0.44 15.42
Miscellaneous expenses 24.68 6.28

26,316.33 2,286.95

A. Payment to auditor

As auditor

- Audit fee
In other capacity

- Other services
Reimbursement of expenses

31 March 2019
(X Mn.)

6.30

0.33
0.01
6.64

31 March 2018
(R Mn.)

5.00

0.38
0.44

5.82

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

26. Exceptional items (X Mn.) (R Mn.)
Income on assignment of Contracts 8,880.94 -
Fair Value of deferred consideration on assignment of Contracts 2,219.10 -
Fair Value of contingent consideration on assignment of Contracts 1,210.68 -
Interest Income on Fair Value of deferred consideration on assignment of Contracts 18.48
Less: Provision for diminution in value of investments in subsidiary & Associate companies (449.04) (67.00)

11,880.16 (67.00)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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27. Earning per Equity Share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the year.
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations.

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

X Mn,) & Mn.)
Loss attributable to equity holders of the company (5.705.27) (784.93)
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS 3,37,694 3,12,066
Basic and diluted loss per share * (0.02) (0.00)

There are potential equity shares as on 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019 in the form of CCCPS and Stock Options issued. As these are antidilutive, they
are ignored in the calculation of diluted earnings per share and accordingly the diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share.

* loss per share having value less than 2 10,000
(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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28 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
Judgements
In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:
Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected
in the assumptions when they occur.
Share-based payments
Employees (including senior executives) of the company receive remuneration in the form of share based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions). In accordance with the Ind AS 102 Share Based Payments, the cost of equity-
settled transactions is measured using the fair vatue method. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The expense or credit recognized in the statement of profit and loss for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense
recognized as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employee benefits expense.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated, the management considers the
interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality table . The mortality table tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes.
Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.
Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note 29.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Incentives

As disclosed in Note 2.3, the Company provides incentives to its transacting users in various forms including credits and direct payment discounts to
promote traffic on its site. All incentives given to the users where the Company is responsible for delivery are recorded as a reduction of revenue to the
extent of the revenue eamed from that user on a transaction by transaction basis. The amount of incentive in excess of the revenue eamned from the
transacting users is recorded as advertisement and sales promotion expense. In other cases, where Company is not responsible for delivery, management is
required to determine whether the incentives are in substance a payment on behalf of the restaurant merchants and should therefore be recorded as a
reduction of revenue or advertisement and sales promotion expenses. Some of the factors considered in management’s evaluation of such incentives being
payments on behalf of restaurant merchants include whether the incentives are given at the Company’s discretion, contractual agreements with the
restaurant merchants, business strategy and objectives and design of the incentive program(s), etc.

(This space has intentionally been left blank)
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30 Share-based payments

General Employee Share-option Plan (GESP): Employee Stock Option Plan —ESOP-2014 and Employee Stock Option
Scheme-2018

The Company instituted the Employee Stock Option Plan to grant equity based incentives to its eligible employees. The ESOP
scheme- FOODIEBAY Employee Stock Option Plan 2014 (“The Scheme”) has been approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company at their meeting held on 22 April 2014 (further amended at their board meeting held on 30 March 2017) and by the
shareholders of the Company by way of special resolution passed at their Annual General Meeting held on June 27, 2014 to grant
aggregating 27,089 options (not exceeding 2% of the issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital of the Company as on
March 31, 2014), representing one share for each option upon exercise by the employee of the Company at an exercise price
determined by the Board. The Scheme covers grant of options to the specified permanent employees of the Company and Directors
of the Company. The company further granted 14,677 options under the ESOP scheme at the extra ordinary general meeting held on
September 07, 2015,

The Employee Stock Option Scheme - 2018 has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 20
July 2018 and by the shareholders of the Company by way of ordinary resolution passed at their Exfraordinary General Meeting held
on October 22, 2018 to grant aggregating 30,150 options , representing one share for each option upon exercise by the employee of
the Company at an exercise price determined by the Board. The Scheme covers grant of options to the specified permanent
employees of the Company and Directors of the Company.

The options granted under the Scheme shall vest not Iess than one year and not more than four years from the date of grant of
options. Option can be exercised at the time of liquidity or upto 3 years from the date of ceasing of employment or upto 9 years from
the date of vesting, whichever is earlier. Once the options vest as per the Scheme, they would be exercisable by the Option Grantee at
any time and the equity shares arising on exercise of such options shall not be subject to any lock-in period.

Movements during the year
The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share options during

the year:
31 March 2019 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2018
Number WAEP Number WAEP
Outstanding at 1 April 26,865.86 INR 13,217 23,724.00 INR 18,192
Granted dun'ng the year 28,754.00 INR 1 8.901.00 INR 1
Forfeited during the year - - - -
Exercised during the year - - - -
Expired during the year 3,409.05 INR 9,722.14 5,759.35 INR 17,814
Outstanding at 31 March 52,210.81 INR 6,186 26,865.65 INR 13,217
Exercisable at 31 March T 2984124 INR 10,235 T 13847 INR 17,606

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at 31 March 2019 was 7.98 years (31 March
2018: 7.52 years).

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was INR 0.01 Mn (31 March 2018: INR 0.08 Mn).

The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was INR 1 to INR 0.14 Mn (31 March 2018; INR 1 to
INR 0.14 Mn).

The following tables list the inputs to the models used for the GESP plans for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018,

respectively:

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

GESP GESP

Dividend yield (%) 0.00% 0.00%
Expected volatility (%) 50.00% 42.41%
Risk—free interest rate (%) 6% - 8.2% 7.50%
Expected life of share options 5 to 6 years 5 to 6 years
Weighted average share price (INR ) 131,926 80,598
Model used Black Scholes valuation model

The expected life of the share options is based on historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of
the options is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)



16°ST 89°77¢
- 8v011
16°S1 TTIe
$8°02T 71°8¢€¢€
¥802Z T18¢¢
(upy 2) (Cupy )

8107 U E\ |€

6T0T BN T€

WA L0

(yunjq 1] Ajjpuoyuaiul usaq sy 2ovds stiyy)

810T YOIRJA [€) [IN SP0URADE JO 13U “J0f pap1aoid jou Junodoe edes uo pandoxs oq 0) FUIUIRWSI JOLIU0D Jojunoure pajewnss sey Auedwios sy} ‘g1 (7 Yore € I8 Sy
spuUHUWo.) YO pue Ede) q

SIBAK QA1) UBY) 1398
SIBA A1) UBY) I31R] JOU NG JBIA 3UO UBY) Jaje]
1BIA QU0 uey} IR JON

*SMO[0J St “AAE YUBIY L€ 1€ S¥ SIsea] Suneaado qe)paued-uou spun qeied speIusT wnwuIm 200 g

Jeak oy 10] sjuswied asea]
poriad ay3 10§ asuadxa asea

‘SMO[J0J SE SI JedA auy SuLinp

asuadxa [2)0) 3y, “SJuawoaISe asea] Aq pasoduw SUOHOLIISAI OU 21 3101 |, JUswaaISe 9SE3| 31 UO SSNBED UOKE[EISS ST A, 'SIBaK SUIU 01 JUO UIIMIAG LI3) ISLI] YA “sastwrard ulensso uo sases] Junesado o pasua sey Auedwo) sy

23859] st Auedwo)) - syudUIWWOD 3sed] Funesadg
SISBI] B
SIVUIBUNBUO)) pUE SIUUNWIWO) [

IPI861DLAOTOTTAOE0E61) *NID
6107 UIBIAL TE PIPUD €3£ 3Y) 0] SYUIWIA)EJS [EDULUL JUO[EPUE)S 0) SIJON]
PINWI AEALLJ CIPIJA] 0JBWOZ




Yy 1fo) Amuonuatug uasy soy aondy snyp)

JT1 VSN orewoz

“ou] 3|quINaN

D777 PWatL] o1twoz7

ONI 17 i3sippg

"A’8 SPURIIRAN Ojouio7

pamury Suedwo) wiemstp oiwwoz

pauunT ) ooz

PYT (914) eoLyy ynog orewoz

O'¥'S BIYRAO[S OjeuIo7

“su1 saurddiyiyg oyeuzoz

(6107 "87 $2quI203(] J3°4 Pa50L)) )'y'§ Mag ooz
SV AeaIoN ooz

asodeBurg “payury aiEatg eipapy ojmuoy

‘QHE "NQS isiejey oleuioy

UCPIOf - paMMW] PUC] OIT0Z

“TIS OY IPuonEwIN| O)ewo7

“ouf S Obtioz

Apsusip ] 1Hassopareg noepoy Lofunyy ojwoz

0°0'Z dg tonguonsen

{RTOT "8 199020 731 paso[)) {0 pueur] ojelwoz
(8107 "5 0quizoaq Ja-u paso|)) §dy yrenmsq ooz
(RT0Z 91 ey 325 paso]) SY'S tiquio(o,) oiswoz
“2uf epeue)) aleluoz

HAwo emnsny ojewoz

panur 94 siensny ooz

NSYIIS WIUONY 121031], IPAWZIY 1MWI] Ofeluo7
o1's 73 “awnyoun

sy - pry opueqr)y

1S pustipiy
1snLL JOSH <2qo1pooy

(RI0T "t 39qW30Q J'9"4) P S1EALJ IUSWIIELOWE 0jewio7
(RI0Z "TT INWRAON 7'3°8) PN areapg SHOMISN poog umganfuof,
(8107 "91 934 J'3"\) poIIL 31ALLg SAFO[OIRPID L, 0I3UE)
P 13 BIPa ZN ooz

TpY] ISt BIpI oietwoy7

OTT - 241583 2ppIN oyewoz

v ‘jrossadiun) ‘fefiog eipspy ojewioz

BYUEB[LIS “pAWIT (PIeAL) CIpaJy OlouioZ

Paywyy pucfas] ooy

BIPU] PANULT VAL J3UIN] OJTWOT

vd§ 2y orvutoz

TISSUOPU] RIS O10W07 "I &

panat (eipup) 38pg ojup

panany aeang dipendsoy jesoy

P 314 Butpioy asoduduig wpry

P11 ag futpjoy asodedurg fediry

P17 SPILUISS WIS LryneRy

1 sSuipjop 1uaunsasug oy eipu] fende ) vionbag
11 103UASIAU] YIN0ID) [)S

T1M BIp ojutioz

soueIpIsqns uno(g dag

Attedwod 3 o [o5u02 1pun 15ty

SSLITIPISQNS

Jo amua wiop

SIILI0SSY

amuap wiof

TT SV puy Jopuit safed iRy

trysuopepas Sued parepas pue sared pajegas o KN
satnsopsp Suaed paegay cze

HIB6IDLANTOTTANENE6 INID
GHIT UMTIY 1€ PAPUI JE3L 1) 10J SIUURLS JRIFURUY JUO[LPUTI 0) SNON
PANRWIET ARALLY RIDIJY 018U



"Nt 3514 a35ojdura Jo pqElLATUN 0f anp SuoNoRSUEN Tuswied Pastq SILYS SPOUL 10U Sa0P OS]E 1] 3oy © se tredition aup 10 SISUQ [ELTNIOT U UO PAUIMLZAP 318 W) ST MIUSLOU IAT0} P Smyerd Joj opew suoistioxd a1 3pROU 10U $30P |

A9y 3y 03 uor A

- SR - - - oroge - - - - - - Pty aeatg Sipendsoy feso
NRIRIRCY Uy justsaaug

- 0ETES - - - NETES - - - - - - PRINUIT A1eALL] SYICMIBN poog umganiio]
- mroe - - - HIog - - - - - - PIHUNT 21LALL] HDWHIEUNUT 01U07
- HYOET - - - [U1XV x4 - - - - - - PARUIT NLAN 19WAY] oCWOZ
SHELL’T RO 66 - - SEELLT B6 66T - - - - - - papun aieaug seifojouyps] oryue)y
(i or 0 - - (DN} 6’0 - - - - - - eds apiy) olewoz
- w - - - wer - - - - - - €pI 1jSeig TIPifY 0107
997181 9'€TE - - 99°IRT 9°€TE - - - - - - P pueiay ojewoz
Iz 97T¢ - - 1T 9wze - - - - - - ep jeossadiuny |efiratog eipapy ooz

NALTEIMSG NS U1 JauiiNasa)

- to'168°€T - - - - - o' T6ECT - - - - P17 d Sutpioy sredeRms wijy
6£°669°6 - - - - - 6576696 - - - - - M1 g fwpjoy asodefurg Sedipy
[N R(F B3918) J i1 EE N HITEREXET LI P ]

W - - - - - 99° 107 - - - - - POIMUI] $30LUI3G TOUIM] 1IAEN
Ponssi

£9'10T - - - - - £9°107 - - - - -
£re - - - - - €0 - - - - b
$6'C - - - - - - - - - 6T - dd 01 UORNGIUOI put snuoq "Ure[eg - sjyauag savopdg wiss ) -poys
(d Jo asneiay) ewuey efood
ER'E #6'ET - - - - . - - - 86°El Hd 01 UoNuGINUOS pue sttoq “AIC[LS - siyauag sasordwy W] -Loys
. jeson) raputdaa]
701 - - - - - - - - - w1 - Aynein) - SIpOURG UonEIINLA g,
6£9 - . - - - - - - . 689 - Ad 01 wonnqLNuos pue snuoq “ejes - sigaag saojduy una ] -uoys
\[eppey) foyueq
{ugy 2 Ny V) (upyp utsy V) Cu}ursiunewy) (Copp wisunonry) (upy 2 unsunomy) (upy 3 ut munemy) (Ul 3 WsUnOWY) (o 3 W SUNoWY)  (ugy 2 Wounowy)  (ujy 2 U1 spunoay) (U 2 ursjunowy) (AR 3 ut unowry) SUOIIIVSUEL ] 36 AU
8TOT YMRY 1€ 60T YMEW 1§ SHIT YuUrW Ig GINT IR 18 8T YTy 1E 60T MBI 1€ RINZ WPaRy 1€ STOT YUR|L 1€ 8N Yel 1€ [ {rA ey 1 £ 8N Yl [€ 6107 YICY 1€
ey AMUIA JuEOp SRS SATDOSNY ey PUUGSI WAWATeUT ] £3)]

ul J$sau] Fupseg nuy pagjeasuc) Sputep

(L 107 "E1 4390190 [11) 20122117 JO AN AL} eHieyy tioog dA Jo asnepy

®107 "¢l (udy Jo-x payurodde) (1019211 33UNUON) TuLpuEyN Y1 Asofung

(R107 "¢0 1 woyy payuedde) (uideayuruniory sejfnoq o3 Jorong ateway) ny fuayz

(8107 "8 93 wo pamroddu) (1010011(] saunuop) wifeapurinyay sepdnoq

(®107 87 924 wox payutodde) (Jo100m 2urwoN) ue 4 U3

(1013311 sountuoN) enng yiysney

{81027 n1dy £2 J2x paudisan) (10102117 32uNUON]) jENIA tuddI]

(10122111} redvumeng oy

@1z ung +1 3ax paudisas) (fosvangy saummoN) vaedieyg Hypng

(RIOT T Yore o' uonrudisop u >Tuwy)) (10102111 I2UpWION] ) yeppey;) feyueg
o) [eiog Lpudsag (AN, PUI0SIS awaTeunyy a5

{P1uod) sasnsopnp Sped pawy zg

861D LANTOTTANENESN NED
60T HAEIY 1€ PIPUI JEIL 37 10 SIIAULRIS [BEIURLY JUNTPUEIS 03 $3)0N
PRI (VAL RIPIJY 0JRW0Z



it Awtionatul uasy soy 2ovds siyp)

. ISR - - . SR - - - - - - ep] reossadiuny refinuog eipapy oivwoz
- 900 - - - 9010 - - - - - - P17 10 BPAY ZN otetog
- 9t - - - 90 - - - - - . 77 Z:4 1585 S{ppipy otewoz

TONOUIIT WS PUE JUSWSIBADY] J0 JIEa( U0 paimdng sasuadsyg

901 oro 901 ore - - - - - - - - TTA\ TR oteio7
Lro - - - Lo - - - - - - - OY'S z) swmyptn
- Coer - - - (21 - - - - - - sarBojomyaa] ossyue )
- ittt - - - FAS 4 - - - - - - PRMUNT SILALL] ISWAN] OEWO7
- 6Tt - - - 6T'1 - - - - - - PINUWIT ST WIULITLGUT C1EWI07
- 16 - N - is1 - - - - - - PANUI NLALL SYIOWBN PoO,] umganduo]
B0 - - - RO - - - - - - - 'pr1 (14) Toury ynog osewioz
REW [H(X0) - - 80 [ih) - - - - - - NS WRIOIY 121831 ] LIDIDWZIE 19WISM] 010107
Lo €Ty - - e jxal - - - - - - 17 wumdg owoz
[ £6°7 - - o't 154 - - - - - - B "ou] G} OwHIOZ
£E8 1574 - - €€y €L - - - - - - panuiyy Gd eijensny ojewoy
Yo - - - 9%n - - - - - - - 0’0z dg 1oncuonsen
0zo - - - 0y - - - - - - - O¥'S vrjeac)§ ooz
ROC - - - RO - - - - - - - panury yn ooz
T - - £TT 8T - - - - - - sup sautddinyg owwoz
£l - - 724 9$°1L - - - - - - 1T Z435¢3 3PPy oiewoz
6’ - - $6°E 67T - - - - - - LIS2UOPU] BIPAY O1CWOZ | 4
e - - e £R1 - - - - - - Ppanur puzias) olewioy
Ll - - R 6l - - - - - - PYT 1Ng UIPIJY ZN oiewoz
0§t - - [Hrd Li4 - - - - - - ep jeossadiup fefnuog vpsjy orewoy
Jamau oy
FOONETaU0 0] ANAATY
- we - - - wt - - - - - - TPIT 1iselg eipipy ooz
- BOOEE - - - fo'oee - - - - - - Anjendsoy [esoy
091 ot - - (] 6t'n - - - - - - vdg sy oewoyz
oF¢y it - - g9 CFIT - - - - - - panw] pujal] ooz
- BOOEE - - - - - FoEE - - - - pauy steairg Sitjedsop jedo
UL J0] UDISLG g
- uR'TT - - - (.44 - - - - - - D717 74153 3ppuy olewioz
- [£21] - - - el - - - - - - PaUI] JATALL W] O1RWOZ
woer 9L 88T - - wer 9L'RRT - - - - - - PaII] el safojouyaa) oryre )
9Ll wi - - 9L'LT wit - - - - - - RS LIVEIN
(AN (283 - - PAN £'e - - - - - - "A'g seyRy
[c4at)] - - - @0 - - - - - - - ‘PUG "upS Bissejeyy olewo7
o't RYT - - ST BT - - - - - - ‘M7 (3q) eayy ymog oitwoz
8L oE - - RLT 6IVE - - - - - - parutg i enensny ojewoy
91} ©on - - o) (Ui - - - - - - “suy saurddipyg otewoz
gew 0 - - {€en) H0 - - - - - - 0'¥'S 2y awmyoun
Hrl L0 - - w1 (YAl - - - - - - EIS3UOPU] BIPIY OIGWOZ 14
(14 @y - - $EE 2X0] - - - - - - PN puEjI] OlEUIOZ
€T¢ [ - - {149 w'e - - - - - - ™7 1 UIPSy ZN oitwez
|g 99°61 - - RE 99°61 - - - - - - P jeossadsup) jufuitod epajy owtiioz
3 IO R ([EFEXEN ) URI TR |
CUI2 v sunowy) - (U 2 ursunoury)  (ugg 2 vy SImnowy) (UIg3 U1 UBGWY) (UJY 3 41 SONOGTY)  (UIY 3 O Sunoury) (Ul 2 wrvunowry) (Ul 3 Ui NUROWTY) (UJY R UERROULY) (WP 2 U3 NUNOWIY) | (URN 2 U1 SUnOurY) (oI 3 Of semoumy) SUOUIRRULLL J0 AN
8107 WITW I GI0T YMRIY I£ 8INT ey If [JUrA R At £ SINT WIely 1€ 10T e € SHIZ YT € 6T YT 1f BHIT 4Rl 1€ GIOT Yy 1€ 8T YIEY 1€ 6T0T YT ¢

e NUAA JUIDL SALIBIPISYNG 12055y w0z [EILEr A )
un sl Jupsey SNug pafenue) s

(P10d) saansopsuq Qing pawiy

IFISGEDLAOIHTNAOENEEN NID
6T0T UMY [£ PIPUI 1825 33 10} SIUAIRIS [LIIUTUL IUOJEPURIS 63 SA10N
PAINULT NBALIE BIPALY OjEtuaZ



- we991) - - - {0gy91) - - - . - - vo::_i JILALJ SHOMIN POO ___:mu-_u:o.r

- wo'sor) - - - Wrgon) - - - - - -
- DEILT - - - BT - - - - - -
{4} BLO - - Liral] L/AT) - - - - - - PIANUIT JLAL PWIAU] CIEW07
- Lok - - - LLOF - - - - - - PANWIT JjEsLg ARANTUIY OINWO07
- RY'CECT - - - RY'CECT - - - - - - panwiry ateand saojouypay, orsyque)y
SUCAPE PUE SUTT]
POLISTIN J0 PO 303 16 (S[GEATU} PUR STqUARIST OWEG
- - - wn - - - - - - - 171 Z4 1seq ppiy o_u__SN
- L - - - L - - - - - - PANUIT ANLALF SYOMIN pooy mugsniuoy,
RLO - - - BLO - - - - - - - pomury aesang mu_mo_o_:_uu ATy
R1TTT EV6TIol - - RI'TTT grazron - - - - - - ponnury aiesng satfojouydsa] o1ayue)

505 Hony paaanosing

[ 3 Uew 53] O[T

. - - - - - - - Mo - - *PAWIT e PWI] OO
- . - - - - - - o - - *PINUIT AT WSANCUIY O10WO7
- - - - - - ) o - - panuny (expu)) 28py opuy

fLE]

. exel . . . ST - - - - - - PIINUIT ALY SHEOMIN pooy :Emu.i._o L

.20 w - - - - - - [431 - -

t - - . 0z - - - - - - -

R I80H] - - - IROFT - - - - - - 933 pruotssajod pue jefay -
IT1 Nm 15T PPy cEEoN

- - - - S6'6R0°T - - - - - - Panwir ajealiq satdojonyos ] oseuey

- - - - YL - - - - - - PAMUTT 2)eAL 1MW) oIeI07

- 6RLT - - - ORLL - - - - - - PRI LA UABUTEUING OlEW0Z7

- 968 - - - 97°6¢ - - - - - - PR NCAL] SOMWIN PoO] umganiuoy

CuW 3 wsunowy) (Ul 2 U SUROWY)  (Up 2 UL SUROWY) (U 3 U1 SIUROUTY) (WY 2 U1 IUROWY) (U 3 U MURGUIY) (URY 3 UF MUROUIY) (UPY3 07 SORTY) COpy D O sunowy) (U 2 wpsunowry)  (upy 2 up Sunowy)
80T YR 1€ 6107 YMER 1€ 8IHT YMEW IE GT0T Yosey 15 BT WP 1§ 61T W 1€ BHIZUMEI € 610Z WBI I§ RINT Yaul 1€ 6T Y TE 8IHT MBI 1€ ST YMEW 1€

IRSUTA], 0 AInRN

[BLXY AUNEIA PP SALIRHISQNS SDIUEIOSN Y [T 74 Putas s g sunRdeuejy S
ul psatnug Suisey pug papwauo) spug

(P103) sainsopsiy Gung pavjay

IF 186 [DLAOTHTTAVEREEN NID
6HIT UL 1€ PAPUI JEAL 312 10} SHUILIIRIS [BIUCHUY IUO[EPURIS 0) SN
PANRIT VAL TIPIJY MIBUINZ



O6RE
Fdixi)
Lo

$9°H

9TT1
0LPer
ore

ore
Lo
Lot
zon
9e1
&7l

Xt
(4
1670

ot

or'e

"SIIERP 10j +1 NN SYR1 aseys dews jo Sew oy Lq panar awsug

- £€9RE
- LIl
68°¢ -
wo 0LFET
- LTL
- 9
- (4201
- 9e1
L -
e 4]
890 -
3E°0 o
oF £6°T
£ER 54
90°0 .
41} -
RO -
§TT 61
&7t 9¢1L
S6't are
we £/
Ligd 80
0gT fx g

oy iy Gupuonuamit uary sy awds styg)

- Ly or'e

HICIOIR2L, 0I2GUED Jo UOHISIMDIE Jo 1jisas € 5u A siusunsas] wpu] jejde.) eonbag o1 pansst arm PAIT JILALL BIPOR OIEISZ JO () 5118 §40) +¢1°7 Feai snorsard ap Fuung -a10N

PRI 3teAL] SYIOMBN OO uniganduo]
BOGErT [eRuteg B0

PANUIT NUALLJ SYOWIN Poo,] umgando ]
panury AeALg sufofomps | osyuey

I Z4 1567 2PN orewez

pawwi (erpup) 3p3 ojug

quind apely

OO0OT 2 UBY) 559 Iangey

TIA C1pajy ooy
pariuny ALy WARIEUAUY 0ITWOo7
pairy ajeaig satfojonysa ] o1aus;)

PAUTIIT PACALL 12UINR O)EWO7

PAAWIY S1L.ALg SYIOWPN Pood umganduo]

O4'S 7)) awnypuiry

J77 19t ooz

P (014) Loty qinog oicuioz

*TOYHS WINOUY 121831 | USPAZIH 1WINR| OJRWO7
. INI VS oewioz

panuy Ad enensny oewoz

0°0°Z dg tancuonstn

OY'S tijesols ooy

panwry 4 ooy

“au) sourddiiyg owwoz

T 241503 Appyy oivwioz

BISIUOPU] CIPIJY OIRMOZ ] 4

Pl puejaf ojenioz

PIT 18 BIPAJN ZN ooz

ep] |eossadiup) fednuog tipajy ooz

TqUAIRIST PEIL

(Ui 2 w unowy)
KHIZ el 1E

(Ul 2 W sunowy)
G WMEl IE

{up 2 ur spunowy)
ST YMER 1€

fupy 2 W sunotey)
61HT UMEI 1€

(Ul 2 wisiunowy)  (upy 2 W sunowry)
BIOZ YRl 1€ GIOT UMER 1€

(U 3 m sjunowy)
ST YT If

{upy 2 ur sunowry)

Uy 2 WSy} (upy 2 Ul sjunoty)

ST YMel 1E ST PIRY T¢ 6107 yarey ¥¢

squnowy) (U 3 i sIUNowy)

RTNT WA 1€ 10T WIE 1E

SHDIIBSURITE, J0 SARJRN]

[

AMUIA JuIop

SaLreipsqng

088y

w0z
ug yasapu] Fursey Hug pajonuo) Spuaep

[PuunsIa g JudWRERUREY LY

{pauna) saansopsyr Qind papiy

IFIRGIDLAUINTTGHENCON NID
6IUT UDIRR 1€ PAPUS S35 IR J0) USWIIELS [RISUTUL AUOFEPUT)S 0) KON
PAIUIT NG VIPAY DIRWeZ



Zaomato Mediu Private Limited
Notes to stundalone finuncisl statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
CIN: U43030DL2010PTC 198141

33.1 Fair Values

Financial instruments by category

The carryisg value and fair value of tinancial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2019 were as follow s:

{2 Mn.)

Particulars

Financial assets/ Habilities at fair value through profit

Amortised cost
of loss

Financial assets/Tinhilities at fhir value through OCI Total carrving value

Total fair vajue

i initi N Equity instranents
Designated upon initial Quity instraments

et Mandatory designated wpon initial Mandatory
N recognition

Assets:

Cash and cash equivatents (Refer Note 8) 127505 - - - 1275.05 1275.05
Bank balance otfier than "Cash & vash equivalents (Refer Note 9) 25000 - - - 250,00 250.00
Investments (current) (Refer Note h) - - 2134251 - 2134251
Envestinents n eqnis securities {non-current) (Refer Note §) 561375 - - - 361375 561375
Tnvestment in Optionatly Convertible Debentures (non-current Refer Note: 5) 67.98 - - - 6798 67.9%
I in pref securities ) (Refer Note 5) 9601063 - - - Y6663 960,63
Trade receivables (Refer Note 7 626,63 - - - 62663 626.63
Loans (Refer note 1) 41.62 - - - 4162 4162
Oter financial assets (Refer Note 1) 362638 - - - 3.626.38 3626.38
Tutal N 12,462.04 - 21,4251 - 33.804.55 33,804.55
Liabili

Trade pavables (Refer Note 16) 315629 - - - 3456.29 3,156.29
Other fimancial liabilities (Refer Note 18) 608,34 - - - 608.34 60834
Total 3,764.63 - - - 3,764.63 3,761.63
The castying value mud fair valwe of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 201K were as follows:

& Mn)

Financial assets/ Hobilities at fair value through profit

Particulars Amortised cost e Financiol assets/Tiabilities at fhir value through OCI Total carrying valve  Total fair vahue
siyns initia Equity iustrumenty
:::::\,:::: e il Mandatary dclsignulxxl upon initial Mandatory
rocugnition

Assers:

Cast and cash equivalents (Refer Note §) 1,02 . . . 9102 102
Bank balance other than "Cash & cash equivalents*(Refer Note %) 197546 . . . 1975.46 175,46
Investmenits (current) (Refer Note 6) . - $.096.63 . 8.196.63 896,63
Investinents in equity sevurities (non-current) { Reter Note 3 4,080.44 - - - 408044 4.080.44
! in preference seewrities ( ){Refer Note 5) 95.47 N - . 9547 9547
Trade receivables (Refer Note 7) 19049 B N . 19049 190.49
Loans (Refer ote 10} .20 R R - 020 0.20
Other financial assets (Refer Note 11) 48,05 . - . 4804 348,04
Fotut 638112 - 8,196.63 - 14577.74 1157774
Linbilities:

Trade pavables (Refer Note 16) 54581 - . . 54581 54381
Other financial liabilities {Refer Note 18) 0.89 . . 5 R R
Total 536,70 - - - 54670 546,70

33.2 Falr value hierarchy

The following table provides the fair vatiee measurement hierarchy of the Company’s aysets and liabilities.

Fair vatue hierarchy

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - Inputs other than guoted prives included within Level 1 that are observable for the
Level 3 - Inputs tor the assets or liabilities that ore not based on observable market data (unohservable inputs).

et or Hability, cither directlv (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e, derived from prices).

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and lishilities measured at fair value on » recurring basis as of March 31, 2009;

{2 Mn.)
Pasticulans JMarls Fair value mesurement at end of the reporting periodiyear using
Levei 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Investments in liguid mutuad fund units (Refer Note 6) 2134251 2134231 -

The following table presents

fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair valie on a recuzring basis as of March 31, 2018

& Mn)

Particulars

Fair value meastirement at end of the reporting period/vear si

31-Mar-18

Level | Levet 2 Level 3

Asaety
Investments in liguid mutnal find wnits (Reter Note 6)

8.196.63 8.196.63 -

(This spate has been intentionally left blink)




Zomato Media Private Limited
Notes ta standalone financizl statements for the yesr ended 31 March 2019
CIN: U93030D1L2010PTC198141

33.3 Finsncial risk management ohjectives and policies

Financial risk munagement
Financial risk factors

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financiol risks: market risk, credit risk and tiquidity risk. The Company's focus is to foresee the vnpredictability of financial markets and seck to minimize potential Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
individual characteristic of each customer.

A) Market risk

Market risk i the risk that the foir value of fiture cash tlows of a financial instrunent will fuctuate becous
risk. Financiol instruments affected by market ris
planning and robust cash management practices.

of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three tvpes of risk: interest mte risk. foreign currensy risk and other price ris
nelude loans and borrowings, deposits. The Company has in plave appropriate risk management policies to litnit the impact of these risk

such a3 equity prive sk and comsiodity
s on its financial performance. The Company ensures vptimization of cash through fund

i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk ix the risk that the fair value or fiure cash fhows of a financial sstrvanent will Huctuate becatse of clianes in market interest rates. As majority of the financial assets and Habiliies of the Company are either non-interest beariug or fived interest bearing
instruments, the Company s net exposure to interest risk is negligible

ii) Foreign carrency risk
Forcign curmency

s the risk that the far value or fiture cash v of an exposure will fluctuate becnsse of changes in forcign exchange rates. The Company s expasure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the companys operating actisities

(when revenme or expense is denominated in a foreign currency). The Compiuny aperates intemationally and some portion of the bisiness is in severl und \ the Company i exposed to foreign exchange risk throngh its sales aud services in the
Middle East and elsewhere, and purehases from overseas suppliers in varions foreign cumencies.

The following table anahzes foreien currency risk from financial instriments as of 31 March 2019: (X Ma)
Particulars
UsD AUD AED ZAR QAR Other currencies Total
Cash and cash equivalents - - LO1L9S .61 - 321 LM77
Trade receivables 20.20 727 34411 - 1.33 1948 392.38
Other financials assets  inclnding loans) - - 343634 - - - 3436.34
Trade pavables - - 311.54 - - $H09 311.63
Net assets / (liabilities 2020 7.27 5,163.94 .61 1.33 24.78 5,158.13
The following table anabzes foreign enrreney risk from financial instrunents as of 31 March 2018 (2 Mn)
. U.S. dollars AUD AED ZAR QAR Other currencies Total
Particulars
Cash and cash equivalents - - 238.63 0.82 - 491 244,36
Trade receivables 6.44 8.47 34008 .69 JUXCH) 10.39 376.67
Other financials assets ( including loans) - - 4.7t - - - A
Trade pavables - - 13749 011 - 0.02 137.02

Net ussets / (linhilities 6.4 3.47 72591 1.6 10.60) 1532 768.36

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the comnterpaity resulting in a fisancial Toss, The maxisun expisie to the credit risk ot the reporting date is primarity from trade receivables smounting to 2 626.63 Mn and 2190.49 Mn as of March 31,2019 and March

31, 2018, respectively. Trade receivables are typically and are derived from revenne eamed from customers primurily located in fndia and Middle Eas Credit risk has always been managed by the group through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and
inuotisly monitoring the iness of to which the Company grants credit terms in the onmal course of busiies. On necomnt of adoption of Ind AS 109, the growp uses expected credit s model to assess the inmpainment loss or gain, The company uses o

provision natrix to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables. The provision matrix tak

into aceount avaitable extemal and internial eredit risk factors such o5 the company’s

strical experience for custorners.

333 Financial risk mansgement ohjectives and pollcies (conti)

Credit risk exposure

The corapany has established an all for i
expected eredit losx for other ivables. An i
calentation is based on historical data of actual osses.

for trade receivables and 12 months
sessed for impairment collectively. The

in respect of trade and othér receivables. Th " e a simplified approach for the purpose of compntation of expectai credit fos
at cach reporting date on an individual basis tor major pasties. In addition, a Jarge nmber of mior receivables are combined into homogenons categories and as

Liguidity risk

Ttimate responibility for liguidity ri:

management rests with the Board, s hich has established an priote liquidity risk fr K for the of the Company”

short, medium and lonig-term finding and liquidity menagement requirements. The
company’s principal sources of iqnidity are cash und cash equivalents und the cash flow that i generated from operations. The cotnpany has no outstanding ok borrowings, The Company manages liguidity risk by maintaining adequate ¢
forecost and uctual cash flows, und by matching the matarity profites of tinancial assets and liabilities. Avcordingly, no guidity risk is perceived

sh reserves, by contintousty monitoring

As of March 31, 201 and March 31 2018, the outstanding compensated absences were € 45.40 Mn and 28.41 My, respectively

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial Habilities as of March 31, 2019

(& Mn)
Particufars Lexs than 1 vear 1-2 vears 23 vears 4-7 years Total
Trade pavables 3,156.29 - - - 315629
Other financial habilities 608.34 - - - 61,34
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of March 31, 2018:

& Ma)

Particulany Less than | vear 1-2 vears 24 veury 4-7 vears

Trade pavables 320.44 2532 - -
Other financial liabilities 089 - - -

33.4 Capital management

For the purpose of the companys copital management, capital inelhdes ixstid equity cupital, convertible preference shares, share premivm and all ather equity reserves atributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary
objective of the company”s capital managensent is to maXimise the shareholder value.

The company manages its capital strocture and makes adjustments i light of changes in cconomic conditions and the requirements of the finncial covenants. To maintain o adjist the capital structure, the company may adjust the
dividend pavment to sharcholders. retum capital 1o shancholders or wssie new shares, The company moitors cupital uxing a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The company inclides within net
debt, interest bearang loans aud borrowings. trade and other pavables, Less cash and ash equivalents.

{This space has been intentionally left blank)
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financial for the year ended 31 March 2019

34. Segment information

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available th

resources and assessing performance. The company’s chief operating decision maker is the Chief Executive Officer.

The company has identified geographical segments as reportable segments The geographical segments comprise:

1) India
2) United Arab Emirates (UAE)
3) ROW ( South Africa and Philippines)

at is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, in deciding how to allocate

Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment. All other expenses which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed as unallocable

expenses.

Assets and habilities that are directly attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each re
for the years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 is as follows

Year ended 31 March 2019

portable segment. All other assets and liabilities are disclosed as unallocable. Summarised segment information

Adjustments and

Adjustments and eliminations

Finance income and costs, and fair value gains and losses on financial assets are not allocated to individual segments as the underlying instruments are managed on a group basis.

Current taxes, deferred taxes and certain financial assets and liabilities are not allocated to those segmments as they are also managed on a group basis

Capital expenditure consists of additions of property,

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment properties including assets from the acquisition of subsidiaries.

Particulars India UAE ROW Total segments Eliminations dated
Revenue
External customers 9,932.50 1,538.52 - 11,471.02 - 11,471.02
Inter-segment 12039 - - 120.39 - 12039
Total revenue 10,052.89 1,538.52 - 11,591.41 - 11,591.41
Income/(Expenses)
Depreciation and amortisation 96.37 3 - 100.08 - 100.08
Goodwill impairment - - - - - -
Share of profit of an associate and a joint venture - - - - - -
Segment loss (18,085.42) 12,380.23 (0.08) (5,705.27) - (5,705.27)
Total assets 33,552.24 4,583.09 6.29 38,141.62 - 38,141.62
Total liabilities 13,991.36 (8,028.85) 96.75 6,059.26 0.01 6,059.27
Other disclosures
Investments in an associate and a joint venture 1.63 - - 1.63 - 1.63
Capital expenditure 400.52 2.07 - 402.59 - 40259
Year ended 31 March 2018
Adjustments and
Particulars India UAE ROW Total segments Eliminations dated
Revenue
External customers 2,704.7] 959.79 - 3,664.50 - 3,664.50
Inter-segment 45.80 - - 45.80 - 45.80
Total revenue 2,750.50 959.79 - 3,710.30 - 3,710.30
Income/(Expenses)
Depreciation and amortisation 113.60 11.50 - 125.09 - 125.09
Goodwill impairment - - - - - -
Share of profit of an associate and a joint venture - - - - - -
Segment loss (1,144.99) 346.92 010 (797.98) 13.05 (784.93)
.Total assets 14,541.64 578.75 6.23 15,126.62 - 15,126.62
Total liabilities 522.61 31563 96.91 935.16 0.01 935.17
Other disclosures
Investments in an associate and a joint venture 1.63 - - 1.63 - 1.63
Capital expenditure 34.6% 5.99 - 40.68 - 40.68
Inter-segment revenues are elimi { upon consolidation and reflected in the ‘adj and el *column.
All other adj and eliminations are part of de  further below,
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34. Segment information (contd.)

Reconciliations to ts reflected in the financial stat

Reconciliation of loss

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Segment loss (5,705.27) (797.98)
Inter-segment sales (elimination) - 13.05
Loss before tax (5,705.27) (784.93)

Reconciliation of assets
Segment operating assets
Adjustments and Eliminations
Loan notes (Note 10)

Total assets

Reconciliation of liabilities
Segment operating liabilities
Adjustments and Eliminations
Borrowings {Note 15)

Total liabilities

Revenue from external customers

India

Outside India

Total revenue per consolidated statement of profit or loss

Non-current operating assets:
India

Outside India

Total

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of property, plant and equipment, investment properties and intangible
Information about major customers: No single customer represents 10% or more of the company’s total revenue for the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

31,002.44 10,388.76
41.62 0.20
31,044.06 10,388.96

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

6,059.26 93513
0.01 001
6,059.27 935.14

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

10,052.89 2,750.51
1,538.52 959.79
11,591.41 3,710.30

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

7,092.71 4,730.21
4.85 745
7,097.56 4,737.66

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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35 Details of dues to micro and small as defined under MSMED Act 2006

The Company, has duriny the year, not received any intimation from any of its suppliers r ling their status under The Micro and Small Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as
at the year end along with interest paid/payable as required under the said Act have not been given. Based on the information available with the Company there are no principal/interest amounts due to micro, small and medium
enterprises.

36 Unhedged foreign currency exposure

y tati

The Company does not use derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts or options to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency fl ions or for trading

purpose.

The amount of foreign currency exposure not hedged by derivative instruments or otherwise is as under:

31 March 2019
 Mn.)

31 March 2018
(X Mn.)

Trade receivable

Cash and cash equivalents

Other Financial assets NC

Other Financial assets_C

Current Tax assets (Net)

Other Current Assets

Provisions_NC

Other Current Liabilities

Provisions_C

Trade payables

AED 3.09 @ 18.87 (Rs.58.30 Mn )
AED 11.37 @ 18.87 (Rs.214.69 Mn)
PHP 1.73 @ 1.31 (Rs.2,28 Mn)
Eur 0.01 @ 77.76 (Rs.0.41 Mn)
NZD 0.04 @ 47.18 (Rs.1.94 Mn)
USD 0.04 @ 69.32 (Rs.2.51 Mn)
AUD 0.15 @ 49.20 (Rs.7.27 Mn)
IDR 473.19 @ 0.00 (Rs,2.30 Mn)
QAR 0.01 @ 19.04 (Rs.0.10 Mn)
AED3.77 @ 18.87 (Rs.71.11 Mn)
QAR 0.06 @ 19.04 (Rs.1.23 Mn)
USD 0.26 @ 69.32 (Rs.17.69 Mn)
Eur 0.05 @ 77.76 (Rs.4.13 Mn)
TRY 0 @ 12.18 (Rs.0.00 Mn)

ZAR0.13 @ 4.78 (Rs.0.61 Mn)
AED 7.26 @ 18.87 (Rs.136.90 Mn)
AED 46.37 @ 18.87 (Rs.875.05 Mn)
PHP 3.97 @ 131 (Rs.5.21 Mn)

AED 0.08 @ 18.87 (Rs.1.5) Mn)
AED 0.1 @ 18.87 (Rs.1.93 Mn)

AED 0.15 @ 18.87 (Rs.2.83 Mn)
AED 181.78 @ 18.87 (Rs.3430.07 Mn)

PHP 0.14 @ 1.31 (Rs.0.18 Mn)

ZAR 0.06 @ 4.79 (Rs.0.30 Mn)
AED 0.2 @ 18.87 (Rs.3.78 Mn)
AED 1.35 @ 18.87 (Rs.25.49 Mn)

AED 0.26 @ 18.87 (Rs.4.84 Mn)
AED 0,57 @ 18.87 {Rs.10.72 Mn)

ZAR0.19 @ 4.78 (Rs.0.92 Mn)
AED 1.16 @ 18.87 (Rs.21.87 Mn)
AED 65.64 @ 18.87 (Rs.1238.65 Mn)

AED 0.08 @ 18.87 (Rs.1.50 Mn)
AED0.17 @ 18.87 (Rs.3.17 Mn)

ZAR0.02 @ 4.78 (Rs.0.09 Mn)
AED 2.02 @ 18.87 (Rs.38.12 Mn)
AED 14.49 @ 18.87 (Rs.273.42 Mn)

AED 3.3 @ 17.65 (X 58.25 Mn)
AED 15.7@ 17.65 (X 277.11 Mn)
PHP 1.77@ 1.27 (2 2.25 Mn)
Eur 0.01 @ 75.35 (2 0.75 Mn )
NZD 0.1 @ 46.01 (3 4.6 Mn)
GBP 0 @ 85.4 (20 Mn)

USD 0.06 @ 64.39 (2 3.86 Mn)
AUD 0.17 @ 49.81 (% 8.47 Mn)
IDR 826.79 @ 0 (20 Mn)
ZAR0.14 @ 4.96 (2 0.69 Mn)
QAR 0.61 @ 17.38 (2 10.6 Mn)
AED 027 @ 17.53 (2 4.73 Mn)
QAR O @ 17.38 (2 0 Mn)

USD 0.04 @ 64.39 (2 2.58 Mn)
Eur 0.03 @ 75.35 (X 2.26 Mn)
CZK 0.06 @ 2.91 (2 0.17 Mn)
Eur 0 @ 75.35 (X 0 Mn)
PLNO@ 17.84 (R 0 Mn)

TRY 0.02 @ 17.53 (2035 Mn)

ZAR 0.15 @ 5.46 (2 0.82 Mn)
AED 4.45 @ 17.65 (X 78.54 Mn)
AED 9.07 @ 17.65 (2 160.09 Mn)
PHP 3.96 @ 1.24 (2 4.91 Mn)

AED0.12@ 17.65(32.12 Mn)
AED 0.19 @ 17.65 (33.35 Mn)

AED 0.04 @ 17.65 (X 0.71 Mn)
AED 0.2 @ 17.65 ( 3.53 Mn)

PHPO0.14 @ 1.24 (3 0.17 Mn)

ZAR 0.06 @ 5.46 (2 0.33 Mn)
AED 0.18 @ 17.65 (2 3.18 Mn)
AED 0.4 @ 17.65 (% 7.06 Mn)

AED 0.16 @ 17.65 (% 2.82 Mn)
AED 0.89 @ 17.65 (2 15.71 Mn)

ZAR 0.19 @ 5.46 (2 1.04 Mn)
AED 0.56 @ 17.65 (2 9.88 Mn )
AED 1.6 @ 17.65 (2 28.24 Mn )

AED 0.05 @ 17.65 (2 0.88 Mn )
AED 0.27 @ 17.65 (2 4.77 Mn)

ZAR 0.02 @ 5.46 (2 0.11 Mn)
AED 1.58 @ 17.65 (2 27.89 Mn)
AED 6.21 @ 17.65 (2 109.61 Mn)
PHP 0.02 @ 1.24 (% 0.02 Mn)

(This space has been intentionally Icft blank)
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37 Expenditure in Foreign Currency (Accrual Basis)

& Mu)
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Particulars {Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)
Server and Communication Cost 221.05 124.40
Travelling Expenses 16.01 15.61
Legal and Professional Fee 154.18 1431
Recruitment/ Hiring Cost 6.64 4.77
Audit Fee 0.08 0.05
Printing & Stationery 0.32 0.20
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.01 0.36
Advertisement & Sales Promotion 739.93 114.03
Rates & Taxes 2.86 1.65
Repair & Maintenance 1.56 1.39
Power & Fuel 0.52 042
Insurance 0.25 0.41
Bad Debts Written Off 0.23 0.88
Finance Cost 24022 140.41
Outsourced support cost 476.48 16.08
Rent 1235 18.01
Provision For Doubtful Debts And Advances 18.54 10.96
Salary, wages And bonus 265.86 306.95
Others 918 0.44
Total 2,166.26 771.35
38  Earning in foreign currency (accrual basis)
X Mn)
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
{Amount in Rs.) {Amount in Rs.)
Revenue from operations 1.503.21 1,009.14
Other Income (Including exceptional income) 168.60 15.95
Exceptional Item 1232921 -
Export Sale 0.61 -
Total 14,001.62 1,025.08
39  Contingent liability not provided for
L. As at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: 2 0.01 Mn) dividend in respect of 0.0001% and 0.00000015% pulsorily convertible lative prefe share not provided for Re 2 0.01 Mn.

2. There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on Provident Fund dated 28th February, 2019. The company is already in compliance with said order for the year. However, there is uncertainty
on the determination of the liability retrospectively, because theoretically there is no limit on how much retrospective it can get, and can begin from the commencement of operations of the company. The company will only record a

provision, on receiviny further clarity on the subject.

40 As at the year ended on 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, the Company is having net defesred tax assets primarily comprising of unabsorbed Depreciation and carry forward Losses under tax laws. However in the absence of

reasonable certainty backed by convincing evidence of future taxable income, Deferred Tax Assets has not been recognized.

{/deval

41  The company has made long term ric i in certain subsidiary panies, which are in their initi ping stage of operation and would generate growth and returns over a period of time. These subsidiaries/associates
have incurred significant expenses for building the brand and market share which have added to the losses of these entities. Based on the potential of the business model of these entities to generate profits and parent's support,
management is of the opinion that considering the nature of the industry and the stage of operations of these entities there is no indication of diminution in canying value of the investments and therefore no provision is required at this

stage.

42 On st March 2019 (agreement date), the Company assigned certain restaurant contracts pertaining to its delivery business in the United Arab Emirates (UAE) to Talabat Middle East Intemet Services Company LLC (‘Talabat’) for a
consideration amounting to USD 172 Mn (INR 11,919.61 Mn), to be paid either as upfront, deferred or upon rendering of services (ranging from 2-4 years, based upon management's estimate), as per terms of the agreement. Zomato
will continue to render certain services to Talabat in UAE as part of this agreement. Further, the agreement also involves a contingent consideration amounting to USD 11 Mn (INR 762.30 Mn), to be paid to the Company at each
anniversary, subject to compliance with certain performance conditi The 1 consideration has been recorded at fair value as at the reporting date and will be fair valued at each reporting date, during the agreed period, with

difference being recorded in the statement of profit and loss.

43  Recent accounting pronouncements-
A) New Standard issued
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 30 March 2019 notified the new leasing standard, viz., Ind AS 116 Leases. Ind AS 116 is applicable for the fi ial year beginning on or after 1 April 2019 for all Ind AS companies. It replaces
virtually all the existing leasing requirements under Ind AS 17 Leases.

. The new standard will require lessees to recognize most leases on their balance sheets. Lessees will use a single accounting model for all leases,with limited exemptions. Foreign currency leases will increase P&L volatility due to a
restatement of foreign currency liability. An entity has an option to adopt Ind AS 116 usiny either the full retrospective method or the modified retrospective method. An entity that elects the modified retrospective method would apply Ind
AS 116 retrospectively to only the current period by recognising the cumulative effect of initially applying Ind AS 116 as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained eamings (or other components of equity) at the date of initial
application. Under the modified retrospective method, Ind AS 116 would be applied either to all contracts at the date of initial application or only to contracts that are not completed at this date. An entity would need to disclose how it

applied the modified retrospective method,

The Company is in process fo evaluate the impact of the new standard on financial statements

B) On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified certain amendments to Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
(i) Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application of Ind AS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of Ind AS 12, nor does it specifically

include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The Interpretation specifically addresses the following:
= Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

= The assumptions an entity makes about the ination of tax by taxation
= How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates
« How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

h

An entity has to determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty should be followed. In
determining the approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty, an entity might consider, for example, (a) how it prepares its income tax filings and supports tax treatments; or (b) how the entity expects the taxation

authority to make its examination and resolve issues that might arise from that examination.

The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019, but certain transition reliefs are available, The C ompany will apply the interpretation from its effective date. In addition, the Company may
need to establish p andy dures to obtain inft ion that is necessary to apply the Interpretation on a timely basis.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Zomato Media Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Zomato Media Private
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company
and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) and a joint venture, comprising of the
consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31 2019, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,
including other comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity-for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other
financial information of the subsidiaries and a joint venture, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and a joint venture, as at March 31,
2019, their consolidated loss including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements -in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s report, but does not include the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially missta{;é.&fffﬁi&g\d on the work we have performed, we conclude
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Chartered Accountants
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
Group including its joint venture, in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint venture are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Group and its joint venture and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its joint venture are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and
of its joint venture to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint venture are
also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its joint venture.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the i
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* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and of its joint venture to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group and of its joint venture to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group and its joint venture of which we are the independent auditors
and whose financial information we have audited, to express an opinion on the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements
of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated
financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

(a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of 9
subsidiaries, whose Ind AS financial statements include total assets of Rs 1054.69 Mn as at March
31, 2019, and total revenues of Rs 10,720.18 Mn and net cash inflows of Rs 68.92 Mn for the year
ended on that date. These Ind AS financial statement and other financial information have been
audited by other auditors, which financial statements, other financial information and auditor’s
reports have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of
these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as
it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of such other auditors.

Certain of these subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial statements and other financial
information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
their respective countries and which have been audited by other auditors under generally accepted
auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The Company’s management has
converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries located outside India from accounting
principles generally accepted in their respectiye, countries to accounting principles generally
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(b)

accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Company’s
management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries
located outside India is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion adjustments
prepared by the management of the Company and audited by us.

The accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements include unaudited financial statements
and other unaudited financial information in respect of 21 subsidiaries, whose financial statements
and other financial information reflect total assets of Rs 142.55 Mn as at March 31, 2019, and total
revenues of Rs 66.28 Mn and net cash inflows of Rs 1.47 Mn for the year ended on that date. These
unaudited financial statements and other unaudited financial information have been furnished to us
by the management. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements also include the Group’s share
of net loss of Rs. Nil for the year ended March 31, 2019, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, in respect of 1 joint ventures, whose financial statements, other financial
information have not been audited and whose unaudited financial statements, other unaudited
financial information have been furnished to us by the Management. Our opinion, in so far as it
relates amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and joint venture, and our
report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries and joint venture, is based solely on such unaudited financial statement and other
unaudited financial information. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us by the Management, these financial statements and other financial information are not
material to the Group.

Our opinion above on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other
financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries and a
Joint venture, as noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

The other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of
our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination
of those books and reports of the other auditors;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
Statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary
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(2)

(h)

companies, none of the directors of the Group’s companies incorporated in India is disqualified as
on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 17 to this report;

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Holding
Company, its subsidiaries incorporated in India for the year ended March 31,2019,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of
the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial
information of the subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph:

i.  The Group and its’ joint venture does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its consolidated financial position;

ii.  The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended March 31, 2019;

iii. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India
during the year ended March 31, 2019.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

o

p'ér Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership Number: 09494 |
Place of Signature: New Delhi

Date: May 25, 2019
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Consolidated
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, which is the company incorporated in India, has, maintained in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial
statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31,2019, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership Number: 94941
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: May 25, 2019
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Zomato Media Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2019
CIN : U93030DL2010PTC198141

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

(Z Mn.) (X Mn.)
A)  Operating activities
Loss before tax (10,011.15) (1,063.12)
Adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows:
Liabilities written back (108.00) 2.51)
Excess provision written back {3.58) (13.89)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 106.72 128.33
Amortization of intangible assets 149.21 3191
Provision for doubtful debts 122.69 45.89
Provision for diminution in Investments 330.00 -
Provision for doubtful advances 4.91 491
Bad Debts written off 1.90 8.49
Income on assignment of Contracts (8,880.94)
Share-based payment expense 999.66 140.26
Gain on sale of current investments (346.09) (28.10)
Gain on sale of non-current investments (4734 -
Advances written off 52,75 6.25
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) (0.31) (2.96)
Allowance for credit loss on trade receivable written back - (2.01)
Unrealised Gain on Investment at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (208.00) (67.27)
Foreign currency monetary item translation difference on foreign operations (24.25) 28.38
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (4.83) (0.02)
Investment Written Off 0.61 0.52
Interest expense 1.24 571
Interest income (128.93) (65.02)
Operating Loss before Working Capital Changes (17,993.73) (844.26)
Movements in working capital :
Increase in trade receivables (521.17) (118.76)
Decrease in loans 43.21 19.09
Decrease/ (Increase) in other financial assets (3,169.50) 13.81
Decrease/ (Increase) in other assets (1,098.02) (193.18)
Decrease/ (Increase) in Inventory (21.3D1) -
Increase/(Decrease) in other liabilities 2,274.43 37.41
Increase in provisions 98.47 21.66
Increase in trade payables 3,046.01 266.65
Cash used in operations (17,341.61) (797.59)
Incotne taxes paid {276.80) (45.65)
Net cash used in operating activities (A) {17,618.41) (843.23)
B)  Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant & equipment (including capital work in progress and capital advances) (451.04) (53.24)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 0.59 13.54
Purchase of intangible assets (13.62) (5.55)
Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 3 months) (469.82) (1,608.05)
Redemption bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 3 months) 1,284.84 1,096.34
Proceeds from sale of financial assets — Liquid mutual fund units 28,246.33 2,254.96
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired (360.69) (21.64)
Payment to acquire financial assets — Liquid mutual fund units (40,868.15) (9,976.00)
Purchase of non-current investments (397.98) (5.00)
Sale of Investment 138.00
Interest received 128.93 65.02
Net cash flows used in investing activities (B) (12,762.61) (8,239.62)
C)  Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of Share Capital 22,644.86 9,699.59
Repayments of long term borrowings (0.70) (75.00)
Transaction cost on tssue of shares (22.64) (9.70)
Income on assignment of Contracts 8,880.94 -
Interest paid (1.24) (5.71)
Net cash flow from in financing activities ( C) 31,501.22 9,609.18
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,120.20 526.34
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,003.95 477.62
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (refer Note 8) 2,124.15 1,003.95







2.1

Zomato Media Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
CIN: U93030DL2010PTC198141

Corporate Information

Zomato Media Private Limited (‘the Company’ or ‘Zomato’), its subsidiaries (including branches), and a joint
venture (collectively referred to as “the Group™) primarily operates as an internet portal providing multitude of
information, including but not limited to details of menus, contacts, discount offers, quality of service and food
w.r.t restaurants and caterers and other service providers, online ordering of food from select restaurants, to be
availed by users of the website in making informed decisions about their dining options and related facilities and
by restaurants, hotels and other caterers to advertise themselves to the target audience in India and abroad.

The company is domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in
India. The registered office of the company is located at GF — 12A, 94, Meghdoot, Nehru Place, New Delhi -
110019.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019, were approved by the Board of
Directors and authorized for issue on May 25, 2019.

Basis of preparation of financial statements and Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS), under
the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except certain financial instrument which are measured at fair
values, the provisions of the companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) (to the extent notified). The Ind AS are prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with rule 3 of the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all amounts disclosed in the financial statements and
notes have been rounded off to the nearest Million (as per the requirement of Schedule HI), unless otherwise
stated.

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company, its subsidiaries
(including its branches), and a joint venture as at 31 March 2019, _

Subsidiaries

Control is achieved when the Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the
Company controls an investee if and only if the Company has:

P Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee)

P Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

P The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
financial statement from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in
the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments are made to that group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial
staternents to ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date
as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended on 31 March.

Consolidation procedure:

i. Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of
its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets
and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

ii. Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion
of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.
iii. Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between entities of the group [profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are
recognised in assets (if any), such as inventory, are eliminated in full]. Intragroup losses may indicate an
impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS12 Income Taxes applies to
temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

i. Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

ii. Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

iii. Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

iv. Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

v. Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

vi. Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

vii. Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, as would be required ifthe Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities

Joint Venture

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those
necessary to determine control over the subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in its joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method,
the investment in a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted
to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill
relating to the joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment
individually.
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The statement of profit and loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the joint venture. Any
change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and the joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the joint venture.

If an entity’s share of losses of a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture (which includes
any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture), the entity
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture. If the joint
venture subsequently reports profits, the entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share
of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of a joint venture is shown on the face of the statement of
profit and loss.

The financial statements of the joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When
necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment
loss on its investment in its joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective
evidence that the investment in the joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the joint venture and its carrying
value, and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of a joint venture’ in the statement of profit or foss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises
any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the joint venture upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

Change in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards

The Group applied Ind AS 115 for the first time. Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time
in March 2019, but do not have an impact on the financial statements of the Group. The Group has not early adopted
any standards or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has adopted the Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” with effect from April 1, 2018 as
notified on March 28, 2018 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. The new revenue standard supersede all previous revenue recognition requirements under Ind AS. This
new standard requires revenue to be recognized when promised goods or services are transferred to customers in
amounts that reflect the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Adoption of the new rules has affected the timing of revenue recognition for certain transactions of the
Group. Ind AS 115 permits two possible methods of transition:

- Retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 [Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors] with the option to elect certain practical expedients as defined within
Ind AS 115 (the full retrospective method); or
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- Retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying Ind AS 115 recognized at the date of initial
application (April 1, 2018) and providing certain additional disclosures as defined in Ind AS 115 (the modified
retrospective method).

The Group has applied the modified retrospective approach on transition to Ind AS 115.

Amendment to Ind AS 38 Intangible asset acquired free of charge

The amendment clarifies that in some cases, an intangible asset may be acquired free of charge, or for nominal
consideration, by way of a government grant. In accordance with Ind AS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and
Disclosure of Government Assistance, an entity may choose to recognise both the intangible asset and the grant
initially at fair value. If an entity chooses not to recognise the asset initially at fair value, the entity recognises the asset
initially at a nominal amount plus any expenditure that is directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended
use. The amendment also clarifies that revaluation model can be applied for asset which is received as government
grant and measured at nominal value. These amendments do not have any impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Considerations

The appendix clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) on the de-recognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to
advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, then the entity must determine the date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance
consideration. This Interpretation does not have any impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to Ind AS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits against
which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which
taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount.

Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on initial application of the amendments, the
change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may be recognised in opening retained earnings (or in
another component of equity, as appropriate), without allocating the change between opening retained earnings and
other components of equity. Entities applying this relief must disclose that fact,

These amendments do not have any impact on the Group as the Group has no deductible temporary differences or
assets that are in the scope of the amendments.

Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of Ind AS requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.
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Business combinations and goodwill

The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition
date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing
present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired
in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

» Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively.

» Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share — based
payments arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree
are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date.

» Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that standard.

» Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the
related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of the reacquired right.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of
Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. 1f the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent
reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and
all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital
reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in
equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
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goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit.

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods. Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are
called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date.

iii. Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An
asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

g0 o

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

a. Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

b. Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

c. [Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

iv. Foreign currencies
The Group’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees. For each foreign subsidiary and branch the
Group determines the functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency, which is the currency of their countries of domicile.
Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency spot rates at the date the

transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses an average rate if the
average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.
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Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functlonal currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with
the exception of the following:

a. Exchange differences arising on monetary items that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment in a
foreign operation are recognised in profit or loss in the separate financial statements of the reporting entity or the
individual financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate. In the financial statements that include
the foreign operation and the reporting entity (e.g., consolidated financial statements when the foreign operation
is a subsidiary), such exchange differences are recognised initially in OCI. These exchange differences are
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

¢. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in
OCL

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Group companies

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Indian Rupees at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated at exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. For practical reasons, the group uses an average rate to translate income
and expense items, if the average rate approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. The
exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in OCI. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Cumulative currency translation differences for all foreign operations are deemed to be zero at the date of
transition, viz., | April 2016. Gain or loss on a subsequent disposal of any foreign operation excludes translation
differences that arose before the date of transition but includes only translation differences arising after the
transition date
Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption

that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

a. Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

b. Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

¢. Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Group’s finance team determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement,
such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value. The team comprises of the
VP Finance and Director Finance.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. Involvement of external valuers
is decided on the basis of nature of transaction and complexity involved. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the finance team analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the team
verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation
to contracts and other relevant documents. A change in fair value of assets and liabilities is also compared with
relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable. .

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

vi. Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any

Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment. When significant parts of plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific
useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. ‘

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.
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Depreciation on all property plant and equipment are provided on a straight line method based on the estimated
useful life of the asset, which is as follows:

Property, plant and equipment Useful lives as per Schedule 11 | Useful lives estimated by
management
Air Conditioner 5 years 3 years
Electrical Equipment’s 5 years 3 years
Furniture & Fittings 10 years 3 years
Computers 3 years 2 years
Motor Vehicles 8 years 8 years
Telephone Instruments 5 years 2 years

Leasehold Improvements are amortised over 4 years or life based on lease period, whichever is lower. Based on
the expected useful lives of these assets, the group has considered below mentioned useful lives for different
classes of assets:

e The useful lives of electrical equipment’s, furniture and fittings, computers, air conditioners and telephone
instruments are estimated as 3,3,2,3 and 2 respectively. These lives are lower than those indicated in
schedule II to Companies Act 2013.

e  Improvements to leasehold buildings not owned by the Group are amortized over the lease period or
estimated useful life of such improvements, whichever is lower.

The management has estimated the useful lives and residual values of all property, plant and equipment and
adopted useful lives based on management’s assessment of their respective economic useful lives. The residual
values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Depreciation on the assets purchased during the year is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of purchase of
the assets. Individual assets costing less than INR 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

vii.  Goodwill and Intangible assets

Goodwill represents the cost of acquired business as established at the date of acquisition of the business in
excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or when events or
circumstances indicate that the implied fair value of goodwill is less than the carrying amount.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are
not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is
incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life
being 2 years and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
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pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless
such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets acquired in business combination, include brand, consumer contracts and relationship,
technology platform, content review and trademarks which amortized on a strai ght line basis over their estimated
useful life which is as follows:

Nature of Assets Life

Brand N ' - 2 yeérs
Consumer contracts and relationship 5 years
Techhology platform 5 years
Content review 5 years
Trademarks 5 years

The amortisation period and method are reviewed at least at each financial year —end. If the expected useful life
of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

For arrangements entered into prior to | April 2015, the group has determined whether the arrangement contain
lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

Group as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Group is classified as a finance lease.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Inventories

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on first in first out basis.
Inventory cost includes purchase price (including taxes other than those subsequently recoverable by the
Company from the tax authorities), freight inward and other related incidental expenses incurred in bringing the
inventory to its present condition and location.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost necessary
to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

The Group generates revenue from advertisings, subscriptions, online ordering transactions and other services.
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Revenue is recognized to depict the transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers upon the
satisfaction of performance obligation under the contract in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Consideration includes goods or services
contributed by the customer, as non-cash consideration, over which Group has control.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from
contracts with customers are provided in Note 22 and 32.

Where performance obligation is satisfied over time, Group recognizes revenue using input/ output method based
on performance completion till reporting date. Where performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time, Group
recognizes revenue when customer obtains control of promised goods and services in the contract.

Revenue is recognized net of any taxes collected from customers, which are remitted to governmental authorities.

Advertisement revenue

Advertising revenue is derived principally from the sale of online advertisements based on “clicks” (which are
generated each time users on our platforms click through our advertisements to an advertiser’s designated website)
delivered to advertisers. Group uses the output method and recognize advertising revenue on the basis of number
of clicks.

Subseription revenue
Revenues from subscription contracts are recognized over the subscription period in accordance with terms of
agreement entered into with customer.

Online Ordering
Revenues from Online Ordering are recognized in the form of commission income upon fulfilment of
performance obligation in accordance with the terms of agreement entered into with customers.

Incentives
The company provides various types of incentives to transacting users including credits and direct payment
discounts to promote the traffic on its site. The major accounting policy for incentives is described as follows:

Delivery services

Since the Group identified the transacting users as one of its’ customers for delivery services when the Group is
responsible for the delivery services, the incentives offered to transacting users are considered as payment to
customers and recorded as reduction of revenue on a transaction by transaction basis. The amount of incentive in
excess of the revenue earned from the transacting users is recorded as Advertisement and sales promotion
expenses.

When incentives are provided to transacting users where the Group is not responsible for delivery, the transacting
users are not considered customers of the Group, and such incentives are recorded as Advertisement and sales
promotion expenses.

Interest

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method. Interest income is included under the head
“other income” in the statement of profit and loss.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the customer (which consist
of unbilled revenue). If the Group performs by transferring services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional.
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Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in
financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before
the Group transfers services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund social security is a defined contribution scheme. The group has
no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund/social security. The group recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund scheme/ social security scheme as an expense, when an employee
renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet
date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Retirement benefits in the form of social insurance premiums due to Turkey Social Insurance Institutions are a
defined contribution scheme in Turkey and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss under
personnel expenses of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are made. These payments are
calculated to a percentage of current gross wages and they are recognized as expense when they are incurred.

The group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India and United Arab Emirates.
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to

retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur, Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

a. The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
b. The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability. The Group recognises
the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit
and loss:

a.  Setvice costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements; and
b. Net interest expense

The Group also operates a leave encashment plan in India, United Arab Emirates and Australia. The Group treats
accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, as short-term employee benefits.
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The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result
of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

In case of other foreign subsidiary companies, contributions are made as per the respective country laws and
regulations. The same is charged to statement of profit and loss on accrual basis. There is no obligation beyond
the Group’s contribution.

xii.  Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable
income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting advance
tax paid and income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where the relevant tax paying units
intends to settle the asset and liability on a net basis.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

a. When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss,

b. In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

a. When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss,

b. Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets
are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to




xiii.

Xiv.

Zomato Media Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
CIN: U93030DL2610PTC198141

be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Share based payment

Employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an
appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the
movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in
employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award
and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service
conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are
treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the
terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for
any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or
by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit
or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

Segment reporting

Identification of segments
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The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the geographical locations
of the customers, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that serves different markets. The
‘Others’ segment includes those segments, which are not separately reportable as per Ind AS 108.

Allocation of common costs

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each segment to
the total common costs.

Unallocated items

Unallocated items include general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any business
segment.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions and Contingent liabilities
i) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision
is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

ii) Contingent Liability

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one are more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Institute, or is a present obligation that arises from past event but is not recognised because
either it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent liabilities are
disclosed and not recognised.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Trade
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receivables are initially measured at transaction price. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades)
are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two categories:
1. Financial assets carried at amortised cost

2. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost
A ‘financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash

flows, and

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance
income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial assets instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTQOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in
the P&L.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 at fair value, other than
investments in equity instruments in subsidiaries, joint venture, which are carried at cost.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when:

i. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii. The group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’

arrangement; and either (a) the group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b)

the group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of
the asset, the group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.




Zomato Media Private Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

CIN: U93030DL2010PTC198141
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the group could be
required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

i. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

ii. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18.

The group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.
The application of simplified approach does not require the group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.
When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

i. All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options)
over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument.
ii. Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to

the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio
ofits trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected
life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

In case any balance is disputed by the customer then it will be reviewed separately for creating the provision and
amount up to 100% of the balance may be provided on the basis of nature of dispute. Any disputed balance
which is considered separately will be excluded from the normal ageing bucket for making the provision.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in
the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The
balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

i. Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables: ECL is presented as an
allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance
reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the group does not reduce impairment
allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the group combines financial instruments on the basis
of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The group does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial
assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.
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Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

i. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS
109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/
loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The group
has designated all financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss (except for loans and borrowings).

ii. Loans and borrowings - After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit
and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative
host contract — with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a
standalone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be
required by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price,
commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable,
provided in the case of a nonfinancial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the
cash fiows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through
profit or loss.
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If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the group does not
separate embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the
entire hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives
and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

xviii. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU)
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated
by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered
by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady
or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in
which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment fosses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at 31 March and when circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired.
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Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs)
to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Xix. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

XX. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts (if any) as they are considered an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.
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31 March 2019

31 March 2018

5§  Financial assets - 1 (Non-current) (¥ Mn.) (T Mn.)
Investments at Cost
Investment in Unquoted instroments (fully paid)
Investment in Joint Ventures
98 (31 March 2018: 98) equity shares of QAR 1,000 each fully paid in Zomato Media WLL 1.63 1.63
Less: Share of loss of a Joint Venture (1.63) - (1.63) -
Other Investments
Investment in Unquoted instruments (fully paid)
Investment in Preference Instruments
Nil (31 March 2018:5,417) 0.00001% of Comp ily Convertible Pr Shares of T 20 each fully paid in
Grab A Grub Services Private Limited - 90.66
2,553 (31 March 2018: 2,553) 0.01% of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of 210 each fully paid in
Vicinia Retail Private Limited 481 4.81
8,01,370 (31 March 2018:Nil Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in Loyal
Hospitality Private Limited (At cost less provision for other than temporary diminution in value Z 330.00 Mn.) 330.00
334.81
Investment in Optionally Convertible Debentures
67,984 (31 March 2018: Nil) Optionally Convertible Debentures of 21000 each fully paid in Vicinia Retail
Private Limited 67.98 -
67.98 -
Investment in Equity Instruments
10 (31 March 2018: Nil) Equity Shares of 210 each fully paid in Loyal Hospitality Private Limited (At cost less
provision for other than temporary diminution in value ¥ 0.00 Mn )* 0.00 -
100 (31 March 2018: 100) Equity Shares of T 10 each fully paid in Vicinia Retail Private Limited 0.19 0.19
0.19 0.19
402.98 95.66
Provision for impairment in value of investment 330.00 -
72,98 95.66
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 7298 95.66
Aggregate provision for impairment in value of investments 330.00 -
* Investment value less than ¥ 10,000
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
6 Financial assets - Investments (current) No, of Units (¥ Mn.) No. of Units (X Mn.)
Investments at fair value through Profit & Loss
Quoted Mutual funds
Axis Liquid Fund - Direct - Growth 17,00,572 3,526.18 10,44,789 2,013.86
Aditya Birla Sun Life Floating Rate Fund- Long Term- Growth- Direct Plan - - 25.78,733 555.27
Invesco India Liquid Fund-Direct Plan Growth (formerly known as Religare Invesco India Liquid Fund-Direct
Plan Growth) - 14,774 35.34
SBI-Magnum Insta Cash Fund-Direct Plan Growth - - 7,895 3034
Franklin India Ultra Short Bond Fund Super Institutional Plan- Direct - Growth Plan - - 44,45,374 10732
ICICI Prudential Flexible Income - Direct Plan Growth - - 16,57,257 55532
ICICI Pru Liquid Fund - Direct Growth 1,71,27418 4,734 30 - -
Kotak Low Duration Fund - Direct - Growth - - 2,353,695 555.79
Kotak Floater Short Term - Direct Plan Growth - - 7,06,048 2,013.62
Indiabulls Ultra Short Term Fund - Direct Plan Growth - USGI - - 1,733 3.00
Aditya Birla Liquid Fund Direct Growth 1,54,69,284 4,647.53 - -
Aditya Birla Sun life Cash Plus-Direct Plan — Growth Direct Plan - - 98,736 27.58
Reliance Medium Term Fund- Direct Plan Growth Plan- Growth Option - - 1,49,37,493 555.70
Aditya Birla Sun Life Floating Rate Fund Short Term Plan- Growth- Direct Plan - - 75,15,574 1,743.49
HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct Growth 844,162 3,105.07 - -
Kotak Liquid Fund - Direct Growth 7.05,369 2,669.35 - -
SBI Liquid Fund - Direct Growth 9,08,320 2,660.08 - -
Reliance Liquid Fund - Treasury Plan - Direct Growth Plan - Growth Option 6,583 30.03 - -
21,372.54 8,196.63
Aggregate of Quoted i (InTMn,) 21,372.54 8,196.63
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
7 Trade receivables (X Mn.) (¥ Mn.)
Trade receivables 703.37 260.84
Total trade receivables 703.37
Break-up for trade receivabl
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(¥ Mn.) X Mn.)
Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good 703.37 260.84
Trade Receivables-credit impaired 176.97 96.68
880.34 357.52
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade Receivables-credit impaired (176.97) (96.68)
{176.97) {96.68)
Tetal Trade receivables 70337 260.84

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in

which any director is a partner, a director or a member.
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 90 days.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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31 March 2019

31 March 2018

8 Cash & cash equivalents (T Mn,) (X Mn.)
Balances with banks:
- On current accounts 1,955.11 1,001.23
— Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 150.00 1.20
-- Restricted Cash held in separate accounts* - -
Cash on hand 2.43 1.52
Cheques in hand 16.61 -
2,124.15 1,003.95
* As per the directives of Reserve Bank of India, the Company operates all online payments received from customers through a Nodal account. Balance lying in such account is 2 170.14 Mn. (31 March 2018: € 85.37 Mn.) and
amount due to merchants is ¥ 694.98 Mn (31 March 2018: Z 86.72 Mn.) as at 31 March 2019, which is available for use by the Company is disclosed as "Restricted Cash held in separate accounts” and balance as at Mar 31,
2019 which is payable has been disclosed under other current liability * Money held in trust' in the financial statements.
At 31 March 2019, the Company had available Z 45.00 Mn. (31 March 2018:  45.00 Mn.) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equival
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
X Mn.) ZMn)
Balances with banks:
— On current accounts 1,955.11 1,001.23
— Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 150.00 1.20
-- Restricted Cash held in separate accounts* - -
Cash on hand 2.43 1.52
Cheques in hand 16.61 -
2,124.15 1,003.95
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
9 Other bank balances {¥ Mn.) (X Mn.)}
Balances with banks:
— Deposits with original maturity of more than three months 262,79 1,076.78
~ Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months 5811 451.62
— Margin money deposits 21.64 11.61
342.54 1,540.01
Amount disclosed as "Other financial asset” (79.75) (463.23)
262.79 1,076.78
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
10 Loans (¥ Mn.) (T Mn.)
Unsecured, considered good
Loans to Related Parties - 43.21
-~ 43.21
Breakup of above-
Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
Loans to Related Parties - 43.21
Total non-current Loans -
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
11 Other financial assets (T Mn.) (X Mn.)
Margin money deposits* 21.64 11.61
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 month 58.11 451.62
Interest accrued on fixed deposit with banks 5.42 12.29
Interest accrued on Others - 3.86
Amount receivable on assignment of contract 3,426.52 -
Security deposits 15598 97.12
Advances recoverable in cash or kind 3397 7.04
Accrued Income 3.77 3.87
3,70541 587.41
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful balances)
Unsecured, considered good - -
Doubtful - -
Total other financial asset 3,705.41 587.41
Breakup of above-
Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
Margin money deposits* 21.64 1161
Deposits with original maturity for more than {2 month 0.48 450.09
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 0.03 3.09
Security deposits 90.24 57.59
‘Total non-current financial assets 112.39 522.38
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 month 57.63 1.53
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 539 920
Interest accrued on Others - 3.86
Security deposit 65.74 39.53
Amount receivable on assignment of contract 3,426.52 -
Advances recoverable in cash or kind 3397 7.04
Accrued Income 3.77 3.87
Total current financial assets 3,593.02 65,03
* Margin money deposit includes pledged with pal authorities of T Nil (31 March 2018: 2 0.09 Mn), deposit with bank for visa guarantee charges in Dubai amounting to 2 0.94 Mn (31 March 2018: 2 0.88 Mn) and with

other countries ¥ 20.70 Mn { 31 March 2018: 2 [0.63 Mn)
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Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost

Non-current

Margin money deposits (Refer Note 11)

Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months (Refer Note 11)
Interest accrued on fixed deposit (Refer Note 11)

Security deposits (Refer Note 11)

Loans (Refer Note 10)

Total non-current financial assets carried at amortised cost

Current

Security deposit (Refer Note 11)

Trade receivables (Refer Note 7)

Cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 8)

Other Bank Balances (Refer Note 9)

Interest accrued on fixed deposits (Refer Note 11)

Interest accrued on others (Refer Note 11)

Advances recoverable in cash or kind (Refer Note 11)
Amount receivable on assignment of contract (Refer Note 11)
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months (Refer Note 11)
Accrued Income (Refer Note 11)

Total current financial assets carried at amortised cost

Total financial assets carried at amortised cost

31 March 2019

65.74
703.37
2,124.15
262,79
539

3397
3,426.52
57.63
3.77
6,683.33

!

6,795.72

31 March 2018
& Mn.)

11.61

450.09

3.09

57.59

43.21

2,972.19

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

12 Current tax assets (¥ Mn.) (X Mn.)
Advance tax / Tax deducted at source (net) 376.17 97.42
376.17 97,42
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
13 Prepayments and other assets (X Mn.)} X Mn.)
Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise
Staff Imprest 15.46 4.64
Advances to supplier 518.17 4255
Prepaid expenses 140.73 38.12
Money Held in Trust 374.77 276.73
Capital advances 747 1.05
Other advances 41.30 2.06
Balance with statutory/government authorities 460.32 58.55
1,558.22 423.70
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful balances)
Doubtful (35.01) (13.28)
Total 1,523.21 410.42
Breakup of above:
Non-Current
Prepaid expenses 32.36 4.28
Capital advances 747 1.05
Total non-current 39.83 5.33
Current
Staff imprest 15.46 4.64
Less: -Allowance for doubtful advances (0.73) 14.73 (0.73) 3.91
Advances to supplier 518.17 - 4255
Less: -Aliowance for doubtful advances (34.28) 483.89 (12.55) 30.00
Prepaid expenses 108.37 3384
Other advances 41.30 2.06
Money held in trust # 704.24 32741
Less : liabilities against money held in trust (329.47) 37477 (50.68) 276.73
Balance with statutory/government authorities 460.32 58.55
Total current 1,483.38 405.09
# represents money lying with Payment gateways
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
14 __Inventories (I Mn,) Mn,)
Traded Goods (at lower of cost or net realizable value) 2131 -
Total 21.31 -

(This space has been inmtentionally lefi blank)
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31 March 2019

31 March 2018

15 (a) Share capital (X Mn.) (X Mn.)
Authorised Share Capital
600,000 (31 March 2018: 600,000) equity shares of T | each 0.60 0.60
188,587 (31 March 2018; 188,587) 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of 2 10 each - Class A, B, C and D 1.89 189
930,551,391 (3 Ist March 2018: 930,551,391) 0.0001% Compuisorily Convertible Preference Shares of 2 | each - Class E 930.55 930.55
190,653,540 (3 Ist March 2018: 190,653,540} 0.0001% Compuisorily Convertible Preference Shares of 2 2 each - Class F 381.31 381.31
10,885 (31 March 2018: 10,885) 0.00000015% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of 2 6,700 each - Class G 7293 72.93
83,425 (31 March 2018: 83,425) 0.00000015% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of 2 6,700 each - Class H 558.94 558.94
1,16,350 (31 March 2018: NIL) 0.0000001 5% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of 26,700 each - Class 1 779.55 -
2,725.77 1,946.22
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
337,694 (31 March 2018: 337,694) equity shares of 2 | each _ 0.34 0.34
Less: 41,766 (31 March 2018 :41,766) Shares held by ESOP Trust as at the year end of Z | each * (0.04) (0.04)
0.30
Instruments entirely equity in nature
78,791 (31 March 2018: 78,791) 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of Z 10 each - Class A 0.79 0.79
16,396 (31 March 2018: 16,396) 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of Z 10 each - Class B 0.17 017
13,664 (31 March 2018: 13,664) 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of 10 each - Class C 0.13 013
28,460 (31 March 2018: 28,460) 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of Z 10 each - Class D 0.28 0.28
729,192,849 (31 March 2018: 729,192,849) 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of 2 1 each - Class E 729.19 729.19
190,653,540 (31 March 2018: 190,653,540} 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of 2 2 each - Class F 381.31 38131
10,885 (31 March 2018: 10,885) 0.00000015% Compuisorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of T 6700 each - Class G** 7293 72.93
83,425 (31 March 2018: 83,425) 0.00000015% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of ¥ 6700 each - Class H 558.95 55895
1,03,500 (31 March 2018: NIL) 0.00000015% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of 26700 each - Class 1 693.45 -
2,437.20 1,743.75

* Includes 27,089 shares transferred by Deepinder Goyal to the trust on October 25, 2014 without cash consideration and 14,677 shares purchased @ Rs. 1 from Zomato Media Private Limited on different dates. The shares are
lying in the custody of the trustee.

** In previous year Zomato Media Private Limited (ZMPL) had acquired Carthero Technologies Private limited (CTPL) by way of swap share i.e. 10,885 CCCPS of ZMPL issued in lieu of 36,808 CCPS and 2,798 equity share
of CTPL for non-cash consideration.

a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity shares
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
No. (X Mn) Neo., (¥ Mn.)
At the beginning of the year 337,694 0.34 3,07,616 0.31
Issued during the year /CCCPS/CCPS converted to Equity Shares - - 30,078 0.03
Outstanding at the end of the year 3,37,694 0.34 3,37,694 0.34
Less: Shares held by ESOP Trust as at the year end 41,766 0.04 41,766 0.04
Outstanding at the end of the year 2,95,928 0.30 2,95,928 0.30
Instruments entirely equity in nature (CCCPS- Class A,B,C,D,G.H &I)
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
No. (X Mn.) No. (X Mn.)
At the beginning of the year- Class A 78,791 0.79 78,791 0.79
At the beginning of the year- Class B 16,396 0.16 32,791 0.33
At the beginning of the year- Class C 13,664 0.14 27,327 027
At the beginning of the year- Class D 28,460 0.28 28,460 0.28
At the beginning of the year - Class G 10,885 72.93 10,885 7293
At the beginning of the year - Class H 83,425 558.95 83,425 558.95
Converted to Equity during the year - Class B - - (16,395) (0.16)
Converted to Equity during the year - Class C - - (13,663) (0.14)
Issued during the year- Class 1 1,03,500 693 .45 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 3,35,121 1,326,70 2,31,621 633.25
Instruments entirely equity in nature (CCPS- Class E&F)
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
No. (X Mn,) No. (X Mn.)
At the beginning of the year- Class E 72,91,92,849 729.19 93,05,51,391 930.55
At the beginning of the year- Class F 19,06,53,540 381.31 19,06,53,540 38131
Converted to Equity during the year - Class E - - (20,13,58,542) (201.36)
Outstanding at the end of the year 91,98,46,389 1,110.50 91,98,46,389 1,110.50

b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Z | per share Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive ining assets of the pany, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number
of equity shares held by the shareholders.

¢) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCCPS- Class A

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company issued 78,791 CCCPS-Class A, of 210 each fully paid-up at a premium of 26,970 per share CCCPS carry cumulative dividend @ 0.0001% p.a. The company declares
and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The preferential dividend is lative and shall accrue from year to year whether paid or not paid. All accrued dividends shall be paid in full (together with dividends accrued from prior
years) prior to and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon shares of any other class or series in the same financial year. In addition to and after payment of the preference dividend, each CCCPS would be
entitled to participate pari-passu in any cash or non-cash dividend paid to the holders of share of any other class (including ordinary share} or series on a pro-rata as if converted basis. Subject to the applicable laws, the CCCPS
holder shall be entitled to receive notice of and vote on all matters that are submitted to the vote of the shareholders of the company (including the ordinary shares). Each CCCPS shall entitle the holder to the number of votes
equal to the number of whole or fractional ordinary shares into which such CCCPS could then be converted.

(i1) Each holder of CCCPS are entitled to convert the CCCPS into ordinary shares at any time at the option of the holder of the CCCPS or subject to the compliance of applicable laws each CCCPS automatically be converted into
ordinary share, at the conversion price then in effect, upon the earlier of (i) one day prior to the expiry of 20 years from the allotment or (i) in connection with a listing {or any listing of shares), prior to the filing of prospectus (or
equivalent document by whatever name called) by the Company to the competent authority or such later date as may be applicable under applicable laws.

(iii) In the event of the liquidation of the , total p ds from the such liquidation, shall be distributed first to the holders of CCCPS, until the holders have received the minimum retumn,

(iv) The company will issue ordinary share pursuant to the conversion of any CCCPS shall be that number obtained by dividing the total amount actually paid by the holder of CCCPS by the applicable conversion price at the
time in effect for such CCCPS which will be as per provision of clause 75 and 76.3 of Article of Association. No fractional share shall be issued upon conversion of CCCPS and number of ordinary share to be issued shall be
rounded to the nearest whole share
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15 () Share capital(contd.)
d) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCCPS- Class B
(1) During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company issued 32,791 CCCPS- Class B, of 210 each fully paid-up at a premium of Z 97,703 per share CCCPS carry cumulative dividend @ 0.0001% p.a. The company declares
and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The preferential dividend is cumulative and shall accrue from year to year whether paid or not paid. All accrued dividends shall be paid in full (together with dividends accrued from prior
years) prior to and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon shares of any other class or series in the same financial year. In addition to and after payment of the preference dividend, each CCCPS would be
entitled to participate pari-passu in any cash or non-cash dividend paid to the holders of share of any other class (including ordinary share) or series on a pro-rata as if converted basis. Subject to the applicable laws, the CCCPS
holder shall be entitled to receive notice of and vote on all matters that are submitted to the vote of the shareholders of the company (including the ordinary shares). Each CCCPS shall entitle the holder to the number of votes
equal to the number of whole or fractional ordinary shares into which such CCCPS could then be converted.
(i) Each holder of CCCPS are entitled to convert the CCCPS into ordinary shares at any time at the option of the holder of the CCCPS or subject to the compliance of applicable laws each CCCPS automatically be converted into
ordinary share, at the conversion price then in effect, upon the earlier of (i} one day prior to the expiry of 20 years from the allotment or (ii) in connection with a listing (or any listing of shares), prior to the filing of prospectus (or
equivalent document by whatever name called) by the Company to the competent authority or such later date as may be applicable under applicable laws.
(iti) In the event of the liquidation of the pany, total p ds from the such liquidation, shall be distributed first to the holders of CCCPS, until the holders have received the minimum return,
(iv) The company will issue ordinary share pursuant to the conversion of any CCCPS shall be that number obtained by dividing the total amount actually paid by the holder of CCCPS by the applicable conversion price at the
time in effect for such CCCPS which will be as per provision of clause 77 and 77.3 of Article of Association. No fractional share shall be issued upon conversion of CCCPS and number of ordinary share to be issued shall be
rounded to the nearest whole share.

¢) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCCPS- Class C

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company issued 27,327 CCCPS- Class C, of 210 each fully paid-up at a premium of 2 113,729 per share CCCPS carry cumulative dividend @ 0.0001% p.a. The company declares
and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The p ial dividend is lative and shall accrue from year to year whether paid or not paid. All accrued dividends shall be paid in full (together with dividends accrued from prior
years) prior to and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon shares of any other class or series in the same financial year.

(i1) Each holder of CCCPS are entitled to convert the CCCPS into equity shares at any time at the option of the holder of the CCCPS subject to the compliance of applicable laws each CCCPS automatically be converted into
equity share, at the conversion price then in effect, upon the earlier of (i) one day prior to the expiry of 20 years from the allotment or (ii) in connection with a listing (or any listing of shares), prior to the filing of prospectus (or
equivalent document by whatever name called) by the Company to the competent authority or such later date as may be applicable under applicable laws. Each CCCPS shall be converted into Ordinary Shares at the conversion
price determined as per detailed terms and conditions of CCCPS.

(iii) The conversion price of each CCCPS to be updated at the time of closing and shall be subject to adjustments from time to time as provided herein, i
conversion prices applicable form time to time, shall be documented by the Board and notify to the holders of CCCPS.

Tuding as provided for furth of the Articles. Any adjustments of the

) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCCPS- Class D

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company issued 28,460 CCCPS- Class D, of 210 each fully paid-up at a premium of Z 1,36,386 per share CCCPS carry cumulative dividend @ 0.0001% p.a. The company
declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The F ial Dividend is lative and shall accrue from year to year whether or not paid, and accrued dividends shall be paid in full (together with dividends accrued from
prior years) pari passu with the preferential dividend on the CCCPS but prior and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon Shares of any other class or series in the same fiscal year.

(if) In addition to and after payment of the Preferential Dividend, each CCCPS would be entitled to participate pari passu in any cash or non-cash dividends paid to the holders of shares of any other class (including Ordinary
Shares) or series on a pro rata, on a Fully Diluted Basis.

(iii) No dividend or distribution shall be paid on any Share of any class or series of the Company if and to the extent that as a consequence of such dividend or distribution any CCCPS would be entitled to a dividend hereunder
greater than the maximum amount permitted to be paid in respect of CCCPS of an Indian company held by a no ident under applicable Laws (including without limitation, the Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or
Issue of Security by a Person Resident Qutside Indta), Regulations, 2000).

(iv) The holders of the CCCPS shall be entitled to vote on all matters that are submitted to the vote of the Shareholders of the Company (including the holders of Ordinary Shares). Subscribers of the CCCPS will be able to
exercise voting rights on the Class D CCCPS as if the same were converted into Ordinary Shares. Each CCCPS shall entitle the holder to the number of votes equal to the number of whole or fractional Ordinary Shares into
which such CCCPS could then be converted

g) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCPS- Class E

(1) During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company issued 930,551 391 Class E CCPS of Z1 each as bonus shares credited as fully paid-up to the eligible preference shareholders whose name appear in the Register of
Members/Beneficial Owners position of the Company on 31 March 2017 in the proportion of 1 : 6699 i.e. 6699 new shares have been issued for every 1 share of the Company held as on 30 March 2017,

(i) Class E CCPS carry preferential dividend @ 0.0001% p.a. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The Preferential Dividend is non-cumulative and dividends shall be paid pari passu with the preferential
dividend on the other existing preference shares of all classes, but prior and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon the Ordinary Shares in the same fiscal year.

(iii) Class E CCPS would not be entitled to participate in any cash or non-cash dividends paid to the holders of shares of any other class (including Ordinary Shares) or series.

{iv) No dividend or distribution shall be paid on any Share of any class or seties of the Company if and to the extent that as a consequence of such dividend or distribution any Class E CCPS would be entitled to a dividend
hereunder greater than the maximum amount permitted to be paid in respect of CCPS of an Indian company held by a nol ident under applicable Laws (including without limitation, the Foreign Exch: M

(Transfer or Issue of Security by a Person Resident Outside India), Regulations, 2000).

(v) The holders of the Class E CCPS shall not be entttled to any voting rights.

(vi) Class E CCPS shall only be transferable along with the existing Class A CCCPS, Class B CCCPS and Class C CCCPS in proportion of bonus issuance of CCPS Class E.

(vii) Class E CCPS will not be transferable on standalone basis.

(viii) Class E-CCPS shall not be entitled to any liquidation preference.

(ix) Class E-CCPS shall be converted to Ordinary Shares in the ratio of 1:0.0000001 (10,000,000 Class E CCPS to convert into ! Ordinary Share) in the following events; l) upon the earlier of conversion of 0.0001% CCCPS,

Class B-CCCPS, or Class C- CCCPS in proportion of such conversion; or 2) | day prior to expiry of 20 years from the date of all ;or3) of liquid p dings of the Company; or 4) Dissolution or
winding up of the affairs, business or asset of the Company.

h) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCPS- Class F

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company issued 190,653,540 Class F CCPS, of 22 each as bonus shares credited as fully paid-up to the eligible preference shareholders whose name appear in the Register of
Members/Beneficial Owners position of the Company on 31 March 2017 in the proportion of 1 : 6699 i.e. 6699 new sliares have been issued for every 1 share of the Company held as on 30 March 2017,

(ii) Class F - CCPS carry preferential dividend @ 0.0001% p.a. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The Preferential Dividend is non-cumulative and dividends shall be paid pari passu with the
preferential dividend on the Class D - CCCPS, but prior and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon Ordinary Shares in the same fiscal year.

(iii) Class F CCPS shall not be entitled to participate in any cash or non-cash dividends paid to the holders of shares of any other class {including Ordinary Shares) or series.

(iv) No dividend or distribution shall be paid on any Share of any class or series of the Company if and to the extent that as a consequence of such dividend or distribution any Class F CCPS would be entitled to a dividend
hereunder greater than the maximum amount permitted to be paid in respect of CCPS of an Indian company held by a non-resident under applicable Laws (including without limitation, the Foreign Exch M

(Transfer or Issue of Security by a Person Resident Outside India), Regulations, 2000).

(v) The holders of the Class F - CCPS shall not be entitled to any voting rights.

(vi) Class F - CCPS shall only be transferable along with the existing Class D CCCPS in proportion of bonus issuance of Class F CCPS.

{vii) These shares will not be transferable on standalone basis.

{viii} Class F-CCPS shall not be entitled to any liquidation preference.

(ix) Class F-CCPS shall be converted to Ordinary Shares in the ratio of 1:0.0000001 (10,000,000 Class F CCPS to convert into | Ordinary Share) in the following events; 1) upon the earlier of conversion of 0.0001% CCCPS,
Class B-CCCPS, or Class C- CCCPS in proportion of such conversion; or 2) | day prior to expiry of 20 years from the date of all or3) of liquid: proceedings of the Company; or 4) Dissolution or
winding up of the affairs, business or asset of the Company.
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15 (a) Share capital(contd.)

i) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCCPS- Class G

(1) During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company issued 10,885 CCCPS- Class G, of 26700 each fully paid-up at a premium of T 112,181 per share CCCPS carry cumulative dividend @ 0.00000015% p.a. The company
declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The preferential dividend is lative and shall accrue from year to year whether paid or not paid. All accrued dividends shall be paid in full (together with dividends accrued from
prior years) pari passu with the preferential dividend on CCCPS and CCCPS but prior and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon shares of any other class or series in the same fiscal year. In addition to and
after payment of the preference dividend, each CCCPS would be entitled to participate pari-passu in any cash or non-cash dividend paid to the holders of share of any other class (including ordinary share) or series on a pro-rata
as if fully diluted basis. Subject to the applicable laws, the CCCPS holder shall be entitled to receive notice of and vote on all matters that are submitted to the vote of the shareholders of the company (including the ordinary
shares). Each CCCPS shall entitle the holder to the number of votes equal to the number of whole or fractional ordinary shares into which such CCCPS could then be converted.

(ii) Each holder of CCCPS are entitled to convert the CCCPS into ardinary shares at any time at the option of the holder of the CCCPS or subject to the compliance of applicable laws each CCCPS automatically be converted into
ordinary share, at the conversion ratio then in effect, upon the earlier of (i) one day prior to the expiry of 20 years from the allotment or (ii) in connection with a listing (or any listing of shares), prior to the filing of prospectus (or
equivalent d by wk name called) by the Company with the competent authority or such later date as may be permitted under applicable laws.

(iii) In the event of the liquidation of the pany, total p ds from the such liquidation, shall be distributed to the holders in the manner provided in Articles of Association of the Company and Shareholders Agreement.

(iv) The company will issue ordinary share pursuant to the conversion of any CCCPS shall be that number obtained by multiplying the total number of CCCPS held by the holder of CCCPS with the applicable conversion ratio at
the time in effect for such CCCPS which will be as per provision of clause 82 of Article of Association. No fractional share shall be issued upon conversion of CCCPS and number of ordinary share to be issued shall be rounded
16 the nearest whole share

j) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCCPS- Class H

(1) During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company issued 83,425 CCCPS- Class H, of 36700 each fully paid-up at a premium of % 109,567.19 (rounded off) per share CCCPS carry cumulative dividend @ 0.00000015%

p.a. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The preferential dividend is cumulative and shall accrue from year to year whether paid or not paid. All accrued dividends shall be paid in full (together with

dividends accrued from prior years) pari passu with the preferential dividend on CCCPS and CCCPS but prior and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon shares of any other class or series in the same fiscal

year. In addition to and after pay of the prefe dividend, each CCCPS would be entitled to participate pari-passu in any cash or non-cash dividend paid to the holders of share of any other class (including ordinary share)

or series on a pro-rata on & fully diluted basis. Subject to the applicable laws, the CCCPS holder shall be entitled to receive notice of and vote on all matters that are submitted to the vote of the shareholders of the company

(including the ordinary shares). Each CCCPS shall entitle the holder to the number of votes equal to the number of whole or fractional ordinary shares into which such CCCPS could then be converted.

(i) Each holder of CCCPS are entitled to convert the CCCPS into ordinary shares at any time at the option of the holder of the CCCPS or subject to the compliance of applicable laws each CCCPS automatically be converted into

ordinary share, at the conversion ratio then in effect, upon the earlier of (i) one day prior to the expiry of 20 years from the allotment or (ii} in connection with a listing (or any listing of shares), prior to the filing of prospectus (or
quivalent d by wh name called) by the Company with the competent authority or such later date as may be permitted under applicable laws.

(iti) In the event of the liquidation of the company, total proceeds from the such liquidation, shall be distributed to the holders in the manner provided in Articles of A iation of the Company and Shareholders Agreement dated

February 01, 2018.

(iv) The company will issue ordinary share pursuant to the conversion of any CCCPS shall be that number obtained by multiplying the total number of CCCPS held by the holder of CCCPS with the applicable conversion ratio at

the time in effect for such CCCPS which will be as per provision of clause 83 of Article of Association. No fractional share shall be issued upon conversion of CCCPS and number of ordinary share to be issued shall be rounded

to the nearest whole share

k) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCCPS- Class [

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company issued 1,03,500 CCCPS- Class I, of 26700 each fully paid-up at a premium of 212,090.93 (rounded off) per share. CCCPS carry cumulative dividend @ 0.00000015%
p.a. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The preferential dividend is cumulative and shall accrue from year to year whether paid or not paid. All accrued dividends shall be paid in full (together with
dividends accrued from prior years) pari passu with the preferential dividend on CCCPS and CCCPS but prior and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon shares of any other class or series in the same fiscal
year. In addition to and after payment of the preference dividend, each CCCPS would be entitled to participate pari-passu in any cash or non-cash dividend paid to the holders of share of any other class (including ordinary share)
or series on a pro-rata on a fully diluted basis. Subject to the applicable laws, the CCCPS holder shall be entitled to receive notice of and vote on all matters that are submitted to the vote of the shareholders of the company
(including the ordinary shares). Each CCCPS shall entitle the holder to the number of votes equal to the number of whole or fractional ordinary shares into which such CCCPS could then be converted.

(ii) Each holder of CCCPS are entitled to convert the CCCPS into ordinary shares at any time at the option of the holder of the CCCPS or subject to the compliance of applicable laws each CCCPS automatically be converted into
ordinary share, at the conversion ratio then in effect, upon the earlier of (i) one day prior to the expiry of 20 years from the allotment or (ii) in connection with a listing (or any listing of shares), prior to the filing of prospectus (or
equivalent document by whatever name called) by the Company with the competent autherity or such later date as may be permitted under applicable laws.

(iii) In the event of the liquidation of the company, total proceeds from the such liquidation, shall be distributed to the holders in the manner provided in Articles of Association of the Company and Shareholders Agreement dated
October 12, 2018

(iv) The company will issue ordinary share pursuant to the conversion of any CCCPS shall be that number obtained by multiplying the total number of CCCPS held by the holder of CCCPS with the applicable conversion ratio at
the time in effect for such CCCPS which will be as per provision of clause 83 of Article of Association, No fractional share shall be issued upon conversion of CCCPS and number of ordinary share to be issued shall be rounded
to the nearest whole share.

1) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
Equity shares of 21 each fully paid up

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

Name of the shareholder
No. % of Holding No. % of Holding
Info Edge (India) Limited 1,64,451 48.70% 1,64,451 48.70%
Mr. Deepinder Goyal, Director 61,245 18.14% 61,245 18.14%
Mr. Pankaj Chaddah, Nominee Director 13916 4.12% 20,416 6.05%
Foodiebay Employees ESOP Trust 41,766 12.37% 41,766 12.37%
Alipay Singapore Holding Pte Ltd 32,629 9.66% - 0.00%
Naukri Internet Services Limited 728 0.22% 33,357 9.88%
Instruments entirely equity in nature
CCCPS of Z 10 each fully paid- Class A
Name of Shareholder As at 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 .
No. % of Holding No. % of Holding

Info Edge (India) Limited 21.225 26.94% 21225 26.94%
SC1 Growth Investment I 57.566 73.06% 57,566 73.06%
CCCPS of T 10 each fully paid- Class B

As at 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Name of Sharcholder No. % of Holding No. % of Holding
Sequoia Capital India Growth Investment Holding 1 4,099 25.00% 4,099 25.00%
VY Investments Mauritius Limited 12,297 75.00% 12,297 75.00%
CCCPS of ¥ 10 each fully paid- Class C

As at 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Name of Shareholder No. % of Holdin No. % of Holding
Sequoia Capital India Growth Investment Holding I 9.291 68.00% - 9,291 68.00%
VY Investments Mauritius Limited 3,826 28.00% 3,826 28.00%
CCCPS of ¥ 10 each fully paid- Class D

As at 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Name of Shareholder No. % of Holding No. % of Holding
VY Investments Mauritius Limited 5,732 20.14% 5732 20.14%
Duneam Investments (Mauritius) Pte Ltd. 22,728 79.86% 22,728 79.86%
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15 (a) Share capital(contd.)

CCPS of T 1 each fully paid- Class E

Narme of Shareholder

As at 31 March 2019

31 March 2018

No. % of Holding No. % of Holding

SCI Growth Investments 11 38,56,34,634 52.89% 38,56,34,634 52.89%
Info Edge (India) Limited 14,21,86,275 19.50% 14,21,86,275 19.50%
VY Investments Mauritius Limited 10,80,07,977 14.81% 10,80,07.977 14.81%
Sequoia Capital India Growth Investment Holdings | 8,96,99,610 12.30% 8,96,99,610 12.30%
CCPS of T 2 each fully paid- Class F

As at 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Name of Shareholder No. % of Holding No. % of Holdin
Dunearn Investments (Mauritius) Pte Ltd. 15,22,54,872 79.86% 15,22,54,872 79.86%
VY Investments Mauritius Limited 3,83,98,668 20.14% 3,83,98,668 20.14%
CCCPS of X 6,700 each fully paid- Class G

As at 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Name of Shareholder No. % of Holding No. % of Holding
Nexus Ventures I1I Ltd. 6,347 58.31% 6,347 58.31%
Sequoia Capital India Investments IV 2,154 19.79% 2,154 19.79%
Blume Ventures Fund H (Mauritius) 1,160 10.66% 1160 10.66%
CCCPS of % 6,700 each fully paid- Class H

As at 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Name of Sharcholder No. % of Holding No. % of Holding
Alipay Singapore Holding Pte. Ltd. 83,425 100.00% 83,425 100.00%
CCCPS of %6,700 each fully paid- Ciass I

As at 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Name of Shareholder No. % of Holdin, No. % of Holding
Antfin Singapore Holding Pte. Ltd. 70,350 67.97% - -
Glade Brook Private Investors XVII LP 13,000 12.56% - -
Delivery Hero SE 16,000 15.46% - -
As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations ived from sharehold ding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial

ownership of shares.

m) In the period of five years immediately preceding March 31, 2019;

a) The Company had allotted 930,551,391 fully paid-up shares of face value 21/ each and 190,653,540 fully paid shares of face value 22/- each during the year ended March 31, 2017 to existing CCCPS holders, pursuant to
bonus issue approved by the board of directors.

b) The Company had allotted 10,885 fully paid up shares of face value ¥6700/- each during the year ended March 31, 2018 pursuant to of Carthero Technologies Private limited (CTPL) by way of swap share i.e.
10,885 CCCPS of the company issued lieu of 36,808 CCPS and 2,798 equity share of CTPL for non-cash consideration

n) For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option (ESOP) plan of the company, please refer note 37.

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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31 March 2019

31 March 2018

15 (b} Other equity X Mn.)  Mn)

Capital reserve

Balance as per the last financial statements 26.10 26.10

Add: Transfer during the year - -

26.10

Securities Premium

Balance as per the last financial statements 22,422.93 11,869.27

Add: premium on issue of Class G CCCPS - 1,221.09

Add: premium on issue of Class H CCCPS - 9,140.64

Add: premium on conversion of Class E bonus shares into equity shares - 201.36

Add: premium on conversion of Class B & C CCCPS into equity shares - 0.27

Add: premium on issue of Class | CCCPS 21,951.41 -

Less: Transaction cost on issue of shares (22.64) (9.70)
44.351.70 22.422.93

Share-based Payment Reserve

Balance as per the last financial statements 726.38 586.12

Add: Share Based Payment Expense (Refer Note 34) 999.66 140.26

1,726.04 726.38

Retained earnings

Balance as per last financial statements (12,916.00) (11,831.81)

Add: Loss for the year (9,555.16) {1,030.73)

Add: Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (4.83) {0.02)

Add: Acquisition of non-controlling interests* (57.49)

Net defici

n the statement of profit and loss

Items of Other Comprehensive Income

22,533.48

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 82.44 106.69
82.44 106.69

Total reserves and surplus 23,652.80 10,366.10

* The isition of an additional o hip interest in a subsidiary without a change of control is accounted for as an equity transaction in accordance with Ind AS 110. Any excess or deficit of fair value of consideration paid over the

carrying amount of the non-controlling interests is recognised in equity of the parent in transactions where the non-controlling interests are acquired or sold without loss of control. The Group has elected to recognise this effect in the

retained eamings.
15 (¢} Nature and purpose of Reserves

Capital reserve
The Group recognizes profit or loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments to capital reserve

Securities premium

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Foreign currency translation reserve

Exchange differences arising on ion of the foreign operations are recognised in other comprehensive income as described in

ing policy and ina

is reclassified to profit or loss when the net investment is disposed-off,

Share based payment reserve

The share options based payment reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under Employee stock option plan.

reserve within equity. The cumulative amount

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

16 Borrowings (¥ Mn.) (¥ Mn.)
Non-current Borrowings
Term Loan
From other parties
Loan from corporate (unsecured)* 13.14 13.25
‘Total non-current Borrowings 13.14 13.25
Aggregate Secured loans - -
Aggregate Unsecured loans 13.14 13.25

* This loan is unsecured and is repayable in 12 - 24 months from the reporting date

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

17 Trade payable {¥TMn.) (X Mn,)
Trade payables (refer note 43 for details of dues to micro and small enterprises) 3,718.74 707.09
3,718.74 707,09
Breakup of above-
Non-current -
Current 3,718.74
Total 3,718.74

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 0-60 days terms
For explanations on the Company’s credit risk management processes, refer to note 39.
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for the year ended 31 March 2019

21 Other non-current liabilities

Unearned Revenue
Total

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
I Mn,) (¥ Mn.)
489.60 -
489.60 -

31 March 2019

31 Mareh 2018

18 Provision for employee benefits (T Mn.) (X Mn.)
Provisions for gratuity (refer note 36) 118.02 80.04
Provisions for compensated absences 75.89 16.97
Total 193.91 97.01
Breakup of above-

Non-current
Provisions for gratuity (refer note 36) 104.6] 67.76
Provisions for compensated absences 38.13 3.96
Total 142,74 71.72
Current
Provisions for gratuity (refer note 36} 13.41 1229
Provisions for compensated absences 37.76 13.01
Total 51.17 25.30
Gratuity (refer note 36) Compensated Absences
As at 31 March 2017 71.64 16.01
Anising during the year 3571 39.41
Utilised (27.32) (38.45)
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on liability 0.02 -
As at 31 March 2018 80.04 16.97
Arising during the year 52.65 83.05
Utilised (19.50) (24.13)
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on liability 483 -
As at 31 March 2019 118.02 75.89

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

19__Other provisions (T Mn,) X Mn,)
Provisions for Others - 0.36
- 0.36
Breakup of above-
Non-current
Provisions for Others - 0.36
Total - 0.36

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

20 _ Other financiat liabilities (¥ Mn.) (I Mn.)
Capital Creditors 28.00 0.89
Deferred Consideration on acquisition of subsidiary (Refer Note 33) 586.53 -

614.53 0.89
Breakup of above-
Current
Capital creditors 28.00 0.89
Deferred Consideration on acquisition of subsidiary (Refer Note 33) 586.53 -
Total 614.53 0.89

31 March 2018

21 Other current liabilities (X Mn.) (X Mn.)
Unearned revenue 1,008.06 308.25
Advances from Customers 471.05 91.75
Money held in trust (payable to merchant) 694,98 86.72
Less: Asset against money held in trust (170.14) 524.84 {85.37) 1.35
Statutory dues

Provident fund payable 26.56 17.04
Employee state insurance payable 0.05 0.09
Professional tax payable 0.77 1.09
TDS Payable 250.61 31.84
Other statutory dues payable 13.32 10.30
Others 39.89 2233
2,335.15 484.03
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22. Revenue from operations 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
' (X Mn) (¥ Mn.)
Sale of services
Revenue from Services 12,962.90 4,652.98
Royalty income 0.10 10.65
Other Operating Revenue
Income from provision of platform and food delivery services 162.86 -
13,125.86 4,663.63

Impact of application of Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has adopted Ind AS 115 on Revenue from Contracts with Customers, using the modified retrospective approach. The standard is applied retrospectively only to
contracts that are not completed as at the date of initial application and comparative information is not restated in the statement of profit and loss. The adoption of the
standard did not have any material impact on the recognition and measurement of revenue and related items in the financial statements/results.

Timing of rendering of services

March 31,2019

Revenue from Services Royalty Income Others Total
Services rendered at a point in time 8,966.33 - 162.86 9,129.19
Services rendered over time 3,996.57 0.10 - 3,996.67
Total Revenue from Contract with customers 12,962.90 0.10 162.86 13,125.86
Contract Balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contracts assets, and contract liabilities from contracts with customers.
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Trade Receivables (Unconditional right to consideration) 703.37 260.84
Contract assets (Refer note 1 below) 3.77 3.87
Contract liabilities (Refer note 2 below) 1,968.71 400.00

Notes:

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights to consideration for work completed but not billed at the reporting date. The contract assets are transferred to the

receivables when the rights become unconditional.

2 Contract liability relates to payments received in advance of performance and deferred sales revenue against which amount has been received from customer but services
are yet to be rendered on the reporting date either in full or in parts. Contract liabilities are recognized evenly over the period of service, being performance obligation of
the Group.

The allowance for doubtful accounts as of March 31, 2019, and changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts during the 12 months ended on March 31, 2019, were as

follows:

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Opening balance 96.68 35.12
Add: Bad Debt expenses 107.86 71.38
Less: write offs, net of recoveries (27.57) (9.82)
Closing balance 176.97 96.68

Contract liabilities consist of deferred revenue, which is recorded when the company has received consideration in advance of transferring the performance obligations
under the contract to the customer.

Changes in deferred revenue during the years ended March 31, 2019 were as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Opening balance 308.25 201.82
Add: Revenue deferred 1,497.66 308.25
Less: Revenue recognized 303.32 189.98
Less: Cumulative catch-up adjustments to revenue due to a contract modification or foreign exchange

difference 4.93 11.84
Closing balance 1497.66 308.25

The following table shows the estimated revenue from deferred revenue included in our contract liability balances expected to be recognized in future period:

Particulars 31 March 2019
To be recognised in Financial Year 2019-20 1,008.06
To be recognised in Financial Year 2020-21 237.56
To be recognised in Financial Year 2021-2022 and after 252.04
Closing Balance 1497.66
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23. Other income

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

(X Mn.) (X Mn.)

Interest income on
-Bank deposits 118.70 56.01
-Income tax refund - 0.01
-Others 10.23 9.01
Net gain on sale of current investments 346.09 28.10
Gain on sale of non-current investments 47.34 -
Fair value gain on Investment at fair value through profit and loss 208.00 67.27
Liabilities written back 108.00 4.52
Excess provision written back 3.58 13.89
Miscellaneous income 1.94 5.54
Profit on sale of PPE (net) 0.31 2.96
844.20 187.31

24. 1 Cost of traded goods sold

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

(X Mn.) X Mn.)
Purchases 187.19 -
Cost of traded goods sold 187.19 -

25. «Change in inventories of traded goods

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

(X Mn.) (X Mn.)
Inventory at the end of the year 21.31 -
Inventory at the beginning of the year - -
Increase in inventory (21.31) -

26. Employee benefits expense

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

(X Mn,) (X Mn.)
Salaries, wages and bonus 4,582.68 2,515.57
Contribution to provident fund and other funds * 171.62 116.03
Share Based Payment Expense (Refer Note 37) 999.66 140.26
Gratuity expenses (Refer Note 36) 51.12 27.80
Staff welfare expenses 202.82 105.27

6,007.90 2,904.93

* Defined contribution plan

27. Finance costs

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

(X Mn,) (X Mn.)
Interest
- to banks 15.04 10.06
- to others 1.24 5.71
Others

-Payment Gateway Charges 605.93 23561
-Other Charges 1.23 0.64

623.44 252.02

28. Depreciation and amortization expense

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

(X Mn.) R Mn.)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 106.72 128.33
Amortization of intangible assets 149.21 31.91
255.93 160.24
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29. Other Expenses

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

(T Mn.) (¥ Mn.)

Power & fuel 31.65 24.11
Rent 416.12 282.09
Rates and taxes 47.54 36.86
Repairs and maintenance 96.16 58.60
Advertisement and sales promotion 12,359.60 814.71
Travelling and conveyance 451.56 152.62
Server and communication cost 643.35 22443
IT Support Services 506.00 152.78
Recruitment cost 94.77 14.93
Insurance 80.99 7.35
Commission and brokerage 5.61 1.59
Postage & Courier Cost 18.18 11.30
Printing and stationary 5.50 9.72
Security expense 47.59 8.91
Legal and professional fee 61222 24835
Fees and subscriptions 024 8.79
Bad debts written off 29.47 18.31
Less: bad debt against opening provision (27.57) 1.90 (9.82) 8.49
Advances written off 5275 6.25
Fixed Assets written-off 0.10 0.11
Provision for doubtfut debts and advances 122.69 50.80
Qutsourced support cost 13,300.82 43953
Foreign exchange loss (net) 0.26 16.94
Fair value loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss - 0.15
Investment Written Off 0.61 0.52
Miscellaneous expenses 31.05 16.95

28,927.26 2,596.87

30. Exceptional items

31 March 2019
(T Mn.)

31 March 2018
(T Mn.)

Income on assignment of Contracts

Fair Value of deferred consideration on assignment of Contracts

Fair Value of contingent consideration on assignment of Contracts

Interest income on Fair Value of deferred consideration on assignment of Contracts
Provision for diminution in value of investments in companies

8,880.94
221911
1,210.67

18.48
(330.00)

11,999.20

31. Earning per Equity Share

31 March 2019

(X Mn.)

31 March 2018
(X Mn.)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding

during the year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations.

Loss attributable to equity holders of the company
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS

Basic and diluted loss per share*

31 March 2019
{in ¥ Mn)

(9,555.16)
3,37,694
(0.03)

31 March 2018
—_ (in¥Mn)

(1,030.73)
3,12,066
(0.00)

There are potential equity shares as on 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 in the form of CCCPS and stock options issued. As these are antidilutive, they are ignored in the
calculation of diluted earning per share and accordingly the diluted earning per share is the same as basic earning per share.

* loss per share having value less than 2 10,000
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32 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the grouping disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in
future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based
its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Share-based payments

Employees of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share based payment transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions). In accordance with the Ind AS 102 Share Based Payments, the cost of equity-
settled transactions is measured using the fair value method. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit recognized in the statement of profit and loss for a period represents the movement in
cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employee benefits expense.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated, the management
considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality table . The mortality table tend to change only at interval in response to demographic
changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note 36.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair
value of financial instruments.

Business combinations

As disclosed in Note 2.2, Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those retumns through its power over the investee. In cases, where the Group holds less than half of the voting rights of
an investee, significant judgement is required by management to determine whether the Group has control over the investee, which is established if
and only if the Group has:

» Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)

P Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

P The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Further details about business combinations are given in note 33.

Incentives

As disclosed in Note 2.3, the Group provides incentives to its transacting users in various forms including credits and direct payment discounts to
promote traffic on its site. All incentives given to the users where the group is responsible for delivery are recorded as a reduction of revenue to the
extent of the revenue earned from that user on a transaction by transaction basis. The amount of incentive in excess of the revenue earned from the
transacting users is recorded as advertisement and sales promotion expense. In other cases, where group is not responsible for delivery,
management is required to determine whether the incentives are in substance a payment on behalf of the restaurant merchants and should therefore
be recorded as a reduction of revenue or advertisement and sales promotion expenses. Some of the factors considered in management’s evaluation
of such incentives being payments on behalf of restaurant merchants include whether the incentives are given at the Group’s discretion, contractual
agreements with the restaurant merchants, business strategy and objectives and design of the incentive program(s), etc.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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33. Business combinations
Acquisition during the year ended 31 March 2019
Acquisition of T

4

tun Food Networks Private Limited

On 1st November 2018, the Group entered into acquisition agreement for purchase of 100% shares of Tonguestun Food Network Private Limited (TFNPL), a non-listed company based in India.
As at March 31, 2019, the Group had acquired 36.30 % of shareholding in TFNPL, however the Group established control over TFNPL and has therefore concluded TFNPL to be its' subsidiary.
Factors considered for establishing control over TFNPL are:

- Control established through 100% control of the board upon 1st completion date being 22 November 2018

- Control over the operations of the company

- Presence of call option giving the Group present access to returns associated with ownership interest in the shares

The Company is engaged in the business of arranging outdoor catering, supply of prepared foodstuffs to individuals, firms and corporate (end customers) from the caterers (merchants) and acts
as an agent between the end customers and the caterers (merchants).

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilitics of TFNPL as at the date of acquisition were:

Balances recognised on acquisition

30 November 2018
Assets & Mn.)
Property, plant and equipment 7.17
Prepayments and other assets 8.15
Other non-current assets 7.07
Trade receivables 45.96
Cash and cash equivalents 3.78
Other bank balances 1.03
Other financial assets 1.25
Total Assets 74.41
Liabilities
Borrowings 83.55
Trade payables 73.65
Other financial liabilities 0.49
Provisions 1.65
Other current liabilities 933
Total Liabilities 168.68
Identifiable net assets at fair value (94.27)
Fair Value of Intangible Assets
- Customer Relationships 209.44
- Technology Platform 220
Total 211.64
Share in opening loss of the subsidiary (171.89)
Share in equity 87.59
Goodwill arising on acquisition 822.90
Tetal Purchase consideration 1,044.51

The goodwill of 2822.90 Mn comprises the value of expected synergies arising from the acquisition. None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.
Froin the date of acquisition, TFNPL has contributed 2 65.97 Mn of revenue* and ¥ 126.71 Mn of loss* to the loss before tax from operations of the Group.
* Before inter-company eliminations

Purchase consideration & Mn))
Shares to be issued, at fair value 4.15
Share premiun 22427
Cash Consideration paid 229.56
Deferred Consideration* 586.53
Total Purchase consideration 1,044.51

* As part of the acqusition agreement with the previous owners of TENPL, a deferred consideration has been agreed. There will be additional cash payments to the previous owner of TFNPL in
the financial year 2019-20.

Analysis of cash flows on acquisition:

Transaction costs of the acquisition (included in cash flows from operating activities) -
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary (included in cash flows from investing activities) 364.48
Net cash flow on acquisition 364.48
The Group will issue 620 equity share and pay cash of Z 816.09 Mn as consideration for the 100% interest in TENPL. The fair value of the shares is calculated with reference to the valuation of
the shares of the Company at the date of acquisition, which was INR 217,610.87 each. The fair value of the consideration given is therefore INR 1,044.51 Ma.

Al other disclosures as required under IND AS 103 are impracticable as:

i) fair valuation was not done of the total consideration transferred or each major class of consideration at the date of acquisition or thereafter,

ii) there were no contingent consideration arrangements entered into with the acquiree,

iii) no contingent liabilities have been recognised,

(iv) there are no such transactions that are recognized separately from the acquisition of assets and assumption of liabilities in the business combination,
(v) the above business combination is not a bargain-purchase

(vi) the above business combination is not achieved in stages.
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33, Business combinations
Acquisition during the year ended 31 March 2018

Acquisition of Carthero Technologies Private Limited

On 1st February 2018, the Group acquired 80.20% of the voting shares of Carthero Technologies Private Limited., a non-listed company based in India and engaged in business of providing
the technology platform in order to provide a quick delivery service that would enable the local retailers to ship their products to customer directly with the help of mobile applications.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Carthero Technologies Private Limited as at the date of acquisition were:

Balances
recognised on
acquisition
31 January 2018
Assets (X Mn.)
Property, plant and equipment . 6.79
Other Intangible Assets 1.53
Prepayments and other assets 40.72
Investments 38.29
Trade receivables 3.37
Cash and cash equivalents ’ 6.10
Other bank balances 1.70
Other financial assets 3.64
Total Assets 102.14
Liabilities
Borrowings 75.00
Trade payables 7.31
Other financial Habilities 12,97
Provisions 5.97
Other current liabilities 116.73
Total Liabilities 217.97
Identifiable net assets at fair value (115.83)
Fair Value of Intangible Assets
~ Brand/Trade Mark 13.47
- Technology Platform 602,73
Total 500.37
Share in opening loss of the subsidiary 401.20
Share in equity share capital 0.12
Goodwill arising on acquisition 922.14
Purchase consideration transferred 1,323.46

Tlee goodwill of 2 922.14 Mn comprises the value of expected synergies arising from the acquisition, None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

From the date of acquisition, Carthero Technologies Private Limited has contributed % 227.84 Mn of revenue* and ¥ 124.87 Mn of loss* to the loss before tax from operations of the Group.
* Before inter-company eliminations

Purchase consideration (X Mn.)
Shares issued, at fair value 041
Share premium 1,293.62
Cash Consideration paid 29.43
Total consideration 1,323.46
Analysis of cash flows on acquisition:

Transaction costs of the acquisition (included in cash flows from operating activities) 1.29
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary (included in cash flows from investing activities) 7.80
Net cash flow on acquisition 6.51

The Group issucd 10,885 CCCPS and paid cash of 2 29.43 Mn as consideration for the 80.20% interest in Carthero Technologies Private Limited. The fair value of the shares is calculated
with reference to the valuation of the shares of the Company at the date of acquisition, which was INR 1 18,881 each. The fair value of the consideration given is therefore INR 1,323.46.
Transaction costs of T Mn 1.29 lacs have been expensed and are included in other expenses,

Al other disclosures as required under IND AS 103 are impracticable as:

i) fair valuation was not done of the total consideration transferred or each major class of consideration at the date of acquisition or thereafter,

ii) there were no contingent consideration arrangements entered into with the acquiree,

iii) no contingent liabilities have been recognised,

(iv) there are no such transactions that are recognized separately from the acquisition of assets and assumption of liabilities in the business combination,
(v) the above business combination is not a bargain-purchase

(vi) the above business combination is not achieved in stages.

Acquisition of additional interest in Carthero Technologies Private Limited
On 26 March 2018, the Group acquired an additional 4.25% interest in the voting shares of Carthero Technologies Private Limited, increasing its ownership interest to 84.45%. C
consideration of INR 479.43 Mn was paid to the non-controlling sharcholders.
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34. Material partly-owned subsidiaries
Financial information of subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is provided below:

Proportion of equity interest held by non-controlling interests:
Country of Incorporation and

Name operation
Delivery2! Inc. ) Philippines
Carthero Technologies Private Limited India

Information regarding nen-controlling interest

Accumulated balances of material non-controlling interest:
Delivery21 Inc.
Carthero Technologies Private Limited*

Profit/(loss) allocated to material non-controlling interest:
Delivery21 Inc.
Carthero Technologies Private Limited

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

47.80% 47.80%
12.56% 15.55%
& Mn.)

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

(55.72)
(258.45)

(6.99)
(449.01)

(48.73)
133.06

(12.97)
(19.42)

The summarised financial information of these subsidiaries are provided below. This information is based on amounts before inter-company eliminations.

Summarised statement of profit and loss Carthero Technologies Private Limited (CTPL) Delivery 21 Inc
& Mn.) X Mn.)

Summarised statement of profit and loss for the year ended: 31 March, 2019 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Revenue from operations 10,167.61 230.48 4.79 28.54
Other income 98.76 - - -
Employee benefit expenses 583.55 74.04 5.27 25.58
Depreciation and amortisation 4.56 1.04 0.77 1.38
Finance costs 0.31 0.78 1.13 5.80
Other expenses 13,250.10 279.38 6.40 22.92
Total expenses 13,838.51 355.24 13.58 55.67
Profit before tax (3,572.15) (124.76) (8.79) 27.14)
Other Comprehensive Income (2.81) (0.12) {5.83) 3.27
Total comprehensive income (3,574.96) (124.87) (14.62) (23.87)
Attributable to non-controlling interest (449.01) (19.42) (6.99) (12.97)

( Mn.)
Summarized Balance Sheet as at: 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Cash and cash equivalents (current) 282.44 328.75 4.66 1.90
Other Bank Balances (current) 0.50 0.50 - -
Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets 4.31 7.40 0.51 1.21
Other Assets (current and non-current) 3573 8.64 2.36 5
Trade and other receivables (current) 4.14 10.84 2.36 10.48
Financial assets (current) 83.22 3.46 - -
Current Tax Assets 210.57 10.43 - -
Trade and other payable (current and non-current) (3,134.82) (104.81) (126.47) (120.19)
Provision (11.51) (4.40) - -
Total Equity (2,525.41) 260.81 (116.57) (101.96)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of parent (2,208.22) 220.25 (60.85) {53.22)
Non-controlling interest (317.19) 40.56 (55.72) (48.73)

@ Mn.)
Summarised cash flow information as at: 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Operating (521.40) (219.07) 20.28 0.68
Investing (24.59) 81.45 0.11 0.07
Financing 499,68 44781 (17.63) (5.80)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (46.31) 310.19 - 2.76 (5.05)

* The Accumulated balances of material non-controlling interest in case of Carthero Technologies Private Limited will not match with the above calculations because it does not include the

effect of Intangible Assets acquired at Fair Value at the time of acquisition i.e. Brand and Technology Platform.

(This space has intentionally been left blank)
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35

Interest in Joint Venture Company (JVC)

The Group has a 49% interest in Zomato Media WLL, a joint venture involved in the General marketing services.

The Group’s interest in Zomato Media WLL is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial information of the joint
venture, based on its Ind AS financial statements, and reconciliation with the carrying amount of the investment in consolidated financial statements are set out below:

Summarised balance sheet as at 31 March 2019:

& Mn.)

Zomato Media WLL

Zomato Media WLL

Particulars 31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents ¥ Mn. 2.12 (31 March 2018:

¥ Mn. 11.80) and prepayments ¥ Mn. 2.16 (31 March 2018: ¥ Mn. 2.91) 4.27 19.37
Non-current assets 0.67 1.06
Current liabilities (4.64) (14.08)
Non-current liabilities - (42.44)
Equity 0.29 (36.09)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 49% 49%
Carrying amount of the investment 0.14 (17.69)
Summarised statement of profit and loss of Zomato Media WLL:
(X Mn.)
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Revenue from operations 334 48.23
Other income 45.99 0.55
Employee benefits expense 0.02 4.72
Other expenses 9.93 24.80
P |Depreciation and amortization expense 0.47 0.85
Net (loss)/profit 38.92 18.42
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 49% 49%
Group’s share of profit for the year 19.07 9.02

The group had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments relating to its interest in Zomato Media WLL as at 31 March 2019 and 2018.
The joint venture had no other contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at 31 March 2019, 31 March 2018.

(This space has intentionally been lefl blank)
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37 Share-based payments

General Employee Share-option Plan (GESP): Employee Stock Option Plan —ESOP-2014 and Employee Stock Option Scheme-
2018

The Company instituted the Employee Stock Option Plan to grant equity based incentives to its eligible employees. The ESOP scheme-
FOODIEBAY Employee Stock Option Plan 2014 (“The Scheme™) has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company at their
meeting held on 22 April 2014 (further amended at their board meeting held on 30 March 2017) and by the shareholders of the Company
by way of special resolution passed at their Annual General Meeting held on June 27, 2014 to grant aggregating 27,089 options (not
exceeding 2% of the issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2014), representing one share
for each option upon exercise by the employee of the Company at an exercise price determined by the Board. The Scheme covers grant of
options to the specified permanent employees of the Company and Directors of the Company. The company further granted 14,677
options under the ESOP scheme at the exira ordinary general meeting held on September 07, 2015.

The Employee Stock Option Scheme - 2018 has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 20
July 2018 and by the shareholders of the Company by way of ordinary resolution passed at their Extraordinary General Meeting held on
October 22, 2018 to grant aggregating 30,150 options , representing one share for each option upon exercise by the employee of the
Company at an exercise price determined by the Board. The Scheme covers grant of options to the specified permanent employees of the
Company and Directors of the Company.

The options granted under the Scheme shall vest not less than one year and not more than four years from the date of grant of options.
Option can be exercised at the time of liquidity or upto 3 years from the date of ceasing of employment or upto 9 years from the date of
vesting, whichever is earlier. Once the options vest as per the Scheme, they would be exercisable by the Option Grantee at any time and
the equity shares arising on exercise of such options shall not be subject to any lock-in period.

Movements during the year:

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share options during the

year:
31 March 2019 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2018
Number WAEP Number WAEP
Outstanding at 1 April 26,866 INR 13,217 23,724 INR 18,192
Granted during the year 28,754 INR 1 8,901 INR 1
Forfeited during the year - - - -
Exercised during the year - - - -
Expired during the year 3,409 INR 9,722.14 5,759 INR 17,814
Outstanding at 31 March 52,211 INR 6,186 26,866 INR 13,217
Exercisable at 31 March 29,841 INR 10,235 13,847 INR 17,606

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at 31 March 2019 was 7.98 years (31 March 2018:
7.52 years).

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was INR 0.10 Mn (31 March 2018: INR 0.08 Mn).

The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was INR 1 to INR 0.14 Mn (31 March 2018: INR 1 to INR
0.14 Mn).

The following tables list the inputs to the models used for the GESP plans for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, respect
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

GESP GESP
Dividend yield (%) 0.00% 0.00%
Expected volatility (%) 50.00% 42.41%
Risk—free interest rate (%) 6% - 8.2% 7.50%
Expected life of share options 510 6 years 5to 6 years
Weighted average share price (INR ) 131926 80598
Model used Black Scholes valuation model

The expected life of the share options is based on historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the
options is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.
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38. Commitments and Contingencies
a. Leases

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessee
The Group has entered into operating leases on certain premises, with lease term between one to nine years.
imposed by lease agreements. The total expense during the year is as follows:

There is escalation clause on the lease agreement, There are no restrictions

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

(¥ Mn.) (X Mn.)
Lease expense for the period
Lease payments for the year 410.38 277.12
410.38 277.12
Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:
Not later than one year 220.77 17.11
Later than one year but not later than five years 110.48 0.24
Later than five years - -
331.25 17.36

(This space has intentionally been lefi blank)
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39.1 Fair values

Financial instruments by category

The carrying value and (air value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31. 2019 werc as follows:

& Mn)
Particulars Amortised cost Financial asscts/ liabilitics at fair Financial asscts/linbilitics at fair value Total carrying Total fair valuc
value through profit or less through OC1 value
. Equity instruments
.I?c‘slgnmcd u'p‘on Mandatory (lcsi‘:',na;ved upon initial Mandatery
initial recognition o
recognition
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 8) 2,124.15 - - - 2,124.15 2,124.15
Bank balance other (Refer Note 9) 262.79 - - - 262.79 262.79
Investments (current) (Refer Note 6) - - 21.372.54 - 21,372.54 21.372.54
Investments (non-current) (Refer Note 5) 7298 - - - 7298 72.98
Trade reccivables (Refer Notc 7) 703.37 - - - 703.37 703.37
Other financial assels (Refer Note 11) 3,705.41 - - - 3,705.41 3,705.41
Total 6,868.70 - 21,372.54 - 28,241.24 28,241.24
Liabilitics:
Trade payables (Refer Note 17) 3.718.74 - - - 3.718.74 3.718.74
Borrowings (refer Note 16) 13.14 - - - 13.14 13.14
Other financial liabilities (Refer Note 20) 614.53 - - - 614.53 614.53
Total 4,346.41 - - - 4,346.41 4,346.41
The carrying value and fair valuc of financial instruments by categorics as of March 31, 2018 were as follows:
(X Mn.)
Particulars Amortised cost Financial asscts/ liabilities at fair Financial asscts/liabilities at fair value Total earrying Total fair value
value through profit or loss through OCI value
. Equity instruments
.D'c'slgnatetl up'on A ¥ i! 'q . d upen initial Mandatory
initial re .
recognition
Assets:
Cash and cash cquivalents (Refer Note 8) 100395 - - - 1,003.95 1,003.95
Bank balance other {Refer Note 9) 1,076.79 - - - 1.076.79 1,076.79
Investments (current) (Refer Nole 6) - - 8,196.63 - 8.196.63 8,196.63
Investments (non-current} (Refer Note 5) 95.66 - . - 95.66 95.66
Trade receivables (Refer Note 7) 260.84 - - - 260.84 260.84
Loans (Refer note 10) 43.21 - - - 43.21 4321
Other financial asscts (Refer Note 11) 587.41 - - - 58741 587.41
Total 3.067.86 - 8.196.63 - 11,264.49 11,264.48
Liabilitics:
Trade payables (Refer Note 17) 707.13 - - - 707.13 707.13
Borrowings (refer Note 16) 13.25 - - - 13.25 13.25
Other financial liabilitics (Refer Note 20) 0.89 - - - 0.89 0.89
Total 721.27 - - - 721,27 721.27

39.2 Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's asscts and liabilitics.

Level I - Quoted prices (unadjusied) in active markets for identical asscts or Habilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or libility, cither dircetly (i.c. as prices) or indirectly (i.¢. derived from

Level 3 - Inputs for the assels or liabilitics that arc not based on observable market data (unobservable

Fair value measurement at end of the reporting period/year

The following table presents fair value hicrarchy of assets and lisbilitics measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31,2019:

. As of March 31,2019 .
Particulars using
(X Mn.) Level 1 [ Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Investments in liquid mutual fund units (Refer Note 6) 21,372.54) 21 ,372,54[ -| -

The following table prescnts fair value hicrarchy of assets and liabilitics mcasured at fair valuc on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2018:

Particulars As of March 31, 2018 Fair value measurcment at “csl::gof the reporting period/year
(2 Mn.) Level 1 [ Level2 Level 3
Asscts
Investments in liquid mutual fund units (Refer Note 6) 8,196.63 8,19(:.63' - -

(This space has intentionally been lefl blank)
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39.3 Financial risk management objectives and policies

Financial risk management
Financial risk factors
The Company's activitics expose it to a varicty of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and tiquidity risk. The Company's focus is to foresce the unpredictability of financial markets and seck to minimize potentiat

Company’s to credit risk is infl d mainly by the individual ch istic of cach customer.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of futurc cash Mows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk compriscs three types of risk: interest ratc risk, forcign currency
risk and other price risk, such as cquity price risk and ity risk. Fi tal i affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, doposits, The Company has in place appropriate risk management

policics to limit the impact of (hese risks on s financial performance. The Company ¢nsures optimization of cash through fund planning and robust cash management practices.

i) Interest Rate Risk

Inicrest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or futurc cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest ratcs. As majority of the financial asscts and liabilities of the Company
arc cither non-interest bearing or fixed interest bearing instruments, the Company”s net exposure to interest risk is negligible.

ii) Forcign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an cxposure will lluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The group's cxposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates
relates primarily to the group’s operating activitics (when revenue or cxpensc is denominated in a foreign currency). The Company operates infernationally and some portion of the business is transacted in several
currencics and conscquently the Company is cxposed to foreign cxchange risk through its sales and services in the Middie East and clsewherc, and purchases from overscas supplicrs in various forcigh currencies.

The l‘ollo\\ing table analyzes forcign currency risk from financial instruments as of 31 March 2019: (X Mn,)
Particulars U.S. dollars EUR AED ZAR currencies Total
usb EUR AED ZAR
Inycstment 358.39 1,550.62 - - - 1,909.01
Cash and cash equivalents 95.33 120.22 115453 550 143.06 1,518.64
Trade roceivables 98.58 1279 378.65 - 5541 54544
Other financials assets ( including loans) 203 131 3,444.01 110 118.79 3,567.23
Trade payables 6.60 10.41 188.64 0.25 70.35 276.25
Olher financial Habilitics 33.60 513 69.46 - 107.58 215.78
Net asscts / (liabilitics) 594.54 1,700.48 5,235.30 6.85 495.19 $,032.36
The following table analyscs forcign currency risk from financial instruments as of March 31, 2018: & Mn)
Particulars US. doflars Euro AED ZAR Other Total
currencics
Investments 310.83 1.386.41 - - - 1.697.23
Cash and cash cquivalents 64.25 8226 269.14 7.15 106.47 529.26
Trade receivables 5153 9.16 369.12 29 66.49 499.20
Other financials assets ( including loans) 21.59 7533 1498 1.25 50.64 163.80
Tradc payables 3.40 8.74 LW 0.22 90.29 244.36
Other financial liabilitics 2671 372 28.09 0.75 21.69 80.96
Net assets / (liabilities) 478.30 1,565.62 823.05 12,27 335.58 3,214.82

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. The maximum exposurc o the credit risk at the reporting datc is primarily from trade reccivables amounting to In
T Mn. 703.37 and In ¥ Mn. 260.84 as of March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018, rospectively. Trade receivables are typically unsecured and arc derived from revenue camed from customers primarily located in India
and Middle East, Credit risk has always been managed by the group through credit approvals, cstablishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants
credil terms in the normal course of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the group uscs cxpected credit loss model to asscss the impairment loss or gain. The company uses a provision matrix to compute
the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables. The provision matrix takes into account available external and internal credit risk factors such as the company's historical expericnce for customers.

Credit risk exposure

The company has established an allowance for impairment that represents its expecled credit losses in respect of trade and other receivables. The uses a simplificd h for the purposc of computation
of expected credit loss for trade reccivables and 12 months cxpeeted credit loss for other receivables. An impainment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major partics. In addition, a
large number of minor blcs arc bined into b categorics and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on historical data of actual losscs.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for Liquidity risk management rests with the Board, which has cstablished an appropriale liquidity risk fi k for the of the Company’s short, medium and long-
term funding and liquidity management requirements. The company's principal sources of liquidity arc cash and cash cquivalents and the cash flow that is g 4 from ! The company has no di

bank borrowings. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequale cash reserves, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial asscts and
liabilities. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived,

As of March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018, the outstanding compensated abscnoes were In T Mn. 75.89 and In € M. 16.97 respectively

The table below provides details ding the | maturitics of signifi financial liabilitics as of March 31, 2019;

R Mn)
Particutars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-4 years 4-7 years Total
Trade payables 3,718.74 - - - 3,718,714
Other financial liabilities 614.53 - - - 614.53
The tablc below provides details regarding the ! maturitics of significant financiat i as of March 31, 2018:

X Mn)
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-4 years 4-7 years Total
Trade payables 681.77 2532 - - 707.09
Other financial liabilitics 0.89 - - - 0.89

{1his space has intentionally been lefi blank)
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Zomato Media Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
CIN : U93030DL2010PTC198141

41. The consolidated financial statements of the Group includes subsidiaries listed in the table below:

o o
S.No. Name of the Company Principal activities . Country ‘.)f 2 Equity interest

incorporation 31 March 2019] 31 March 2018
Operating internet

| |Zomato Midia Brasil Ltda portal Brazil 100% 100%
Operating internet

2 |Pt Zomato Media Indonesia portal Indonesia 100% 100%
Operating internet

3 |Zomato NZ Media Private Limited portal New Zealand 100% 100%
Operating internet

4 |Zomato Media (Private) Limited portal Sri Lanka 100% 100%
Operating internet

5 |Zomato Portugal Media, Unipessoal Lda portal Portugal 100% 100%
Operating internet

6 |Zomato Chile Spa portal Chile 100% 100%
Operating internet

7 |Zomato Middle East Fz - LLC portal Dubai 100% 100%
Operating internet

8 |Zomato Ireland Limited portal Ireland 100% 100%
Operating internet

9 |Zomato Internet Private Limited portal India 100% 100%
Operating internet

10 {Zomato UK Limited portal United Kingdom 100% 100%
Operating internet

11 |Zomato Canada Inc. portal Canada 100% 100%
Operating internet

12 {Zomato Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. portal Malaysia 100% 100%
Operating internet

13 |Zomato Slovakia S.R.O. portal Slovakia 100% 100%
Operating internet

14 {Zomato Colombia S.A.S* portal Colombia 0% 100%
Operating internet

15 |Lunchtime.Cz S.R.O. portal Czech Republic 100% 100%
Operating internet

16 {Gastronauci Sp.Z.0.0. portal Poland 100% 100%
Operating internet

17 _|Zomato Australia Pty Limited portal Australia 100% 100%
Operating internet

18 {Zomato Hungary Kit. portal Hungary 100% 100%
Operating internet

19 |Zomato International Ro S.R.L. portal Romania 100% 100%
Operating internet

20 |Zomato Finland Oy* portal Finland 0% 100%
Operating internet

21 [Zomato Austria Gmbh portal Austria 100% 100%
Operating internet

22 |Zomato Peru S.A.C.* portal Peru 0% 100%
Operating internet

23 |Zomato Netherlands B.V. portal Netherlands 100% 100%
Operating internet

24 |Cibando Ltd portal United Kingdom 100% 100%
Operating internet

25 |Zomato, Inc. portal USA 100% 100%
Operating internet

26 |Zomato Ireland Limited - Jordan portal Jordan 100% 100%
Operating internet

27 _|Zomato Vietnam Company Limited portal Vietham 100% 100%
Operating internet

28 1Zomato Philippines Inc. portal Philippines 100% 100%
Operating internet

29 |Zomato South Africa (Pty) Ltd. portal South Africa 100% 100%
Operating internet

30 {Zomato Denmark ApS* portal Denmark 0% 100%
Operating internet

31 |Zomato Media Pvt. Ltd. portal Singapore 100% 100%
Operating internet

32 |Norway - Zomato Norway AS portal Norway 100%

(This space has intentionally been left blank)




Zomato Media Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
CIN : U93030DL2010PTC198141

41. The consolidated financial statements of the Group includes subsidiaries listed in the table below:

Operating internet

33 |Zomato Internet Hizmetleri Ticaret Anonim Sirketi. portal Turkey 100% 100%
Operating internet

34 |Zomato USA, LLC portal USA 100% 100%
Operating internet

35 |[Nextable, Inc. portal USA 100% 100%
Operating internet

36 |Zomato Internet LLC portal Qatar 100% 100%
Operating internet

37 |Delivery21 Inc. portal Philippines 52.20% 52.20%

38 |Carthero Technologies Pvt. Ltd Delivery Services India 87.44% 84.45%
Operating internet

39 |Tonguestun Food Network Private Limited portal India 100.00% 0.00%
Event organising

40 |Zomato Entertainment Private Limited Services India 100.00% 0.00%
Operating internet

41 |Zomato Media WLL portal Qatar 49% 49%

* closed during the year

o)

."\
<9
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Zomato Media Private Limited
Notes to i | financial
CIN: U93030DL2010PTC198141

for the year ended 31 March 2019

42. Segment information

Opcraling segments are defined as components of an enterprisc for which discrete financial infi is available that is cvaluated regularly by the chicf operating decision maker, in deciding how to allocate resources and asscssing
performance. The Group’s chief operating decision maker is the Chief Exccutive Officer.

The Group has id d geographical as reporiabl The phical comprise:

1) India

2) United Arab Emirates (UAE)

3) ROW (such as Australia, New Zealand, Philippincs, Indonesia, Malaysia, USA, Lebanon, Turkey. Czech, Slovakia. Poland)

Revenue and oxpenses directly attributable to segments arc reported under cach reportable segment. All other expenses which arc not altributable or allocabl have been disclosed as unallocabl:
Assets and lisbilitics that are dircetly attributable or allocable to are disclosed under cach reportable segment. All other asscis and liabilitics are di d as unallocable. Summarised scgment information for the years ended
March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 is as follows:
Year ended 31 March 2019
Adjustments and
Particulars India UAE ROW Total scgments Eliminations Cansolidated
Revenue

External customers 20.358.02 1.943.62 969.09 2321073 (10,144 97) 13.125.76

Infer-segment 120.39 - - 120.39 (120.29) 0.10
Total revenue 20,478.41 1,943.62 969.09 23,391.12 (10,265.26) 13,125.86
Income/(Expenses)

Depreciation and amortisation 103.67 4.13 6.74 LE454 14139 25593
Segment loss (22.001.70) 12.498.28 {639.99) (10.143.41) 132.26 (10,011.15)
Total assets 31.42991 4.640.41 2240.29 38.310.61 {5.169.41) 3304120
Total liabilities 14.381.57 (8,096.86) 526.30 6.811.01 554.06 7.365.07
Other disclosures

Investnents in an associate and a joint venture 1.63 - - 1.63 - 1.63

Capital expenditure 469.05 3.44 10.54 483.03 103311 1.516.14

Yecar ended 31 March 2018
Adjustments and
Particulars India UAE ROW Total Eliminati Consolid:
Revenue

External customers 293256 1.117.45 825,15 4,875.16 (222.18) 4,652.98

Intcr-scgment 45.80 - - 45.80 (35.14) 10.65
Total revenue 2,978,35 1,117.45 825.15 4,920.96 (257.32) 4,663.63
Income/(Expenses)

Depreciation and amortisation 135.85 1152 12.86 160.24 - 160.24
Segment loss (1.269.84) 336.79 (305.53) {1.238.58) 175.46 (1,063.12)
Total asscls 14.863.56 632.70 2,051.80 17,568.05 (4.070.94) 13.497.12
Total liabilitics 623.50 385.87 444.21 1.453.58 (150.94) 1.302.64
Other disclosures

Investments in an associate and a joint venture 1.63 - - 1.63 - 1.63

Capital expenditure 35.00 6.17 289 44.07 1.564.91 1,608.98

Inter-s s are el

All other adjusiments and eliminations are part of detailed reconciliations presented further below.

Adjustments and eliminations

and reflected i the “adustments and eliminations * column.

Finance income and costs. and fair vatuc gains and losses on financial assets arc not allocated to individual segments as the underlying instruments arc managed on a group basis.

Current taxes, deferred (axes and certain financial assets and liabiliti
Capital expenditure consists of additions of property., plant and

Reconciliations to amounts reflected in the financial statements

Reconceiliation of loss

i to those

asscts and i

propertics i

as they arc also managed on a group basis
asscts from the acquisition of subsidiarics.

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Segment loss

Inter-scgment sales (climination)

Loss before tax

(10,143.41) (1,238.58)
132.26 175,46
(10,011.15) {1,063.12)

(This space has intentionally been left blank)




Zomato Media Private Limited
Notes to lidated fi i for the year ended 31 March 2019
CIN: U93030DL2010PTC198141

42. Segment information (contd.)

Reconciliation of assets
Scgment operaling assets
Loan notes {Notc 10)
Adjustments and Eliminations
Total assets

Reconciliation of fabilities
Scgment operating liabilities
Adjustments and Eliminations
Total liabilitics

Revenue from external customers

India

Outside India

Adjustments and Eliminations

Total revenue per consolidated statement of profit or loss

Non-current operating assets:
India

Outside India

Adjustments and Eliminations
Total

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of property, plant and equipment, investment propertics and intangible

Infermation about major %: No single

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

35.106.13 11.142.49

(0.00) 43.21
(5,169.40) (79.96)
29,936.73 11,105.74

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

6,811.01 1,453.58
554.06 (150.94)
7,365.07 1,302.64

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

20478.41 2.978.34
29127t 1.942.61
(10,265.26 {257.32)
13,125.86 4,663.63

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

6.594.61 173761
1,839.32 1.644.74
(5.229.46) (3.990.98)
320447 2,391.38

1% or more of the Group's totat revenue for the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018

(This space has intentionally been left blank)




Zomato Media Private Limited
Notes to lidated fi ial for the year ended 31 March 2019
CIN: U93030DL.2010PTC198141

43. Details of dues to micro and small as defined under MSMED Act 2006

4

45

46

4

4

=

i)

®

The group, has during the year, not received any intimation from any of its supplicrs regarding their status under The Micro and Small Enterpriscs Development Act, 2006 and hence disclosures. il any, relaling o amounts unpaid as at the year end
along with interest paid/payable as required under the said Act have not been given. Based on the information available with the Company there are no principal/interest amounts duc to micro, small and medium cnterprises.

. Capital and other commitments
(a) As at 31 March 2019, the group has cstimated amount of contract remaining (o be executed on capital account nol provided for, net of advances Nil (31 March 2018: In ¥ Mn. 0.69)
(b} The company has made long term gic i in certain subsidiary panies, which are in their initial/developing stage of operation and would gencrate growth and returns over a period of time. These subsidiaries/associates have
incurred significant expenses for building the brand and market share which haye added to the losses of these entities. The parcnt has committed to provide support to cach of its subsidiarics in the event they are unable to meet their individual
liabilitics. Based on the ial of the busi model of these entitics to generate profits and parent's support, management is of the opinion that considering the naturc of the industry and the stage of opcrations of thesc entitics there is no
indication of diminution in carrying value of the and therefore no provision is requircd at this stage
Contingent Liability not provided for:
1. As at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: 2 0.01 Mn) dividend in respect of 0.0001% and 0.00000015% P ily convertible lative prefe share not provided for X 0.01 Mn.

2. There are numerous interpretalive issues relating (o the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on Provident Fund dated 28th February, 2019. The company is already in compliance with said order for the year, However. there is uncertainty on the
determination of the liability pectively, because th ically there is no limit on how much retrospective it can get, and can begin from the commencement of operalions of the company. The company will only record a provision, on receiving
further clarity on the subject

As at the year ended on 31 March 2019, the group is having nct deferred tax assols primarily comprising of unabsorbed Depreciation and carry forward Losses under tax laws. However in the absence of reasonable certainty as to its realization of
Deferred Tax Assets (DTA), DTA has not been created

On Ist March 2019 (agreement date), the Company assigned certain pertaining to-its defivery busi in the United Arab Emirates (UAE) to Talabat Middlc East Internet Services Company LLC (*Talabat’) for a consideration
amounting to USD 172 Mn (INR 11,919.61 Mn). to be paid cither as upfront. deferred or upon rendering of scrvices (ranging from 2-4 vears, based upon management's estimatc), as per terms of the agreement. Zomato will continue to render certain
services o Talabat in UAE as part of this agi . Further, the also involves a contingent consideration amounting to USD 11 Mn (INR 762.30 Mn), to be paid to the Company at cach anni v, subject to i with certain

performance conditions. The ) co ion has been recorded at fair valuc as at the reporting datc and will be (air vatucd at cach reporting date, during the agroed period, with difference being recorded in the statement of profit and loss.

Recent accounting pronouncements-

A) New Standard issued
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 30 March 2019 notificd the new feasing standard, viz., Ind AS 116 Leases. Ind AS 116 is applicable for the financial vear beginning on or afler 1 April 2019 for all ind AS companies. It replaces virtually all the

existing leasing requirements under Ind AS 17 Leascs.

The new standard will requirc lessees to recognizce most leascs on their balance shects. Lessces will use a single accounting model for all leascs,with limited excmptions. Forcign currency leases will increase P&L volatility duc (o a restatement of
forcign currency liability. An entity has an option to adopt Ind AS 116 using cither the full retrospective method or the modified retrospective method. An entity that clects the modificd retrospective method would apply Ind AS 116 retrospectively
to only the current period by recognising the cumulative cffect of initially applying Ind AS 116 as an adjustment to the opening balance of retaincd earnings (or other components of cquity) at the date of initial application. Under the modified
retrospective method, Ind AS 116 would be applicd cither 1o all contracts at the date of initial ppl oronly to that are not leted at this date. An entity would nced to disclose how it applied the modified retrospective method,

The Company is in process to evaluate the impact of the new standard on financial statemients

B) On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified certain d to Indian A ing Standards (Ind AS)
(i) Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The Interp i dd: the ing for income (axes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application of Ind AS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of Ind AS 12, nor docs it specifically include
requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax The Interp ion specifically add, the following:

» Whether an cntity considers uncertain tax treatments separatcly

« The assumplions an entity makes about the ination of tax by Laxation auth

* How an entity detcrmincs taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unuscd tax losses. unused tax credits and tax rates

« How an cnlity considers changes in facts and circumstances

An entity has (o determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or Logether with one or morc other in tax The approach that better prediots the resolution of the uncertainty should be followed. Tn determining
the approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty, an entity might consider, for example. (a) how it prepares its income (ax filings and supports tax treatments: or (b) how the entity expeets the taxation authority to make its
examination and resolve issucs that might arise from that examination

The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or afier I April 2019, but certain transition relicfs arc available. The Company will apply the interpretation from its cffective date.In addition. the Company may nced (0
blish p and dures to oblain information that is necessary to apply the Intcrpretation on a timely basis.

P

(ii) Amendments to Ind AS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments to Ind AS 19 address the ing when a plan or occurs during a reporting period. The amcndments specify that when a plan
reporting period, an cnlity is required Lo:

* Determine current scrvice cost for the remainder of the period afier the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement, using the actuarial assumptions uscd to remeasure the net defined benefit liability (assct) reflecting the benefits offered under the
plan and the plan asscts afier that cvent.

* Determine net interest for the remainder of the period afier the plan amendment, curtailment or scttlement using: the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets afler that cvent: and the
discount rate used to remcasure that net defined benefit liability (asset).

i 1

curtailment or

occurs during the annual

The amendments also clarify that an entity first determines any past service cost, or a gain or loss on sctticment, without considering the effect of the asset ceiling, This amount is recognised in profit or loss. An entity then determines the effect of the
asset ceiling afier the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement. Any change in that cffect, excluding amounts included in the net interest, is d in other income. The d apply o plan d curtail or
scttlements occurring on or afler the beginning of the first annual reporting period that begins on or after | April 2019, These amendments will apply only to any future plan d }

or of the Company,

In case of subsidiary companics audited by other auditors, following maticr of cmphasis was given in their auditors report.
(a)  The Company Mckanistnet Internet Hizmetleri Ticaret Anonim Sirketi, Turkoy ~ “The company has recurring losses from operations in the statutory books of accounts and based on the slatutory financial staiements. two thirds of the sum of
the capital and statutory reserves arc unsecured which indicates a capital loss as per Turkish Commercial Code Article 376

As explained, of holding company is fully itted towards providing necessary financiat and operational support Lo the above company on an ongoing basts.

(This space has intentionally been left blank)
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49. Statutory Group Information

Net Assets, l.e.;i:::;lh?::us minus total Share in loss Share in other Comprehcnsive loss Share in total Comprehensive loss
Name of the catity in the group As % of As % of As % of consolidated As % of total
consolidated net consolidated other comprehensive comprchensive
assets Amount in T Mn | profit and loss Amount in ¥ Mn income Amount in ¥ Mn income Amount in ¥ Mn
Parent
Zomato Mcdia Private Limited
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 124.47%) 32,082.36, 57% {5.705.24) 45.07%) (25.64)] 78.14%)| (5.731)
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 116.38% 14.19) 48| 74%| (784.92)) 45.07%| 13.53 78.14%)| (771.39);
Subsidiaries
Indian
Zomato Internet Pvi Lid (India)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 0.38%) 97.46| 1.46%)| (146.04), 0.00%)| - 0.01% (146)|
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 H.00%| 0.12) 0.01%) ©.11)] 0.00%| - 0.01%) (0.11)]
Carthero Technologics Private Limited
Balance as at 31 March. 2019 -9.80%) (2.525.41) 35.68% (3.572.15) 0.39%) (2.81)} 12.67%) (3.575)
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 2.14% 26081 11.73% (124.76) -0.39% 0.12) 12.67%| (124.87)
Foodic Bay Trust
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 0.00% - 0.00%) - 0.00%| - 0.00%! -
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 0.00% (0.10) 0.00%! (0.03) 0.00% - 0.00% {0.03)
Zomato Entertainment Private Limited
Balancc as at 31 March, 2019 -0, 16%| (41.46) 0.71%] (71.46) 0.00%)| - 0.00% an
Balance as at 31 March. 2018 0.00%| - 0.00%| (0.03), 0.00%) - 0.00%| 0.03))
Myfriend Trust
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 0.00%) 0.07, 0.00% 0.07] 0.00%) - 0.00%| 0
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 0.00%) -| 0.00%) {0.03) 0.00% -| 0.00% {0.03)
Tonguestun Food Network Private Limited
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 -0.17%) (43.20), 1.27%)| (126.71) 0.00%| (0.3 0.00%| (127
Balance as at 31 March. 2018 0.00%| - 0.00%) (0.03) 0.00% - 0.00%| {0.03)
Foreign
Zomate Midia Brasil Lida (Bravil)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 0.00%)| 1.27 0.01% (L31)] 0.13% 0,07 0.13% [0}
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 -0.01%, (1.51)) 0.12%! (1.28)] 0.13% 0.04 0.13% (1.24)
Pt Zomato Media Indonesia (Indonesia)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 -0.08% (19.98) 0.24%! (24.42) 0.04%) 0.32 ~0.36%) 24)
Balance as a1 31 March, 2018 0.03% 4.12; .33%) 3.52] 0.04%) (0.01) 0.36%! 3.50
Zomato NZ Media Pvt. Ltd. (New Zealand)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 -0.02%) (5.20)] 0.28% {28.29)] 2.38%) 0.31 -0.08%) (28)|
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 0.19%) 22.79) -0.01%) 0.1 2.38%| 0.7] =0.08% 0.83
Zomaio Media (Private) Limited (Sri Lanka)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 0.00%) .98 0.00%)| 0.10 -0.02%| {0.05) -0.02%| o
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 0.01%| 0.93 -0.02%)| 0.19 -0.02%) (0.01) -0.02%| 0.18
Zomalo Portugal Media. Unipessoal Lda
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 <0.14%) (36.11) 0.47%| (47.44) -8.75%) 118 3.18%) (46))
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 -0.18% (21.43)] 2.70%, (28.67), -8.75%) (2.63) 3.18%) (31.30)
Zomato Chile Spa (Chiic)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 0.00% (0.03) 0.01% (0.61)] ~0.09%| (0.00) 0.10% [¢}]
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 0.00%!| 0.10] 0.09% (0.92) -0.09%| £0.03) 0.10%, {0.95)
Zomalo Ircland Limited {Ireland)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 6.16%)| 1.586.60 1.45% (145.04)f 50.22% (9.52) 6.45% (155)
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 11.62%! 1,417.53: 7.40%, (78.68)| 50.22%, 15.07] 6.45% {63.61)
Zomato Uk Limited (United Kingdom)
Balance as at. 31 March, 2019 0.01%) (1.39)] 0.01%) 0.64 0.77%) ©0.00 0.01% 1
Balancc as at 31 March, 2018 -0.02%: (2.03)] -0.01%! 0.15 -0.77%| {0.23)] 0.01%! (0.08)
Zomato Canada Inc. (Canada)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 0.01%; 3.80 0.01% (1.15) 0.38% 014 0.18%| [¢8]
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 0.03%) 4.26) 0.18%) {1.90)] 0.38%) 011 0.18% (1.78))
Zomato Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. (Malaysia)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 0.00%, 0.13| 0.00%) {0.35) 0.96%) {0.01) 0.39% ()]
Balance as at 31 March. 2018 0.00%) 0.12] 0.39% 11 0.96% 0.29] 0.39%) (3.83)]
Zomato Slovakia S.R.O. (Slovak)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 0.00% (0.05) 0.00%) (0.16)] -0.58%| (0.0D) 0.00% [(U]
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 -0.01%) (0.80) -0.02% 0.20 -0.58%) (0.17) 0.00%) 0.02,
Zomato Colombia S.A.S (Colombia)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 0.00%| - 0.00%| -] 0.12% - 0.00% -
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 0.01%) 1.12 0,00%| (0.04) 0.12%] 0.04] 0.00%| (0.0,
Lunchtime.Cz S.R.O. (Czech Republic)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 0.00%) 0.99) 0.01%| (1.45) 0.45%) {0.06) 0.40% (03]
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 0.01% 1.56, 0.38% $.04) 0.45% 0.14, 0.40% 3.90),
Gastronauci Sp z.0.0 (Poland)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 0.01%) 1.40, 0.02%!| (1.64) ~0.57%) (0.13) 0.36%| 2)
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 0.01% 0.87] 0.32% (3.37)] -0.57%| 0.17) 0.36% (3.55)|
Zomato Australia Pty Limited (Australia)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 “0.24%) (60.84)/ 1.39%, {138.86)| 0.46% 3.69| 3.63% 135)
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 -0.19%, {22.64)| 3.38%| {35.96). 0.46% 0.14] 3.63%] (35.82))
Zomato Sweden Ab (Sweden)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 0.00%| - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%; -
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 0.00%| -] 0.00%) - 0.00% - 0.00%) -
Zomato Hungary Kfl, (Hungary)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 0.00%! 0.50] 0.00%| (0.06), 0.26%)| {0.03) 0.00%) (0)
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 0.00%| 0.59) 0.01%! (0.06)) 0.26%| 0.08. 0.00%| 0.02]
Zomalo International Ro S.R L. (Romania)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 0.00% 0.00| 0.00%) -] 0.00%) (0.00)| 0.60%) {0)
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 0.00%) 0.00 0.00% q 0.00% 0.004 0.00%! 0.00]
Zomato Finland Oy (Finland) Q
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 Qﬂ g 3 — 0.00%, - 0.00%!| - 0.02%) - 0.00%| -
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 - y I~ 0.00%) 0.03 0.00% {0.03) 0.02%| 0.01 0.00% (0.02))
OrC JU
. * <k
Zomato Austria GinbH (Austria) o~
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 @/_ DS\E\/ / 0.00%) .66 0.01%] (©.53) 0.55% ©.0D) 0.01% m
Balance a5 at 31 March, 2018 e ca 0.01%) 1.20] 0.00%, (0.03) 0.55% 0.16 0.01%) 0.13




Zomato Media Private Limited
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49. Statutory Group Information

Net Assets, l'c';i:)‘:;:‘?::c(s minus total Share in loss Share in other Comprehensive loss Share in total Comprehensive loss
Name of the entity in the group As % of As % of As % of consalidated AS % of total
consolidated net other comprehensive comprehensive
assets Amount in T Mn | profit and loss Amount in ¥ Mn income Amount in ¥ Ma income Amount in T Mn
Zomato Peru $.A.C. (Peru)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 0.00%| - 0.00%) - 0.00%| 0.00 0.00%| 0]
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 0.00%! 0.00 0.00%| -| 0.00%| 0.00] 0.00%i 0.00]
Zomato Ircland - Jordan (Jordan)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 0.02% 4.80 0.00% - 0.04%| 0.32 -0.02% 0
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 0.02%| .48 0.00%) 0.22 0.04%] 001 -0.02%) 0.23
Cibando Ltd. (United Kingdom)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 0.00%| 0.1 0.00%| {0.06)) 0.15%| {0.00) 0.06%| ()]
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 0.00% 0.17] 0.06%| {0.62)| 0.15% 0.04 0.06% (0.58),
Zomato, Inc. (USA)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 1.36% 349.29 €.03%| (2.55) 1L.67%; 2.9 0.36%| (]
Balance as al 31 March, 2018 2.66% 324.72 0.38% {4.08) 1.67%)| 0.50 0.36% {3.58),
Zomato Netherlands B.V. (Netherlands)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 0.00%| {0.95)] 0.44%| (44.22) 0.62%) 0.04 2.25% “44)
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 0.00%] 0.44 2.10% (22.32) 0.62%) 018, 2.25%) (22.14)
Zomato Internet Hizmetleri Ticaret Anonim Sirketi (Turkey)
Balance as al 31 March, 2019 0.10%)| 25.36] 0.25%| (24.93)] -2.13% i 3.33%) Q@n
Balance as at 31 March. 2018 .03%| 3.80 3.03% (32.23)] -2.13%) {0.64) 3.33%) (32.87)
Zomato USA. LLC (USA)
Balance as at 31 March. 2019 0.24%) 6145 -0.05%| 4.96] 1.21%) 3.64 -5.40% 9|
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 0.43%| 52.85 -4.98% 52.89] 1.21%) 0.36 -5.40% 53.26
Nextable, Inc. (USA)
Batance as at 31 March, 2019 ~0.05%| (14.09) 0.24%, (23.74)] -1.52%| {0.92) 6.52% {25y
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 ~.13%| (15.42) 6.00%| (63.77) -1.52% (0.46) 6.52% (64.22)
Zomato South Africa (Pty) Lid. (South Alrica)
Balarice as at 31 March, 2019 .03% 7.47] “0.03%) 337 -144%) (0.81)] 0.66% 3
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 0.0-4%f 4.921 0.57% {6.08)/ -1.44% (0.43)] 0.66%)| (6.31)
Zomato Spain S.L (Spain)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 0.00%| - 0.00%)| - 0.00%; g 0.00%)| -
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 0.00% - 0.00%| - 0.00%) 0.00% -
Cong Ty TNHH Zomato Vietnam (Vietnam)
Balance as at 31 March. 2019 0.01%] 3.19] 0.00%| 0.06 -0.03% 0.21 0.01%| 0|
Balance as at 31 March. 2018 0.02%| 2.92| 0.01%| {0.13) -0.03% {0.01) 0.01%| {0.14)
Zomato Media Pyt Lid (Singaporc)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 -0.01% (2.87) 0.00%| 0.31 -0.63% (0.41) 0.02% [
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 -0.03%) 3.07) 0.00%| {0.03) -0.63%)| (6.19) 0.02% (0.22)
Zomalto Norway AS (Norway)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 G.00%; .12 0.00% {0.03), 0.05%| {0,00) 0.00%! ()]
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 0.00% 0.15] 0.00% (0.04) 0.05%| 0.0 0.00%)| ., (0.02)
Zomate Middle East Fz - LLC (Dubai)
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 0.49% 125,32 -1.18% 118.05 “0.11%) 217 103% 120)]
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 0.04%) 5.11 0.95%! (10.13) £0.11%] (0.03)] 1.03% (10.17),
Zomati Philippines Inc (Philippines)
Balance as at 31 March. 2019 0.05%] 14.07 1.22%) (121.68) -0.49%) (0.10)) 2.08% {122)
Balance as at 31 March. 2018 0.08%| 9.79] 1.92%)| {20.39)) -0.49% (0.15)) 2.08%| (20.54)/
Zomato Denmark ApS
Balance as at 31 March. 2019 0.00%) 0.29 0.00% 0.24) 0.23% .01 0.01% )
Balance as a1 31 March. 2018 0.00%) 0.53 0.00%| (0.00) 0.23% 0.07 -0.01%, 0.07
Zomato Internet LLC
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 0.00%| 0.05 0.32% (31.81) 3.23% {0.12) 2.64%)| (32),
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 0.06%| 7.88] 2.54%) (26.96), 3.23%) 0.97 2.64% (25.99)]
b-21
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 -0.45%! {116.57)| 0.09%)| (8.79) 10.89%) (5.83)] 2.42%| {15)]
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 -0.84% (101.96; 2.55%) (27.14); 10.89% 3.27] 2.42% (23.87)f
Non Controlling Interest in all Subsidiaties
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 -1.22% (314.17)] 4.52%) (452.86) 0.00%) -3.39% (453))
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 0.69%| 84.33 3.05%) (32.39) 0.00%| -3.39%| (32.39)
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